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CHATURVEDI &% SHAH .-

Chcrfered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as “the
Financial Statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the financial position
of the Company as at 31t March 2022, and its financial performance including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

I As mentioned in the Note No. 50 (i) to the financial statements, the Company has
provided penal interest at 8% on borrowing from Edehweiss Assets Reconstruction
Company Limited (EARC) as against the documented rate of 18%. The interest
provisions in earlier period / years till 3oth September 2019 were accounted based on
the confirmations received from EARC at 8% penal interest rate. It has resulted in the
short provision of interest amounting to Rs. 2751.20 Lakh till the year ended 31st March
2021 and for year ended 31st March 2022 amounting to Rs. 3,080.01 Lakh, which is not
in compliance with Ind AS-23 “Borrowing Cost” read with Ind AS-109 “Financial
Instruments”. In aggregate interest provisions are lower by Rs. 5,831.21 Lakh #ill 31st
March 2022. Had interest been recognised at its documented rate, finance cost for the
year ended 31st March 2022 and earlier years would have been higher and net loss after
tax for the year and total comprehensive income would have been higher by equivalent
amount, having consequential impact on other equity.

it. As mentioned in Note No. 52 of the financial statements, the Company failed to make
payment as prescribed as per one time settlement with lender. As a result, event of
default has occurred and the entire debt prior to date of settlement become payable
along with interest. The Company has not reversed the gain recorded in earlier year and
not provided for additional interest till 31st March 2021 Rs. 9012.15 Lakh and for the
year ended 31st March, 2022 Rs. 3,481.28 Lakh, aggregating to Rs. 12,493.43 Lakh Hll
31st March, 2022. Had the Company reversed the gain recorded in earlier year and
provided for additional interest, exceptional item would have been lower by Rs. 6,604.55

. Lakh and finance cost would have been higher by Rs. 12,493.43 Lakh by equivalent

2\ amount as mentioned above, having consequential impact on total comprehensive
income and other equity.
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iii, We draw attention to the Note no. 54 of the financial statements, during the course of

preparation of standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022, e-
mails have been sent to lenders by the Company with a request to confirm their balances
directly to us. As at 31st March 2022, direct balance confirmations of total borrowings
including interest accrued (including current maturities and current borrowings),
aggregating to Rs. 119422.01 Lakh have not been received. We are unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence about these borrowings (including interest)
outstanding as at 31st March 2022. Consequently, we are unable to determine whether
any adjustiment to these amounts are necessary and consequential impacts on the
standalone financial statements of the Company.

iv. For reasons mentioned in Note no. 5 A (1) of the financial statements, the Company
could not assess the impairment of carrying value of property, plant and equipment in
accordance with requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 36 on “Impairment of
Assets”. We are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
recoverable amount of the same. Consequently, we are unable to determine whether any
adjustments to carrying value of property, plant and equipment are necessary as at 31st
March 2022 and consequential impacts on the standalone financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to the Note no. 48 of the Financial Statements, the Company incurring losses
and it's net worth as at 31% March, 2022 is negative, unable to pay its dues to operational and
financial creditors, the Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to lenders and started
recovery proceeding under SARFAESI from EARC by disposing off tangible and intangible assets,
lenders have even called back their loans, lenders have classified Company’s borrowing as NPA,
current liabilities exceeded its current assets of the Company, creditors have applied before NCLT
under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Since it's sizable movable assets under rail
operations has been disposed off by lenders, the Company is evaluating various options to utilize
optimally it's assets pertaining rail operations, ICD and domestic warehousing. We have been
informed by the management that Company is also under advanced stage of debt restructuring
with EARC. These matters including others matters as set out in the notes indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt about their ability to continue as a going
concern. The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the going concern
basis. The said assumption of going concern is dependent upon above said factors and generation
of cash flows to meet its obligations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Continyation sheet...
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Emphasis of Matters

i We draw attention to Note no. 62.1 of the financial statements, regarding accounting of

the scheme from the appointed date being 1st April 2019 as approved by the National
Company Law Tribunal, though the Scheme has become effective on 2nd February, 2022
and restatement of comparatives for the previous years by the management of the
Company.

ii. We draw attention to Note no. 62.2 of the financial statements, one of the lenders of the
Arshiya Limited, had preferred an appeal in “Hon’able National Company Law Appellate
Tribunal®, (“NCLAT”), against the order of Hon’able National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement between the Company and Arshiya
Limited. NCLAT ordered to maintain the status quo prevailing as on that date, vide it’s
order dated 4th March 2022. According to the legal opinion obtained by the Arshiya
Limited and in view of the Management, it can prepare the financial statements of the
Company as per sanctioned scheme of arrangement.

iii. We draw attention to the Note no. 55 of the financial statements, regarding the balance
confirmations of trade receivables and trade payables. During the course of preparation of
standalone financial statements, e-mails/letters have been sent to various parties by the
Company with a request to confirm their balances directly to us out of which only few
parties have responded. The management is confident and is of the view that there will
not be any material variation in the said balances.

iv, As at 31 March, 2022, balance confirmation of capital advance amounting to Rs. 1,041.64
Lakh have not been received by the Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the annual report (but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard. .

Continuation sheet...



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT C HATU RVE DI .I

j SHAH .-

To the Members of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited Chartered Accountants

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March 2022
Page 4 of 17

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued there under.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
Process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
Professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

. procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the

Companies act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the

mpany has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Continuation sheet...
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order”),
and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Further to our comment in the Annexure A, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we
report that: '

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis Jor Qualified Opinion
paragraph above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books:

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account;

Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph above, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules there under;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as
on 31* March, 2022 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of
the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in

terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;
Continuation sheet...
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. The matters described in the paragraphs above “Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern”, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure B”;

h. The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above;

i. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the provisions of section 197 of the act is not applicable to the company since no
managerial remuneration is paid / provided.

j.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company, as detailed in Note no. 37 (ii) and 56 to the financial statements has
disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position.

. The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

i, There is no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to financial statements no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) Management has represented to us that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

-

Continuation sheet..,
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(c) Based on our audit procedure conducted that are considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us
to believe that the representation given by the management under paragraph (2)
(3) (iv) (a) & (b) contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

tﬁnﬂ eV

Vijay Napawaliya o
Partner /’i{;‘i\\; Sl %
Membership No. 109859 -'(’ S . \’{.]
UDIN : 22109859AVBGLL8562 f;\; \*' igarz)
Place: Mumbai %04 = @‘5”,
Date: 31t August 2022 RALLo
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE
STADNALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCITURE
LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the Arshiya
Rail Infrastructure Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31* March 2022)

(1) Inrespect of its property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets :-

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment
including right of use (ROU) assets on the basis of available information.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets on the basis of available information.

b) As explained to us, the Company has physically verified property, plant and equipment
including right of use (ROU) assets, in accordance with a phased program of
verification, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification as compared with the available records.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined
by us in respect of immovable properties disclosed as property, plant and equipment,
and right of use assets (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favors of the lessee) in the financial statements
are in the name of the Company, except as mentioned below: -

Ciodi Whether
s e x g promoter, Period
lzf ;il:p?;&l ¢ valju:g Hﬂim director or held Reason for not being in the
P (Rs. in P their since name of Company
Lal;h) relative or
Employee
By virtue of NCLT order 21+
Arshi January 2022, domestic business
Frechold land | 7499.35 ]_‘imitgg No 1/4/2019 | has been demerged from Arshiya
Limited into the Company.

d) According to information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and
. records examined by us, Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
/j?j' & SEX (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

“.e) According to information & explanations and representation given to us by the
-/  mmanagement, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company

%
i~\_//§‘;:ﬂ for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
N ﬁ{‘m@"'{' 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) a)} The nature of business of the Company does not require any inventory during the year.
Therefore the provisions of Clause 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Gontinuation sheet...
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b} As per the information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and records
examined by us, there is no working capital limits, from banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets has been sanctioned. Therefore, clause (ii) (b)
of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iif) With respect to investments made in or any guarantee or security provided or any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, granted during the year by the
Company to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties:

a) As per the information and explanations given to us and books of accounts and records
examined by us, during the year Company has not provided any guarantee or security
or has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other entities except as mentioned below:-

Rs. In Lakh

Guarantees Loans
Aggregate amount granted / provided during
the year
- Others - 225.37
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
in respect of above cases
- (thers = 225.37
- Related Parties 600 2437.84

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given us and on the
basis of our audit procedures in respect of the investments made, gunarantee provided,
and the terms-and conditions of all loans and advances in the nature of loans are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to Company’s interest. The Company has not made any
security.

c¢) According to the books of accounts and records examined by us in respect of the loans
and advances in the nature of loans, where the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated, the repayments or receipts are generally
regular.

d) According to the books of accounts and records examined by us in respect of the loans,
there is no amount overdue for more than ninety days.

e) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given and books of
accounts and records examined by us, there are no loans granted which has fallen due
during the year and renewed or extended or fresh loans has been granted to settle the
over dues of existing loans given to the same parties. Therefore, the provisions of
Clause 3 (iii) (€) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given and records

f)
MR examined by us, the company has not granted any loans either repayable on demand or
W2 Sk _ without specifving any terms or period of repayment.

Continuation sheet...
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(iv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013, in respect of loans,
investments, guarantees and security, as applicable, have been complied with

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of provisions
of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there
under. Therefore, the clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(v)  Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of rail
operations. We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

(vi) Inrespect of Statutory dues :

a) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to
us, the Company has generally been regular, in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, duty of
customs, cess and any other material statutory dues, except income tax, to the
appropriate authorities, as applicable, during the year. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such
statutory dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable except as mentioned below :-

Amount Per_iod to
Name of the | Nature of 1 which the Due Dat Date of
Statute the Dues E‘Rb a amount ue.ale Payment
akh)
relates
Service tax Service tax 23.46 | Current and | Various due
Act, 1994 previous date of
Interest 42.63 | financial current and
on Service years previous
tax financial
vears
Income Tax | TDS 756.55 | Current and | Various due
Act, 1961 previous date of
Interest 755.41 | financial current and
on TDS years previous
financial
years

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a)
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

Continuation sheet...
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(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and representation given to us
by the management, Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, any transactions which are not
recorded in the books of account. Therefore the Provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(vii) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given and books of
accounts and records examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender except as

mentioned below:-
(Rs. In Lakh)
Nature of borrowing Amount of continuing No. of days
and Name of the default as on delay
lender 31st March, 2022 {Days)
Principal Interest
- 252.91 1462-1736
Edelweiss Asset - 4,070.92 1097-1371
Reconstruction 3,630.33 12,919.82 731-1096
Company Limited- 10,173.93 4,449.89 366-730
through
Various trust 46,010.25 10,886.27 1-365
Edelweiss Asset | 3,000.00 630.04 1097-1371
Reconstruction - 774.24 731-1006
Company Limited - Short - 944.07 366-640
Term Priority Loan 1,104.03 1-275
Corporation Bank - 676.15 3287
- 521.24 2588-2922
1,549.10 725.71 2192-2467
- 901.75 1827-2101
= 1,059.67 1462-1797
7 1,303.57 1097-1432
- 1,459.54 731-1067
& 1,715.07 366-701
1,796.92 1-366
Bank of India 1,834.00 - 1097
59.58 1-91
- 288.90 3287
- 218.76 2558-2922
836.18 310.23 2192-2467
= 385.48 1827-2101
= 452.98 1431-1797
- 1,120.39 1097-1432
= 730:72 731-1067
- 876.60 366-701
044.29 1-366
67,933.79 51,579.74

Continuation sheet...
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b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or government authority.

¢) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given and records
examined by us, the Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there
are no unutilized term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause 3(ix) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, prima facie, we report that short-term funds available amounting to Rs.
120620. 48 Lakh have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiary. The Company does not have any associates or joint
ventures.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiary. The Company does not have any associates or joint
ventures.

(ix} a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and hence clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations give to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) during the year under audit.

(x) a) Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and as per information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, No report under sub-
section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by us or by any other auditor in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

¢) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year.

Continuation sheet...
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(xii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of sections 177 and 188 of the companies Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act.

(xiii) a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
internal audit system needs to be strengthened to make it commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the
period under audit.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with
him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act.

(xv) a) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us and
on the basis of our audit procedures, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as per the Reserve bank of
India Act 1934.

¢) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India.

d) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
Group has no Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the group.

(xvi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year amounting to Rs 16,366.86 Lakhs and Rs. 11,492.67 Lakhs respectively.

(xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore,
provisions of clause (xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xviii} On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting and the various conditions specified under
paragraph “Material uncertainty related to Going Concern” above, which indicates and
causes us to believe that material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
the Company is capable of meeting all of its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

Continuation sheet...
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(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 135 are not
applicable to the Company. Therefore, provisions of clause (xx} of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

l}f o iy ]

Vijay Napawaliya

Partner

Membership No. 109859

UDIN : 22109859AVBGLLS8562

Place; Mumbai
Date: 317 August 2022

Continuation sheat...



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT CHATURVEDI £ SHAH .-

To the Members of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited Chartered Accountants
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March 2022
Page 15 of 17

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the Arshiya
Rail Infrastructure Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 315t March 2022.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“the Company™) as of 31t March, 2022 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

oalve belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

“4asis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system reference to
Sfandalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference
to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management, directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material
effect on the standalone financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

Based on our audit, information & explanations provided by the management, the material
weaknesses have been identified in the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2022 i) with regard to providing penal interest
at 8% on borrowing from Edelweiss Assets Reconstruction Company Limited (EARC) as against
the documented rate of 18%, ii) Non reversal of gain recorded in earlier year due to failure to
make payment as prescribed as per one time settlement with lender, iii) obtaining balance
confirmations of borrowing (including interest) from lenders and iv) assessment of recoverable
value of property, plant and equipment and consequential impairment, if any.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of information and according to explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements as at March 31, 2022 based on the internal control with reference to
standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finanecial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI and except for possible effects of the
material weakness described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph above on the
achievement of the objectives of the Control criteria, the Company’s internal financial control
with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at 31t March,
2022.
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A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial
control with reference to standalone financial statements, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Company’s annual financial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the
nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022, and these material weakness do not affect our
opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 101720W/ W100355

\}Tem*“”“i

Vijay Napawaliya

Partmer

Membership No. 109859
UDIN : 22109859AVBGLL8562

Place: Mumbai
Date: 315 August 2022
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

09//
f e

{Rupees in lakhs)

A As at As ot As at
Pastcuiars NoteS |  March31, 2022 | March31, 2021 April 1, 2020
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{2] Property, Plant and Equipment SA 85.847.23 91,566.57 109,804.29
(b} Right of use assets 5B 10.98 142.39 568.50
{c} Intangible Assets & 66,52 2.124.60 247449
(8] Financial Assets
{i} Investments 7 1.00 . -
{ii} Other Financial Assets 8 k. 346.57 64991
(e} Other Non-Current Assets g 1,294.43 1,291.632 1,321.26
90,320.16 96,471.86 114,818.85
Current assets
{a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 10 28.15 351.35 1,077.74
{ii} Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 17.52 33.90 76.62
(iii) Loans 12 2,663.21 2,461 .48 1,905.47
(/) Bank Balances Cther than {ii} above 13 103.37 275.08 289.24
(v} Other Financial Assets 14 35126 422.43 500.38
{b} Other Current Assets i5 256.95 S47.82 1,036.00
3,460.50 4,092.12 4,985.55
TOTAL ASSETS 93,780.66 100,563.98 112,704.40
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Equity Share capital 16 2 - -
{b) Share capital suspense account 16 2,622.76 2,622.76 2.622.76
{c} Other Equity 17 [34,075.65} {13,668.53} 2,599.26
{31,452.89) {11,045.77) 5,222.02
Liabilities
Mon Current Liabilities
[a] Financlal Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 18 1,071.43 43,180.82 47,431.35
(1) Lease Liahilities 19 B 4697 254.64
(iti} Other Financial Liabilities 20 = = 35.51
{b} Provisians 21 1674 38.42 B81.43
{¢) Othar Nan-Current Liabilities 22 62.74 57.82 1.266.82
1,150.91 43,364.03 49,069.66
Curvent Liabilities
{a} Financial Liabilities
{1] Borrowings 23 67,846.62 2551371 26,754.36
{ii} Trade Payables 24
{A) Total gutstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 72.83 62.47 4420
{B}Total cutstanding dues of creditors Cther than Micro and 605,37 900.09 1,421.09
Small Enterprises
{iii} Lease Liabilities 25 14.04 121.59 363.94
(iv) Other Financial Liahilities 26 53,758.00 39,956.03 34,03057
(b) Other Current Liabilities 27 1,780.99 1,684.40 2,786.04
(¢) Provisions 28 4.79 743 12,52
122,082.64 68,245.72 65,412.72
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 93,780.66 100,563.98 119,704.40
Notes to the financial staterents 1-76
As per our Report of even date
For Chaturvedi & 5hah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directars of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Rall infrastructure Uimited
Firmn Registration Number 101720W/W100355
s Y| ) | H’/ h‘\\__/& »l Mﬁ!‘r wlyy
i ﬁ
Vijay Napawaliya Ajay 5 Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership Number. 109859 DIN : 00225355 DIN : 00613576

Place : Mumbai
Date: 31st Aug, 2022




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Rupees in lakhs)

. _ Yearended Year ended
Particulars Not: S
: 1 march 31,2022 March 31,2021
INCOME

Revenue from operations 29 828.13 7,785.61

Other income 30 417.37 4,086.07
Total Income (1) 1,245,50 11,871.68
EXPENSES

Cost of operations 31 47.97 5,868.10

Employee benefits expenses 32 617.66 1,053.36

Finance costs 33 15,718.41 15,648.58

Depreciation and amaortization expenses 34 4,042.86 4,784.81

COther expenses 35 1,228.32 794.31
Total Expenses {II} 21,655.22 28,149.16
Loss before tax {I-11} {20,409.72) {16,277.48}
Tax expense: a7

Current tax - -

Deferred tax - -
toss for the year {20,405.72) {16,277.48)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [OC()

Item not to be reclassified to profit and loss :

Remeasurement of gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans 39 2.60 9.69
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR {20,407.13} {16,267.79)
Earnings per Equity shares {Face Value Rupees 10 each} 36
Basic/ Diluted earnings per share (In Rupees) {15.56) {12.41)
Notes to the financial statements 1-76

As per our Report of aven date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355

(/frﬂs W by,

Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Mermbership Number. 109859

Place ; Mumbai
Date: 31st Aug,2022

For and on behaif of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

P W N
¥ T ——re—
Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary

Director Director
DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576



ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Equity Share Capital {Refer Note 156)
[Rupees in kakhs)
Particulars Amiptint
As at Apeii 1, 2020 -
Equity Shares 1
Issue of equity share during the year -
As at March 31, 2021 -
Equity Shares -
Issue of equity share during the year -
As at March 31, 2012 -
Share Capital Suspense Account |Refer Note 16)
{Rupees in lakhs}
Parviculs - =y

As at April 1, 2020 2,622.76
Movement during the year -
As at March 31, 202X 262276
Movement during the year -
As gt March 31, 2022 2,522.76
Other Equity [Refer Note 17)

i {Rupees in lakhs

Resarve & Surphes
Equity Component of Zera%
Particulars Rétained. ‘Caphtal Reserve | Optiorially Convertible Yotal
Earfilng: e .

As at Aprll 1, 2020 {28.601.98} 30,682.15 519.09 2,599.26
Loss fer the year {16,277.48) - . {16,277.48)
Other comprehansive income 9.69 - - 9.69
Total comprehenslve ncome for the year {16,267.79) - - {16,267.79)
As at March 31, 2021 {44,860.77) 30,682.1% 519.09 {13,668.53)
Froflt for the year (20,409.30) - - (20,409.72)
Cther comprehensive incomea 2.0 A - 2.40
Total comprehensive Income for the year {20,407.12) - - (20,407.12)
As at March 31, 2022 [65,276.89) 30,682.15 515.05 (34,075.65)

Notes to the financial staternents
As per our Report of even date

For Chaturved| & Shah LLP

Chartered Actountants
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W 100355

(/J’TCﬂ o A2

Vilay NapawaBiya
Partnar
Mambarship Number. 109359

Place : Mumbai
Data: 315t Aug,2021

>
\<¢p}' S
S
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NI

for and on behalf of Board of Directoss of
Arshiva Rafl Infrastructure Limited

Q\U"\\vﬂ N gamnia 019

Ajay 5 Mittal

Dlrector

DIN : 00226355

Navnit Choudhary
Diractor
DIN : 00613576



ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Rupees in lakhs)

Asat Asat
Parﬁml_m‘s March 31, 2072 March 31, 2021
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ {Loss) for the year hefore tax 120,409.72) [16,277.48)
Adjustments fos :
Depreciation and amortization expensas 4,042 86 4,784,821
Interest Income (7.54) {17.44}
Interest on laan to others [23.11) -
Loss/[Gain) on salefdiscarded Property, plant and equipment / Intangible Asets 53020 11,907.200
Hain on Lease modification 4.78) {24.09)
Provision for Doubtful debts/ ECL .20 -
Interest on others - 8.51)
Sundry Balances Written Back [net) {259.3¢6) (23.78)
Finance Expense 15,718.41 15,648.58
Interest on Income Tax refund {6.90) {13.54)
Rent concession {4.38) (27.49)
Excess provision write back {26.64) {18.58)
Share based Payment + 108.95
Fair value of financial Instrurments {014} 11.98)
Gavernment grant — income {35.07) {1,49%.43)
OPERATING PROFIT / {LOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES (478.38) 12274
Adlustments for
Trade & other payables {135.34} {1,435.51)
Trade & other receivabias G04.27 1,176.38
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS [10.05) 363.62
Direct Tax {Paid)/ Refunds 66.40 87.11
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Total (A} 56.35 550.73
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Praperty, Plant and Equipment [0.44) (4.59)
{Increase)/ decrease in other bank balances 159.16 (11.06)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets 1,200.00 14,947 46
Loans given to ather {Net) 1201.72) {556.02)
Inwestment in subsidiary (1.00) -
interest Income on Fixed Deposits 17.20 12.91
Interest Income an lo2ns to others 23.11 -
MET CASH FLOW FROM/ USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES Totat {B} 1,236.21 14,388.70
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Ragayment of borrowings - Non currant & (5,651.31)
Paymant of Lease Liahility (114.02} {242.67)
Borrowing - current {Met) = {75.14)
Interest pald on borrowings {1,195.00} {9,007.04)
KET CASH FLOW FROM/ USED INFINANCING ALTIVITIES Total [C} {1,309.02) {14,982.16)
Net Increase/{Decrease} in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+L) 116.38) (82.73)
Lash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the year 3390 76.62
Cash and Cash Equlvalents at the end of the year
(Refer Note no. 11) 17.52 33.90
*Note:- Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities :
Particulars March 31, 2623 Cash flow | INDAS impact Cther non cash March 31, 2022
adjustment
Long term borrowing {Refer Note ne. 18 & 23) 65,690 18 - 223153 - £5,913.71
Short term borrowing (Refer Note no. 23) 3,000.00 - 5 - 3,000.00
Naotes to the financial staternents 1-78
As per aur Report of even date
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP for and om behal! of Board of Directors of
Charterad Accountants Arshiya Rafl Infrastructure Elmitad
Firm Registration Number 101720W /W 100355
e )"rr " QAL Dy
C,/ {; I
Vijay Napawallya Alsy § Mittal Mavnlt Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Mambership Number, 109859 DIN : 00226355 DiN : 00613576

Place : Mumbai
Date: 31st Aug, 2022
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3.2

ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Arshiya Rail (nfrastructure Limited (CIN : US3000MH2008PLC180S07) is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated on Aprit 7, 2008
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at 205 & 206, Level 2, Cesjay HoLse,
Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400 018.

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited {ARIL) offering unprecedented rail infrastructurs, including Private Freight Terminat {PFT}, warehousing including
temperature controlled starage and Inland Container Depot (ICD) . The company is engaged in PFT business, warehousing and ICD business for Exim
Traffic. ARIL's unique offering provide unparalleled efficiencies with capability of large scale evacuation of cargo from Ports, Damestic Distriparks
Warehousing, Free Trade and Warehousing Zones, Inland Container Depat {ICD) and customer Sidings.

The financial statements of the Company for the period from 1st April, 2019 upto 31st March 2021 have been restated pursuant the Scheme of
Arrangement {Scheme) approved by National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbal Bench (NCLT] vide it's order dated 21st January, 2022. The Scheme
became effective from 2nd February, 2022 with the Appointed date of the scheme is 15t April, 2019 {Refer Note No. 60).

The financtal statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 were approved and adopted by board of directors in their meeting
held en 31st August, 2022.

BASIS OF PREPARATION:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs ("MCA") pursuant to the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with of the Companies {indian Accounting Standards} Rules
2015, (25 amended} and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilitias, which are measured at
fair valua/ amortised cost.

The finandlal staterments are presented in tndian Rupees [Rs.}, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency and all values are
rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENT:

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumuiated depreciation and accumulated impalrment [9sses, if any. Cost includes purchase
price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to the bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided using straight line method over the useful life of assets as specified in schedute Il to
the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation or property, plant 2nd equipment which are added / disposed off during the year, is provided on pro-rata
basis with reference to the date of addition / deletion. Freehold land is not depreciated and under the previous GAAP land was revalued.

The asset's residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and are adjusted prospectively, if
apgropriate,
Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and eguipment under instailation / under development as at the balance sheet date.

Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the period of lease.
Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or when retired from active use. Profits / losses arising in
the case of retirement / disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statemant of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of its property, ptant and equipment as recognisad in the Indian GAAP financial
staternents as deemed cost at the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016.

Intangible Assets :

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumuiated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributabie to the acquisition of the intangible assets.

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when It is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and
the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Railways License fees is amortised over a period of twenty years being the li~nse period as per agreamaent,

Computer saftwares are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respactive license for use and are amortised over the period of five years.
The assets’ useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of its intangible assets as recognised in the indian GAAP financial statements as
deemed cost at the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016.
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3.7

ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Leases:

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to contrel the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether {I} the contract involves the use of identified asset; {ii} the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the pericd of lease and {iii) the Company has right to
direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the fease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases]. For these shart term leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The ROU assets are initially
recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prier to the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment tosses. ROU assets are depreciated from the commeancement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful
Ife of the underlying asset.

The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-
of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease fiability. The lease Hability is
Initialty measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using its Incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate,

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using
the incremental barrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes
its assessment of whether it will exarcise an extension or a termination option.

ROU assets and Lease liability have baen separately presented in the Balance Sheet note 5b, 19 & 25 respectively and lsase payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

Inventories:
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of converston and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their respective present location and condition. Cost is computed on the First in first cut basis.

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash eguivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an griginal maturity of three
manths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Impairment of assets:

An asset is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet, there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the asset, ar
where applicable, the cash genarating unit to which the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the net asset seliing price
and value in use).The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in the statement
of profit and loss. The impairment toss recognized in the prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change In the estimate of
recoverable armount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value of the impaired asset over its remalining useful life.

Financial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent t and impairment:
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financiat asset of one entity and a financia! Bability or equity instrument of another entity,

Finangial assets -Initial recognition and measurement:

aAll financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisiticn or issue of financial assets,
which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured at amortised cost.
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Financial assets - Subsequent ement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-

a) Financial assets at fair value

b} Financial assets at amortised cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are sithar recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss {i.e fair value through
profit or loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through othar comprahensive income),

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment} unless the asset is
designated at fair value through profit or [oss under the fair value option.

a) Business model test: The objective of the Company’s business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flow.

b) Cash fiow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are sofely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

A financiai asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive incormne unless the asset is
designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

a) Business model test: The financtal asset is held within a business madel whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow and
selling financial assets.

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fiow that are sclely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets - Equity Investment in subsidiaries
The Company has accounted for its equity investment in subsidiaries at cost.

Financlal assets - Derecognition
A financial assets {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
remaoved from the Company's statement of financial position} when:

a} The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flow from the asset.

Financial labilities - Initial recognition and measurement:
The financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair vafue and, in the case of loans and barrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities - Subsequent measurement;
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one
year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts are approximate at their fair value dua to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial Liabilities - Financial Guarantee contracts:

Financisl guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require 3 payment to be made to reimburse the holder for 2 loss it
incurs because the specified debtor falls to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the lssuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined and the amount recognised less
cumuiative amortisation.

Financial Liabilitles - Derecognition:

A financial liability Is derecognised when the obligation under the liabifity is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another, from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or medification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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Compound Instruments

An issued financial instrument that comprises of both the liability and equity components are accounted as compeound finangial instruments. The fair
value of the liability compeonent is separated from the compound instrument and the residual value is recognised as equity component of other
financial instrument. The liability component is subsequently measured at amortised cost, whereas the equity component is nat remeasured after
initial recognition. The transaction cests related to compound instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in the proportion to
the allocation of gross proceeds. Transaction costs related to equity component is recognised directly in equity and the cost related to liability
component is included in the carrying amount of the liakility component and amortised using effective interest method.

Provislons, Contingent Llabllities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive] as a result of a past event. it is probable that an
outfiow of reseurcas embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the cbligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using equivalent period government securities interast
rate. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the staternent of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and sre adjusted to reflect the current best sstimate.

Contingent lizbilities are disclosed when there is 2 possible obligation arising frem past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannet be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. However, when the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset Is no longer a contingent asset, but it 1s recognised as an asset.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of goods (equipment| or rendering of services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expacts to receive In exchange for those goods or services.

Income from services is recognized upon completion of services as per the terms of contracts with the customers, Period based services are accrued
and recognized pro-rata over the contractual period.

Revenuve is measured based on the transaction price, which Is the consideration, price concessions and Incentives, if any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected fram customers.

Amounts bilted for services in accordance with contractual terms but whare revenue is not racognized, have been classified as unearned revenue
and disclosed under current liabilities

Contract assets are recognized when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled
receivables {only act of invoicing is pending} when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per
contractual tarms. Unearned revenue (“contract liability”) is recognized when there is billing in excess of revenues.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the company expects to be entitied to in exchange for transferring distinct goods or
services to a customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for exampie taxes and duties collected on
behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a receivable is recognized when it
becomes unconditional.

Revenue from valued aptimisation services and other activities is recognised when refated services are parformed as per the contractual terms.

Rail Transport Operations

Revenue fron sale of services e.g rail freight income recognised as per the terms of contracts with customers based on stage of completion when the
outcome of the transactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably. For Fixed-price contract, revenue is recognised based on the
actuaf service provided to the end of the reparting period as a proportion of the total services to provided (Percentage of completion method)

Measement of reveaue : Estimates of revenues, cost or extent of progress toward completion are revised if tircumstances change.Any resulting
increases or decreases in estimated revanuas or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision becormne known by management.

Revenue from handling angd other ancillary services i recognised at the time of rendering of service which is at the time of loag.ig/unioading of
container/cargo.
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inland Container Depot {ICD}

Revenue from Container handling, storage and Rail & Road transportation are recognised on proportionate completion of the moverment and
gelivery of goods to the party/ designated place.

Revanue from Ground rent is recognised for the period the container is lying In the 1CD area.

Domestic Warehousing
Revenue from allotment of warehousing space and open yard area for use is accounted on accrual basis as per agreed terms of contract.

interest Income:

interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benafits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measurad reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initlal recognition,

Dividend Income:
Dividend Income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established, which Is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Contract balances
Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received conslderation {or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recogaised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities arg recognised as revenue when the Company perferms under tha
contract.

Foreign currency reinstatement and translation:

Transactions in forelgn currencies are initially recorded by the Company at rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Subseguently monetary
items are translated at closing exchange rates as on balance sheet date and the resulting exchange difference recognised in statement of profit and
loss. Differances arising on settlement of monetary items are also recognised in statement of profit and Joss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transaction. Non-monstary tems carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on transiation of non-manetary items measurad at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item {i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or 1oss is
recegnised in OC! or profit or 1oss are also recognised in OCI or profit or toss, respectively).

Forelgn exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs.
All other finance gains / losses are prasented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Employee Banefits:
Short term employee benefits are recognized a: an expente in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which the related services ara
rendered.

Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is made in accordance with the statute, and is recognised as an expense in the year in
which empicyees have rendered services.

Defined Benefit Plan

Leave encashment being a defined benefit plan is accounted for using the grojected unit credit method, on the basis of actuarial valuations carried
out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in statement of
profit and {oss.
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The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plans, is determined using the Projected Unit Cradit Method, on the basis of actuarial valuations
carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in
statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the other comprahensive
income in the year in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Taxes on income:

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax {including MAT and income tax for earlier years} and deferred tax . Tax is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in such cases
the tax is also recognised directiy in equity or in other comprehensive Incame. Any subsequent change in direct tax on items initially recognised in
equity or cther comprehensive income is also recognised In equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax provision is computed for income calculated after considering allowances and exemptions under the provisions of the applicable income
Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabliities in the Balance sheet and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabiiities are generally recognised for all taxable temparary differences, and deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that it is prabable
that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances cap be
utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheat date and reduced to the axtent that it is no longer prabable that sufficient taxable profits will be available agalnst which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Borrowing Costs:

Barrowing costs specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a2 substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use are capitalized (net of income on temporarily deployment of funds) as part of the cost of such assets. Borrowing costs
consist of Interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. For general borrowing used for the purpose
of obtaining a gualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization 1s determined by applying & capitalization rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company that
are outstanding during the pericd, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining 2 gualifying asset. The amount of berrowing
costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they occur.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average number of squity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earaings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and welghted average number of equity
and potential equity shares outstanding during the year including share options, convertible preference shares and debentures, except where the
result would be anti-dilutive. Potenttal equity shares that are converted during the year are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share,
from the beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of canversion.

Business Combination
Business Combtnations are accounted for using Ind AS 103 "Business Combination’. Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method unless the transaction is between entities under cammon control.

Business combinations involving entities that are controtled by the Company are accounted for using the pooling of interests method as follows:

The assets and liabiities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabifities.

Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting paficies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business combination had occurred from the
beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combinaticn. Howevar, where the business
ctembinatien had occcurred after that date, the prier period information is restated only from that date.

The balance of the Retained Earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with the carresponding balance
appearing in the financial staterments of the transferee or is adjusted against General Reserve,

The identities of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the transferee.

The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued pius any additional consideration In the form of ¢ash or other assets
and the ampunt of share capital of the transferor is transferred to Capital Reserve and is presented separately from Other Capitai Resarves.
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Current and non-current classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilkkies in statement of financial position based on current/non-current classification.

The Cormpany has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current liabllities and current liabilities in accordance with
Schedule |11, Division || of Companies Act, 2013.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) Expected to be realised within twelve manths after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabifity for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Al other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢} Due o be settied within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

o} There is no unconditienal right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycie is the time between the acquisition of assets for pracessing and thelr realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The Company has identified twelve months as its normal operating cycle.

Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagecus market for the asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a nan-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company usas valuation techniques that are appropriate in tha circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair vatue is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy.

Off-setting financial Instrument:

Financlal assets and liabilittes are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is 2 legally enforceabile rights to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. The legally
enfarceable rights must not be contingent on future events and must be enfarceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or counterparty.

Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
campany will comply with all attached conditions. Government prants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of rroperty, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-l @ bast. Cver the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

Segment Reporting - ldentification of Segments

An operating segment is 3 component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company's chief operating dectsion maker to make decisions for which discrete financial
information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief aperating decision maker evaluates the Company’s
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business sapments and geographic segments.
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Contributed Equity
Equity Shares are classified as equity, intrementa! costs directly attributable to the issug of new shares or options are shown In other equity as
deduction, net of tax from the proceeds.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profil before tax Is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or aceruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated based on the available information,

Olvidend Distribution

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liabllity in the period in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders.
Any Interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable is recognised directly in other equity.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS:

The preparation of the financlal statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a materlal adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in Future periods. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimatian uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financiat year, are described
below. The Company based on its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. However,
existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond
the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they cceur,

Property, plant and equipment and Intanglble Assets:

Management reviews the estirated useful Ives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be
recorded during any reporting period, The useful lives and residual values as per schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013 or are based on the
Company’s historical experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes, whichaver is more appropriate.

income Tax:

The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used In esttmates may differ from actual
outcame whith could lead to an adjustment to the amounts reported in the financlal staterents. The Company establishes provislons, based on
reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on varipus factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing
interpretations of tax reguiatians by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.

Contingencies:
Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources 2t the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any, In respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possibie to predict the butcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Impalkrment of financlal assets:

The impairment provisicns for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss. The Company uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the Inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whather there Is an indication that an asset may be impaired. |f any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or Cash Generating Units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. it is determined for an individuai asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent to those frem other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset s considered impairad and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair vaiue less cost of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken intc account. if no such transactions can be identified, an approprizte valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

Defined benefits plans:

The Cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making varicus assumgations that may differ from actual developments in the future. Thesa include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, moriality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities invalved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Recoverability of trade receivable:

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those racelvables
is required. Factors considered Include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any passible
actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Provisions:

Provisions are recognized in the period when it becomes prebable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or
events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application
of judgement to existing facts and circiimstancas, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outfiows can take place many years in the future,
the carrying amounts of provisions and liabitities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Falr value measurement of financlal Instruments :

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value |s measured using valuation technigues including the Discounted Cash Flow {DCF) modet. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establshing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assurmptions about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Recent Accounting pronouncements
On March 23, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022. This
notification has resulted into amendments in the following existing accounting standards which are applicable to company from April 1, 2022

* Ind AS 101 - First time adoption of Ind AS

» Ind AS 103 — Busingss Combination

+ Ind AS 208 — Financial Instrument

+ Ind AS 16 —~ Property, Plant and Equipment

+ Ind AS 37 —Provisions, Contingant Liabilities and Contingent Assats

= ind AS 41 — Agriculture

Application of above standards are not expected ta have any significant impact on the company’s financial statements.
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5A ETT D By T
{Rupees in!akhs)
Partliulars - : : - Freehold Land Bulldfiigs:  -Plant and Equiprivents Vehicles ‘Cotmputer Railway Terminals Leasehoid Total
. . ; d Impravements

Gross Carrying Value
As at April 1, 2020 43,310.61 A4,133.37 3136136 396.75 44,13 109.15 14,388.57 161.15 133,905.09
Additians & - 2.83 1.76 i - E - 4,589
Disposals e . {22,914.65) E {2.80) {0.29) i - {22,917.74}
As at March 31, 2021 43,310.61 44,123.37 8,449.54 393.51 41.33 108.86 14,388.57 161.15 110,991.94
Additions - - .44 - . - - - 0.94
Disposals # g & 3 - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 43,310.61 44,133.37 §,449.98 358.51 41.33 108.86 14,388.57 161.15 110,992.38
Accumylated Depreclation
&s at Aprll 1, 2020 - 6,504.77 12,563.64 221.80 23.07 95.20 4,637.07 55.25 24,164).80
Depreciation for the year 1,557.20 13380 54.51 567 0.32 1.162.16 44.18 4,102 .05
Deductions - {9,875.27) 2 {2.21) (600 - 2 19,877.48)
&5 at March 31, 2021 - 8,101.97 4,026.38 27531 26.53 95.52 5,799.23 99.43 18B,425.37
Depreciation for the year - 1,595.48 757.99 S4.81 498 23 1,162.17 44,12 3619.78
Deductions E: 2 o & = 5 = H -
As at March 31, 2022 - 5,697.45 4,784.37 331.12 31.51 95.75 6,961.40 143.55 22,045.15
Neat Carrying value as at Mareh 31, 2022 43,310.61 34,435.92 3,665.61 67.3% 9.82 13.11 7.422.17 17.60 88,5947.23
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2021 43,210.61 36,031.40 4,423.16 122.20 14.80 13.34 8,589.34 51.72 92,566.57
Net Carrying value as at April 1, 2020 43,310.61 37,628.60 18,797.72 174.95 21.06 13.95 9,751.50 105.90 109,504.29

Note: 1} The carrying value of property, plant and equipment (PPE) as at 31st Mar'2022 is Rs. 88,947.23 fakh {including carrying value of free hold land of Rs. 43,310.61 takh). The Company has not taken into consideration impacts of impairment, if any,
in the value of its PPE, since the Company has nat made full assessmient of Impairment as required by " IND AS 36" on * Impairment of Assets”. The management of the Company Is evaluating various optlons, Including restructuring of its business
operations and entering into long term contracts with customers, mawimumutilisation of facility, capturing business from development of DFC & Jewsr airport in PFT etc.

2} Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in the name of Company

Description of item of Property Gross  Carrying|Title déed held in|Title deed holder bs a|Property held|Reason for not being held in
value the name of promoter, director or{since date the.name of the Company
relative of|
promoter/director
43.23 acre of land situated at Khurja 7499,35|Arshiva Limited  (No 1st April, 2019 |Due to Demerger, this land is

transferred in ARIL as per
scheme but transfer in Gowvt.
records is under process.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Total

Gross Carrying Value

As at April 1, 2020 874.04
Additions 5
Disposals (331.90)
As at March 31, 2021 542.14
Additions .
Disposals (111.76)
As at March 31, 2022 430.38
Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2020 305.14
Depreciation for the year 232.88
Deductions (138.27)
As at March 31, 2021 399.75
Depreciation for the year 95.19
Deductions (75.54)
As at March 31, 2022 419.40
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 10.98
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2021 142.39
Net Carrying value as at April 1, 2020 568.90




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

i L R e Lo o
{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars - Computer Software Rail ticenses fees Total
Gross Carrying Value

As at Apil 1, 2020 713.31 3,208.33 3,521.64
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -

As at March 31, 2021 713.31 3,208.33 3,921.64
Additions - - -
Disposals* - {3,208.33) {2,208.33)
As at March 31, 2022 713.31 - 713.31

Accumulated Amortisation

As at April 1, 2020 446.88 1,000.27 1,4472.15
Amortisation for the year 95.98 249.91 349.89
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2021 546.86 1,250.18 1,797.04
Amaortisation for the year 99.93 227.97 327.90
Deductions* - [1,478.15} {1,478.15}
As at March 31, 2022 646.79 - 616.79
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 66.52 - 66.52
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2021 166.45 1,958.15 2,124.60
Net Carrying value as at April 1, 2020 266.43 2,208.06 2,474.49

* Note - Railway license {Categary- |, CTO) is sold through SARFAES! Act by EARC e-auction sale in Rs. 1200 lakhs dated 28th Feb'22, Net book value as
on 28th Feb'2022 is Rs. 1730.20 lakhs. Loss on sale of License of Rs. 530.20 lakhs shown in other expensas note no. 35.




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

¥ NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS {Rupees in lakhs)
As at Asat Ag at
Particolars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
investments
[Unwproted Investments carried at Cast}
I in Equity J of Sul
AMD Business Suppart Services Private Limited {10,000 sharss and face value Rs. 10 each} i00 - -
Total 1.04 3 =
B DTHER NON CUURRENT FINANCLAL ASSETS [Aupees in dakhs)
N Asat As at A at
Particulurs March 31,2022 | March31,2020 |  Apel 1, 2020
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Financial assets carrled at amortised cost
Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity - 36.69 6.84
Security Deposits - - 7.7
Financial Guarantes 5 309.93 £35.30
Toeal - 33667 §4%9.91
k| OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS (Rupees in lakbs)
- @ i . Asat As at As 3t
R, March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023 Apifi1,-2020
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Capitat Advances 1,041.64 1,001.64 953,54
Advances pther than Capital advances
- Other Advances - gratulty 22.30 - =
Others
- Prepaid Rent - - 0.1z
- TOS Recsivabie 230.43 239,93 362.35
- Service tax paid under protest @ E 514
Tatal 1,294.43 1,291.63 1,321.26
10 CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES [Aupees in lakhs)
s As 2t Asat Asat
Msirch 35, 2022 | March 31, 3021 April 1, 2020
Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - - -
Trade Receivables cansidered good - Unsecured 28.15 351.39 1.072.74
Trade Receivable which have Significant increass in Credit Risk 750 2594 47.10
Trade Receivable -credit Impairad - - -
35.65 3178.33 1.124.24
Less: Provision for expected credit loss 7.50 2694 4710
7.50 26.94 47.10
Total 2815 351.3% 1,077.74
MNotes:
a) Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at 31 March'22 {Rupees In lakhs}
Outstanding for following period from dus dgte of payment Total
Pasticulars Notdee | Lessthen | Smonths-2 2 yean 23 yaars Wors than 3 years
Pty Y
ol 1 Trade Receivabl
Considered good 21.16 6.99 - - - 28.15
-Which have significant increase In credit risk . § - 7.50 - - 750
-Craditimpaired = - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivahles
Considered good - 5 - o i X _
-Which have significant increase In credit risk . - - - - -
-Credit impaired - - & 3 g _ -
Totad 21.16 .99 - 1.50 - - 3555
Less: Allowanee for doubtful debts {exp d cred - Mass all ) - # - {7.50) - - {750
Total 11,16 6.99 E 5 - - 28.15
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Yrade Receivable ageing schedule as at 31 March'21

[Rupees in takhs}

Outstanding for following perlod from due date of payment Total
Particulars Notdue | Lesathans | 6months-1 1Zyams Z3yean More than 3 years
monthy year
Undisputed Trade Recelvabl
Lonstdered good 11143 20887 11.53 15.48 - - 351.38
-Which have significant increase in cradit risk - - 7.45 19.49 - 2694
-Credit impaired Z - - - . -
puted Trade Recehvabl
-Considered good £ E = = = E =
-Which have significant increase in credit sk - ¥ = " § =
-LCredit impaired x = " - -
Totad 11141 W3.97 18.98 33.98 - - 37833
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit ioss allowanca) |7.45) {19.439) S (26.54)
Total 111.41 208.97 11.53 19.48 2 - 351.39
Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at 31 March'20 {Rupees In lakhs]
Outstanding for follo riod from due date of payment Total
Particulary Wotdur | Lessthmn® | Smontia-1 12years 2 years More than Syears
enviths e
Undisputed Trade Recelvabl
-Considered good B4.93 B1057 17243 051 214 F.16 1,077.74
-Which have significant increase in cradit risk - 4 37.29 0.51 214 .18 4710
-Credit impaired -
puted Trade Recetvabl
-Considered good -
-Which have significant Increase in cred|t risk -
-Cradit impaired £
Total 24.93 BiQ.57 209.72 102 4.28 13.32 1,124.84
Less: Allowance for doubtful debis ( d cradit loss ali ce) - - {37.29) {0.51} {2.14) (718} [47.10)
Total £4.93 $10.57 172,43 D51 114 71.16 1,077.74
. Asat As at As mt
Movanent in the Boubtful debts / Expécted Crodit loss Allswance
-l 31 March'22 31 March'21 1 April ‘20
Balance as the beginning of the year 2594 47.10 29.11
Maovement [ expected credit loss allowance 119.44) {20.15) 17.99
Balance at the end of the year 7.50 16.94 4710




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRULCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TQ FINANCEAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Rupees in lakhs)

11  CURREMT ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
. Asat Asat Asat
il Morch31, 2092 | March 31, 2021 Wit 1,2020
Balances with banks in current accounts 17.51 3377 78.15
Lash on hand 0.01 0.12 0.37
Total 17.52 33.90 76.52
12  CURRENT ASSETS - LOANS {Rupess in lakhs)
Asat Asat At
il s 2
Fai it March 31, 2022 | Maich 31,2021 Aprif 1, 2020
Loan to others vonskiered good - Unsecured 215.37 % 307.97
Loan to othars which have Significant increase |n Cradit Risk 2 :: :
Loan to othars -credit Impalred - - -
Loan to Related Partiss considered goad - Unsecured 2,437 84 2,461.49 1,597.50
Total 2,663.21 2.461.49 1,505.47
13 CUARENT ASSETS - OTHER BANK BALANCES [Rupees in lakhs)
- . Asat Asat |
Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin monay 103.37 26583 2B4.62
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit - 9.26 4.72
Total 103.37 275.45% 189.34
14 DTHER CURRENT FINANCLAL ASSETS {Rupess in kakhs}
7 ] Aa it Agat Asat
i - Muaich33, 2022 | Muarch 35, 2021 Apeil 1, 202D
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Flnancia assets carried at amortised cost
Security Deposits 91.28 116.15 127.19
Financial Guarantas 309.98 306.28 353,19
Total 391.26 422.43 5{H).38
15 . OTHER CURRENT ASSETS {Rupees In lakhs)
o ' b s HArm Agat As it
g - March 30, 3022 | Warch 31, 2071 Aprit 1, 2020
- Advances ta Suppliers 23,26 19.76 3086
- Advanres to Employeas 2184 107.24 16.88
-Cthers 003 0403 003
Others
- Othar receivable 110.24 35113 3566
- Prepaid axpenses 528 436 44 85
-Interest Receivabie 20.7% - 011
- TD5 Receivable - - 1.19
- Balance with Gevernment Authority 15.55 21.30 87642
Total 256.99 547.82 1,635.00




ARSHEYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STAYEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(Ru an lakhs

Asat
i

I Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares
30,75,00,000 [As 2t March 31, 2021 36,75,00,000 . As at Aprd 1, 2020: 30.75.00,000 | Fauity shares of Rupees ? each 6,150.00 6,150 00 £, 150.00
Preference Sharey
35,50,000 {As at March 31, 2021: 35 50,000, & at April §, 2070: 35,50,000] Preference Shares of Rupees 10 each 355.00 35500 35500
Total 5,305 D¢ 5,505.00 6.50&

B} dzsued, Subscribed & Fully Paid vp . s =

Total - = =

i} Share Capdtal Suspense Account

[in consequence to Demarnger of Arshiya Limiled |AL} Domestic Business Undertaking, 13,11,37,958 Equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully
paid up 13 to be ssied to shareholders of AL as ¢ deration w.e f. inted data i.e. Aprl 1st, 2019

Pending issus and allotment of eguity shares, the Face value of shares to be allotted is shown against "Share Suspense Account™

262276 163276 262276

Tota 162276 262176 1,621.76

#] ReconcRiation of 2eroX optionaly convertible red bie preference shares outstanding a3 at the beginning and end of the year

P e | twwesaintekns

Preference Share Capital

Zero Percent Optianaly C: ible Red: bla Pref Shares of Rupess 10 2ach
Al April 1, 310 1,300,000 12.00
Issued during the vear ' -
Al March 31, 2021 1,20,000 1200
fsstied during the year

AL March 3%, 2022 1,200,000 12.00

Terms/rights attached to rquity shares
The company has only one cizss of equity shares having par value of Rupees 7 per share. Each hoier of equity shares is entitied to one vota per share. The company déclares and pays dividends
in Inclian rupees, The dividend prapasad by the Baard of Direciors i$ subject to the approval of the sharehakders [n the ensuing Annual General Meating.

fathe event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares wil ba entitied 10 receive assats of the atter di of all iy i The distribution

will be i proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Termyfrights attached to preference shares

The Company has bsued & alkstted 1,20,000 Zerp % DCAPS of Rupees 10 aach at a pranmbum of Aupees 290 per OCRPS aggregating to Rupees 1, 200.00 kakhs.

Tenure of OCRP'S: & years,

Conversion option: The right of conversion shall be exarcisad at the last day of sicth yaar fram the date of allotment of the DCRPS, only in avent of fallure on part of the Comparny to redeem the
QCAPS or inabiltty of the fromotars to buybach the OCRPS.

Redemption: The DCRFS Senies 1 shall be red  in one single install of Rupeas 1200 lakh {including pramium) at the end of Gth year from the date of allotment of QCRPS - Sethes |,

. Detalls of shares 1o be allcted more than 5% equity shares in the company on Record date”

Kama-of the sharnholder : Wt March A, 2072
: Number of shoves to' e ; 7z
3 - altobed 4 hiokling :

Equity shares of Rupees 3 each fully paid

Promoter

Mr. Ajay 5. Mittal 19178219 14.62%

Brs. Archana A Mittal 3,75,98,638 2B.67%

Edetweiss Asset R ian Carmp rry Limited {On behalf

of various trusts) 3,00.25.505 21.50%
¥. efp proposed to be alloted on Recoed dute
As at 315t March 2027

S ; oo Ieolswessthel -
e a _ Promciersolime  |ondefthayar | oV Shared

Promuoter Mr. Ajsy 5. Mitkal 1,51.73,21% 14.62%

Promater Mrs, Archana A Mittal 3,75,98,63% 28.67%
Detadts of tharehokiers holding more than 5% preference shares in the comparry
Name of tha shareholder At 3t March 35, 2022 - af March 31, 521 #d wt Apri 1, 2020

@ oo ) Numwbr 96 Yiieing - -Nigmbet % liokding Rumber % hoiding
Preference shares of Rupess 10 sach fully pald
Bank of Baroda LHLOOD 100.00 1,320,000 100.00 1,20.000 100.60

Note:- Erstwhie Arzhiva Industrial & Qlstributlon Hub Limived (A1DHL) which merged into Cempany has allotted 1,20,080 Zero Percent Optionalty Convertible fiedeemabla Praferance Shares
{DCRES) at Rs. §00G/- o on 18.01.2018 apgregating to R 12,00.00,000/ to Bank of Baroda on preferential basis in lieu of and against comversion of lasn amounting o Rs. 12,00,00,000/-
purtuant to the OTS terms and conditions dated 26th Dacembas, 301 7.

However, by wirtue of merger of AIOHL with ARIL pursuant to the Hon'ble NCLT Mumbal Bench order dated 5th December, 2015 and as per scheme, the Campany 15 i process of necessary
coumplianesas related to GCRPS.

F\ MIURAR A




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Asat

Asat

{Rupees in lakhs)

Other comprehensive income
Other adjustments

2.60

Particulars 5 . ) L
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Retained Earnings {65,276.89) (44,869.77) (28,601.98)
Capital Reserve 30,682.15 30,682.15 30,682.15
Equity Component of Zero% Opticnally Convertible
Redeemable Preference shares (OCRPS) 519.09 519.09 519.09
Total {34,075.65) {13,668.53) 2,599.26
{a) Retained Earnings {Rupees in lakhs)
: Patticulars -Asat As at _ Asat
T March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Opening balance (44,869.77) {28,601.98)
Add/{Less):
Met Profit/{Loss} for the year (20,409.72} (16,277.48)

9.69

Closing balance

(65,276.89)

{44,869.77)

(28,601.98)

{b) Capital Reserve

{Rupees in lakhs)

e Asat. Asat Asat
Particulars L _ o L .
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Cpening balance 30,682.1% 30,682.15
Add/(Less): Transaction during the year - s
Closing balance 30,682.15 30,682.15 30,682.15

{c) Nature & purpose of Reserves

Retained Earnings :

Retained Earnings are the profits/losses of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.

Capital Reserve

The surplus arising on recording of assets & liabilities and nullification of inter company balances as per scheme of acquisition
of Domestic undertaking over the shares cancelled and consideration recorded is transferred to Capital Reserve.

Equity Component of Zero% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference shares (OCRPS)
The fair value of liability component is deducted from the fair value of instruments as a whole, with the resulting residual

amount being recognised as the equity component.




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

NON CURRENT BORROWINGS [Rupees in lakhs)
5 As at As at As at
L March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 AprH 1, 2020
Secured
-Term Loans
From Others (refer note 18.1 & 18.2 below) . 42,224.19 46,577.11
Liabiiity Component of Compound Financial Instruments 1,071.43 956.63 B854.14
Total 1,071.43 43,180.82 47,431.25

1B8.1 HRAIL Division- Rupee term lpan from other parties :-
- Rupee term loans {including current maturity} of Rupees 34,024.82 lakhs {March 31, 2021 : Rupees 33,917.72 lakhs and March 31, 2020 : Rupees 33,787.05

18.2

lakhs} are securad by

{1) Details of Security

i. First charge on all movable assets {including rakes, containers, equipment’s| and immovable properties of the Rail Division both present

and future on pari passu basis.

il. 5econd charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets of the Rail Division on pari passu basis.

iii. Personal guzrantees from Promoters of erstwhile Holding Company.
iv. Corporate Guarantee from erstwhile Holding Company.

v. Pladge of 100% equity shares of ARIL i.e. pre merger of AIDHL & ATHL with the company scheme sharsholding held by Promoters.

{2) Yerms of Interest rate:

- on Term Loans from others 10% p.a. compounded manthly, payable haif yearly.

{3] Terms of repayment :-

(Rupees in lakhs)
Financil Yesr " Amount
2019-2020 1,744.63
2020-2021 £,13%.19
2021-2022 2,276.52
2022-2023 23,954.16
Tatal 34,114.50
{4) Amount and perlod of default in repayment of borrowings
{Rug in lakhs)
N As at March 31, 2022
: Pattisaliiy Amount ‘Period of Derault”
Current maturity of Rupee Term loans -Others 1,744.63 2019-20
6,139.19 2020-21
2,276.52 2021-22
23,954.16 *
Total 24,114.50

* During the year, 3l the toans along with interest & other dues are recalled by the fenders.

{5} The amartised cost disclosed above I3 net off of incidental cost of borrowings aggregating to Rupees 74.21 lakhs for March 31, 2022 Rupees 196.77 lakhs for

March 31, 2021 and Rupees 327.44 lakhs for April 1, 2020.

ICD & Domestic Warehausing Division- fupee term loan from other parties :-

- Rupee term loans {including current maturity) of Rupees 26,598.44 lakhs {March 31, 2021 : Rupees 26,596.55 lakhs and April 1, 2020 : Rupees 26,584.32

lakhs) are secured by
{1} Details of Security

i. First charge on all movable assets and immovable assets of the ICD & Domestic Warehousing Division both present and future on pari

passu basls.

ii. First charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets of the ICD & Domestic Warehousing Division on parl passu basis.

iil. Personal guarantees from Promoters of erstwhile Holding Company.
iv. Corporate Guarantee from erstwhile Holding Company.

v. Pledge of 100% equity shares of AIDHL i.e. pre merger of AIDHL & ATHL with the company scheme sharehoiging held by Promaters,

{2} Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from others 10% p.a. compounded monthly, payable half yearhy,
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{3} Terms of repayment :-

{Rup in lakhs}
Financlal Year Ambunt
2015-2020 1.885.69
2020-2021 4,034.74
2021-2022 2,209.30
2022-2023 18,470.27
Total 26,600.00
{3) Amount and peried of default In repayment of borrowings
{Rupees in lakhs}
; #As at March 31, 2022
., i Amotmt Period of Default™
Current maturity of Rupee Term loans -Others 1,885.69 2018-20
4,034.74 2020-21
2,209.30 2021-22
18,470.27 e
Tatal 26,600.00

* During the year, all the ipans along with interest & other dues are recailed by the lenders,

{5} The amortised tost disclosed above is net off of incidentat cost of borrowings aggregating to Rupees 1.56 lakhs for March 31, 2022 and Rupees 3.45 lakhs for

March 31, 2021 and Rupees 5.68 lakhs For April 1, 2020.

MNON CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES {Rupees In lakhs)
y Asat- Asat Asat
Farslculars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Aprit1,2020
Lease liability (Refer Note 38) E 4697 254 .64
Total - 46.97 254,64
OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {Rupees in lakhs)
' Particutars Asat ., hsar _ Asat
Fartutars Mirch 31, 2082 March 31, 2021 Aprll 1, 2020
Financial Liabilities at amaortised cost
Advance warehouse rent - - 198
Security Deposit - 2 3353
Total - - 35.51
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21 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES - FROVISIONS [Rupees i Jakhs}
. As at Asat As ot
Porticulars Morch 31,2022 | Warch31,2021 |  april1, 2020
Prowvisien for employee benefits
Gratulty [Refer Nots 39) - 10.06 43,22
Leave encashment [Refer Note 33) 1674 2836 38.21
Total 16.74 38.42 21.43

{Rupees In lakhs)

22 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
5 ; 2 Asat Az at Asat
ilas ;
i March31,2022 | March31, 2021 |  Aprit,2020
Non Current
Government Grants (Refer note no. 27.1) 6274 97.82 1,266.33
Total 62.74 97.82 1,266.83
23 _CURRENT BORROWINGS {Rupees in lakhs)
As ot Asat Asat
Farticulars - March 31,2022 | March31,7021 | apri 12020
Secured
[a} Loan from other party (Refer note 23.1 below) 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
{b} Current maturities of long term borrowings
Tarm Loans from banks (Refer Note 23.2)* 4,212.28 4,219.78 6,910.60
Term Loans from others {Refer Note 18.1 B 18.2 & 23.3) 60,622.93 13,280.08 16.764.27
Unsecurad
{c} Loans from Related pertias (Refer note 23.4 beiow & 43) 4.35 4,35 3.70
{d J Blll discounting [Refer note 23.5 below ) - - 7579
Total 67.846.61 25,513.71 26,754.36

* Include Loan aggregating to Rupees 4,215.28 |akhs ({March 31, 2021: Rupees 4,219 28 |akhs and March 31, 202¢; Rupses £,910.60 lakhs! recailed by banks,

231 KD&D Ic Wareh g Divislon- Short term loan from other party
Term loans of Rupees 3,000 lakhs {(March 31, 2021 : Rupees 3,000 lakhs and April 1, 2020 : Rupees 3,000 lakhs) are secured by
{a} Dataiks of Security

bl I | flable to the existing lenders of ICD & Domastic Warehausing Olvisien as per the Deeds of

i} First Ranking charges on all presant and futurs cash flows, all assets and r
Hypothecation,

il) Personal Suarantee of both promater directors of erstwhile Parent Company
iii} Corporate Guarantse of arstwhlle Parent Company

{b} Ratu of mterest: 18% p.a

{c ) Repay : Bullet pay after expiry of 2 months,

{d] Amount and period of default in repay of borrowings: Default in repay

of principal of Rupees 3,000 lakhs since March 31, 2019. The same has been racall by the landers,

#3.2  RAIL Division- Rupee term loan from Banks :-
- Rugree term boans of Rupees 4,219.28 Jakhs {March 31, 2021 : Rupees 4,219.28 lakhs and April 1, 2020 : Rupees §,910.60 lakhs) are secured by
(1] Details of Security
I First charge on all movable assets (including rakes, iners, equipment’s) and imm.

future on pari passu basts.

it Second charge by way of Hypothecatlon of the entire current assets of the Rail Divislon on pari passu basis.
. Pereonal guarantees from Promaters of erstwhile Holding Company.
v, Corparate Guarantee from erstwhile Halding Company/ Pramoter.

ble proparties of the Rafl Dlvlston both present and

v. Fledige of 100% equity shares of ARILi.e. i.e. pra merger of AIDHL & ATHL with the company scheme shareholding held by P
(2} Terms of nterest rate:
- an Term Leans from Banks from 10.45% p.a - 16.25% pa.
{3} Terms of repayrent :-
[Rupees in takhs}
T Term Loans
3 3
Financiaf Yo, . . froni B
2915-2016 i, 73249
2018-2019* 1,834.00
Total 4,219.28

* Refer note no. 52

{4) Ampune and period of default in repayment of borrowings
{Rupees In lakhs)

L, e [pertodor Py
Current maturity of Rupae Term loans 2015-2016 1,385.78
2018-2012 1,834.00
Total 4,219.28

Iz 3




34

235

24

4.1

24.2

24.3

ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
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RAIL Dhvislon- Rupes term loan from Cthers :-

- Rupee term loans of Aupees NIL {March 31, 2021 : Rupees NiL and Aprid 1, 2020 : Rupees 2,960.00} are secured by

{2] Details of Security

i. First pari passu chargs on all presant and futura cash flaws of the Ral Division.
IhFirst pari passu charge on all movable assets and immovable assets of the Rzil Division.
Ht. Charge on cash Aows and movable assets by deed of Hypothecation.

Iv. Pergonal guarantees from Promaoters of erstwhile Halding Company.
¥. Corporate Guarantee from erstwhile Holding Company.

{2) Terms of Interest rata:
-on Term Loans from others @ 20% p.a pavable quarterly

{3} Terms of rapayment :-
- Repayment shall be by way of bullet payment after expiry of 48 months.

interest free loan upto 1 year and repayable on demand.

allt discounting facllity
Funding limit of Rs. 3 crore with maximum payrment period for individual invoices is S0 days against receivables of one of the customer.

(b} Rate of Interest: 18% p.a

CURRENT LIABILITIES- TRADE PAYABLES [Rupees in fakhs)
T T Asat z Agat At 2t
g5 March 31,3022 | March31 1 | 1, 2020
Total outstanding dues of Micra and 5mall Enterprises [Refer note 41 & 55) 7283 £2.47 44,20
Total cutstanding dues of creditors Other than Micro and Small Enterprises {Refer Note 55)* B03.37 200,09 1,421.0%
Toeal 67220 951.56 1,465.29
|Rupees in lakhs}
Undisputed Trade Payable
-duas of micro and small enterprises 1641 42,97 12.45 . - 1183
-Others 10142 5148 167.79 S8 18494 605.37
Disputed Trade Payable
-dues of micre and small enterprises - - = = =
Orthers ¥ E: = E: - E
Total 117.83 95.45 181.2% 98.74 134.94 678.20

Trade Payable age

schedule as at 31 March'21

{Rupees In lakhs)
e

Undisputed Trade Pavable

-dues of micro and small enterprises

-Others

Disputed Trade Payabie
<fues of micro and small enterprisas

-Others

39.60
409.10

62.47
200.0%

Total

952.56

hedule as at 31 March'20

Trade Payabie ageing
- o o

[Rupmes in lakhs)

Undisputed Trade Payable
—dues of micre and small anterprises 1827 25.70 0.23 - = 44.20
-Others 141.78 981.02 111.00 167.40 1589 142109
Disputed Trade Payable :
-dues of micra and small enterprises - - . 8 - B
Othets 3 5 = - - -
Total 160.05% 1,006.72 111.23 167.40 19.85 1,465.28
CURRENT LEASE LIABILITIES {Rupeas in kakhs}
[ .
o 7, ) . Asat As ot As-at
----- i March31, 2022 | March 33,2021 Apsil 1, 2020
Lease Liability (Refar Nate 38} 14.04 121.58 36394
Total 14.04 121.59 363.94
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OTHER CURRENT FENANCIAL LIABILITIES

{Rupees In lakhs|

Asat As at As at
Fartiutars March 31,2022 | March31,2021 | aprit1, 2020
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Interest accrued and due on borrowings* 51.579.74 37,851.58 32,192.43
interest pavable on short tecm loan 0.4 Q.09 .
Advanca warehouse rent - 1.98 9.19
Security Depasit 166.50 118.12 59.14
Others
Project Creditors{ Rafer Note 55) 1,111.73 1,111.73 1,111.74
Empioyesa’s Dues ** 225.50 161.40 171,36
Payable for Expensas E69.49 711038 464, 85
Other Payables - 2186
Total 53,758.00 39,956.03 34,030.57

*Include interest accrued and due on Term Loans aggragating ta Rupess 51,575.74 lakhs (March 31, 2021 Rupees 37,251.58 Jakhs and April 1, 2030: Rupess 32,152.43 lakhs) recalled by

banks and othars.
**Inciude Full and Final settlament of Rupees 105.55 Jakhs (March 31, 1021 £2.3% lakhs and Aprll 1, 2020 R

" Amount and pevied of default in payment of interest on borrowlags

upees 39.01 lakhs)

{Rupees in lakbs)

. March 31, 2022
L Banks Others
Défault :
Interest accrued & due on berrowing 2013-14 $65.05 -
2014-15 T4p.00 -
2015-15 1,035.94 2
2016-17 1,287.23 %
2017-18 1,512.65 25191
2018-19 242398 4,700.96
2019-20 1,190.28 13,694.06
2020-21 2,591.63 539396
2021-27 2,800.78 11.990.30]
Total 15 547,55 36,032.19
27 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES {Rupees In kakhs}
OB R ; Avat As ar Asar
Eorsiclas Mirch 35, 2022 | Warchi 31,3021 | Apel 1, 2020
Current
Unearned Rayenus - - 4296
Advance received from Customars - £8.33 2004
Government Grants {Refer note no. 27.1} 35.07 35.07 36549
Others
Statutory Uabilities* 889.64 85859 1,225.18
Interest on Delayed payment of Statutory dues 856.28 72231 113237
Total 1,780.99 1,6H4.40 2.786.04
* Statutory llablities include TDS,Goods & Service Tax, Service tax,PF,E5IC payable, Employes pi 13} tax
27.1 GOVERNMENT GRANTS [Rupees in Jakhs)
W - A3 at Asat Asat
Faiticutars March31,2022 | ‘Warch 31,2001 |  Apri1, 2020
Qpening baiance 132,89 1,632.32 183781
Releasad to statement of profit and logs {35.08) {1,495,43) {365.49)
Closing balance 97.81 132.89 1,632.32
Current 35.07 35.07 36543
Mon Current. 62.74 97.52 1,266.83
28 CURRENT LIABILITIES - FROVISHONS {Rupees In lakhs}
o S @ As ot Asat Asat
I . March31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 2020
Current
Pravision for emplayes benefits
Leave encashment [Refer Note 39) 4.79 7.43 12,52
Total 4,79 7.43 12.52
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29 REVENUE FROM QOPERATIONS {Rup in Jakhs)
Year eanded Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rail Freight Income 5,994.00
Road Freight Income - 570.95
Handling Income 30.20 247.51
Terminal Income 279.35 301.63
Rent Income 468.43 518.28
Qther operating Income 50.15 53.24
Total §28.13 7,785.561
OTHER INCOME {Rupees in lakhs)
” Year ended Yaar ended
Berticutnes March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Interest income on Financial assets carred at amortised cost
Unwinding of interest on Security deposit 0.14 188
Other Interest incame
Interest on Bank fixed deposits 7.94 17.44
Interest income on income tax refund 6.50 13.54
Interest income on service tax - Q.62
Interest on Loan to others 2311 -
Interest on others - 7.99
Other income
Government Grants 35.07 1,4958.43
Gain on madification of Lease liability 4.78 24.00
Sundry Balance/ Excess provision Written Back 25836 23.76
Excess provision Written Back-ECL 26.64 18.58
Gain on sale of Fixed Asset - 1,507.20
Rent concession 4.38 27.45
Miscellaneous lncome 50.05 543.95
Total 417.37 4,086.07
COST OF OPERATIONS {Rupees in lakhs)
» Year ended Year ended
e March 31,2022 | March 38,2021
Rail Freight Expenses - 4,581.54
Road Freight Expenses 041 56%.14
Handling Expenses & 193.32
Terminal Expenses - 28133
Other operating expenses 47.56 142,77
Total 47.97 5,868.10
EMPLQYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE {Rupees In lakhs)
" ' ' . . Year anded Year ended
Parthculars S s
: T March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 5P5 54 880.14
Contribution to provident and oth. - funds Jnag! 36.83
Share-based payments G 108.95
Staff welfare expenses 10.14 18.44
Total 617.66 1,053.36

Arir A Ad
ot s
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33 FINANCE COST {Rupees in lakhs)
Year ended Yoar ended
Pa
riicaters March 31,2022 | March 33,2021
Interest expense on Flnanclal liabilities measured at amortised cost
interest expense on borrowings 15,155.16 14,964.07
Interest expense on Sacurity Deposit 2.28 9.99
Interest expense others
Interest on Delayed Fayment of Statutory Dues 129.12 127.29
Interest an MSME vendors 4,84 1.10
Other borrowing costs
Guarantee Commission Expense 306.28 363.27
Interest on Lease Liability 4.88 43.86
Bill Discounting charges - 2.14
Finance cost on derecogrition of guarantee commissicn - 18.97
Finance cost on Amaortisation of Liability Compenent 114.80 102.50
Bank processing charges - 9.00
Bank charges 0.95 6.35
Total 15,718.41 15,648.58
34 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES {Rupees in lakhs)
' R Year anded Year énded
Faticiiate March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Depreciation an tangible assets 3,619.78 4,202.05
Amortisation on intangible assets 327.99 349.88
Depreciation on right to use assets 95.19 232.88
Total 4,042 B6 4,784.81
35 OTHER EXPENSES {Rupees in lakhs)
. . Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 5.68 10.78
- {thers 68.36 95.13
Advertisement 4.69 5.65
Payments to Auditars {Refer note below) 15.25 16.00
Electricity charges 61.65 60.81
insurance 451 1531
Legal and professional fees 108,59 180.28
Rates and taxes 397 3511
Rent 102.27 B85.57
Printing and Stationary 6.09 7.24
Office Expenses .44 16.80
Security charges 11283 11822
Telephone and internet expenses 11.77 13.34
Travelling & conveyance expenses 22.10 39.91
Vehicle Expenses 76 21.40
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 7.0 -
Miscelianeous expenses 121.96 72.56
Loss on sale of intangible assets £30.20 A
Total 1,228.32 794.31

As Statutory Auditor

Audit Fee

15,25

16.00

Total

15.25

16.00
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Earnings per share {Basic and DHuted}

Year ended Year ended
Particul
e ‘March 21, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit available to equity shareholders
Profitf{Loss) after tax {4} {Rupess in Lakhs} {20,409.72) 116,277.48)
Add: interest adjustment on account of 0% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares {OCRPS) 114.80 102.50
Total Prafit/ {Loss) for the year for diluted EPS {Rupees in Lakhs) {20,294.92} {16,174.98}
Number of equity shares
Weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding {Basic) (B}** 131,137,958 131,137,958
Add: Adjustment on zccount of 0% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares {OCRPS) 120,000 120,000
Total Weighted average number of equity shares /OCRPS {Diluted) [C ) 131,257,958 131,257,958
Nominal Value of an equity share [Rupees) 10 10
Basic & DHuted earnings per share{A/B] [Rupees) {15.56} {12.411
* Diluted Earning per share when anti dilutive is restricted to Basic farnings Per Share.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENT
({To the extent not provided for)
Capltal Commitments
[Rupees in lakhs)
s o Year ended Year ended Year ended
Particulars . )
hsinas SN March 31,2022 March 31,2021 April 1,2020
Esumate}:i‘arnount of contracts rerr:a_lnrng 1o be executad on capital account and 1528.14 1,566.14 1,144.44
not pi d for {net of ad paid}
Cash outflow expactad on execution on such capital contracts
Contingent liabilities:
[Rupees in lakhs)
i ‘Year ended Year anded Year ended
Partioulars, ) - . )
Fe: March 31,2022 March 31,2021 Apirl 1,2020
{#) Carrier Bond (Bond has been given ta Princlpal of custom for the safeguarding = - 10,000.00/
duty liability on gaods movement from respactive ports to ICD Khurfa}
{b} Custadian cum Carrier Bond (Company has provided bond In favour of custom 1,000.00 1,000.00 1.000.00
department for duty free movernent of goods from respectlve ports to ICD
khurja)
{¢) Bank 100.00 100.00 100.00
{d} Letter of Credit | Latter of Credit given in favour of Railways for availing e- 100.00 100.00
freight facliity for haulage payment}
{e) Claims Against the Company not acknowiedgsad as Debt 2333 2339 23.39
{f} Service tax Cemand - - 51.55
L} Callector of stamps B58.04 - -
Mo Cash outflow Is expected In near futere
LEASES
Movement of carrying vatue of right of use of assets
{Rupees in fakhs)
S Year andad Yaur ended Yoor ended
Particulary.- : :
- March 31, 2022 March 31, 2071 April 1, 2020
O g Balance 142.39 SE8.90 -
Additi recogrised on implementation of Ind AS 116 {transition date} & - £74.04
Modifications during the year [36.22) 1183.63) -
Less: Depreciation charge for the year [35.19]) |232.88) [305.14)
Closing Batance 10.98 142,34 568.90
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Movment of Lease llabllitles
{Rupees in lakhs])
T Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021 April 1,2020
Opening Balance 168.56 518.5% -
Additions during the year = - 874.04
Maodifications during the year (36.22) {193.63) s
Add: intersst axp on unwinding |ease liabilities 4.88 43.86 96.54
Less: Gain on madification of lease Hability 4.78) {24.08) -
Less: Rent concession 14.38) {27.49) -
Less: Payment of laase llabljities 1114.02) {248.67) {352.00}
Closing Balance 14.04 168.56 618.58
Maturity analysis of lease lfabilities on undiscounted basls and breakup of lease Nlabilitles Included in the Balance Sheet
{Rupees in fakhs}
Year ended Yeur ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 Apri 1,2020
Future Non-( llable minimum lease commi ts
[Within one year 14.04 151.67 450.02
More than one year but not less than five years = 16.89 168.5€
Mare than five years - - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilitles 14.04 168.56 618.58
Lease llabilitles Included In the Balance sheet
Currant Lease lizbilities 14.04 121.5% 363.54
Hon-current Lease liabilities - 46.97 54.64
Total 14.D4 168.56 618.58
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
39.1 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard [IND A%) 19 - Employee Benefits
(2} Defined contributlon plans
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expenses for the years are as under:
{Rupees in lakhs}
L Year ended Year ended Yesi ended
s Morch 31,2022 | march 31,2031 Aprd 1, 2020
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 399 11.25 B.63
Emgployer's Contribution to Pension Scheme 9.07 215.58 19.56
Emplayer's Contribution to ESIC Q.08 0.13 0.33

{t] Brief descriptlons of the plans

[c) Leave Obligations

The Company's defined contribution plans are Provident Fund ang Employees State Insurance where the Company has no further abligation beyend making
the contributions. The Company's defined benefit plans include gratuity, The employees are also entitled to leave encashment as per the Company's policy.

{Rupees in lakhs)

Partigulacs - ‘March 31, 2022 Wiarch 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Provisions for Leave encash
Current 4,79 7.43 1252
Mon-Current 16.74 28.36 ag.21
Total Employee Benefit Oblig: 21.53 15.79 50.73

{d} Defined benefit plan — Gratrity:

The amployes's Gratuity fund |s managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuaticn
using the Profected Unit Credit Method, which recognised each period of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit sepearately to bulld up to final obllgation.
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Particwlars March 31, 2022 Maech 31, 2021
I. Actuarial assumptions
Martality Tahle Indian  Azsured lives|indian  Assured  lives
Mortatity {2012-14) Ult [Mortality {2012-14) Ut
Discount rate 6.10% 5.65%
Expected return on plan assels 5.60% 5.80%
Salary Escalation Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal Rate 20.00% 19,005
Retlrament Age EE Years 58 Years
Il Change in Present valug of defined benefit obligations
Liability as at the beginning of the year 90.08 119.00
Interest cost 5.09 703
Current service cost 7.27 12.36
Benefits paid {37.60) [45.17}
Actuarial {gain)floss on abligations {2.60) (2.69}
Acquisition ad)ustment - 655
Liakility as at the end of the year 62.24 §0.08
il Change In Fair value of plan assets
Fair vatue of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 80.02 75.78
Expected return on plan assats 4537 4,24
Actual Enterprise’'s Contributions E :
Benafits paid 3 2
Actuarial gain/{ioss) an plan assets ks =
Fair valus of plan assets as at the end of the year B45d 80.02
IV, Actual return on plan assets
Expected return an plan assats 452 4.24
Actuarial gain/{loss} on plan assets - =
Actual return on plan assats 4.52 4.24
V. Liabllity recognised In the Balance Sheet
Liahility as at the end of the year 62.24 90.08
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year §4.54 B3.OZ
Liability/ (Asset) racognised in the Bal Sheet {22.30} 10.06
VL. Pere of each category of plan assets to total falr value of plan assets
insurer managed funds 100% 100%:
VI A gnlsed In the § of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 127 12.38
Interast cost - -
Expected return on glan assets 0.57 171
Ket actuarial {gain)floss to be on ohligation - -
Expense/ {Income} racognised in . of Profit and Loss 7.84 15.15
VL Amount recognised In the Other Comprehensive Incorme (O€1)
Due to Change in financial assumptions {1.27) (0.20}
Due to Change In demographic assumption o7 =
Due to Change in eéxperience assumption {1.40} (2.49)
Expected return on plan assets - i
Tetal remasurement recognised in OCI (2.60) (2.59)
1%, Balance Sheet reconciliatlon
Opaning net liability 10.06 4323
Expensas recognised in Profit & Loss .84 15.15
Actual Empioyer Contribution (37.60) 14517
Total Remeasurement recognised in OCI (2.60) 19.69)
Acquisition adjustment - £.55
Closing net liability {22.30) 10.06

{e) Satary escalation assumption has been set in discussians with the enterprize based on their estimates of ov-all lang-term salary growth rates after taking into

consideration expected earnings inflation as well as perfarmance and seniority ralated increases.
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Sensitlvity ¥

Effect an Gratulty
Changes in
Partlculars assumptions oblization (Rupees in
lakhs}

For the year ended 315t March, 2022

Salary growth rate +0.50% 63.600
0.50% 60.92

Ciscount rate +0.50% £0.94
-0.50% 63.59

For the year ended 31st March, 2021

Salary growth rate +1.50% 52.10
-0.50% 88.13

Discount rate +0.50% ag.16
-0.5{0% 592.10

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all cther assumptions constant. In pratice, this bs enlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. In presenting the above sensitivity anaysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projectad unit cradit method at the end of reporting period, which is the same as that applled in caloulating the defined obligation lizbility
recognised In the balance sheet,

These plans typically expose the Company to acwuarial risks such as: longevity risk and salary risk.

Interest risk - A dacrease in tha discount rate will increase the plan |tabllity.
Longevity risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mertaiity of plan participants both
during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants. As such, an increasa the plan's liabillty.

Salary risk - The present value of the defined plan llablhity is calculated by reference to the future salaries of pian participants. As such, as increase in the salary
of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Liquidity risk - This is the risk that the Company is not able zbie to meet the short - term gratuity payouts. This may rise due te non availability of encugh cash /
tash equivelant to meet the habilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time,

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is 4 years [31st March, 2021 - 4 years),
LRupees In lakhs)
sAmolnts

Disclosure p to Indatn Acc ing Standard 108 - Operating Segment

Primary Segment Information
The company I engaged in Private Frelght Terminal {PFT) business and is having & leoplines of Rall Terminal at Khurja which allows the company to operate
PET. The Company operates in two primary reportable business segmaents, i.e. “Rail & Infand Container Depot” and "Domestic Warehousing Zone",

The company provides services within india and hence does not have any cperation in economic enviranments with different risks and returns. Hence, it bs
constdered that the pany is operating in a single geographical segment.

Segment Revenue, results, assets and liabilities
Revenue and results have been identified to 3 segment on the basls of relationship to operating activities of the segment.

Segrment assets and segment liakilities represent assets and Habilithes in respactive segments. Segment assets include )l operating assets used by the operating
segment and mainly includes trade receivable and other receivables, Segment liabilities primarily include trade payables and ather liabilities. Assets and
liabilities which cannot ba allacatad to any of the segments are shown as a part of unallocable assets and Habilities,

40.3 The chief operational decision maker monitors the cperating results of its Business Segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource

sllocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the
financial staternents, Operating segment have bean identified on the basis of the nature of sarvices.
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40.4 Segmental Information as at and for the year ended 315t March, 2022 is as follows:-

{Rupees In lakhs)
. Asat Asat As at
Garticulas 31t March 2022 315t March 2021 1st Anvll 2028
Segment Revenue
Rail & ICD 312.13 7,230.78
8] fic Warehouse 516.00 554,83
Less: Inter Segment p .
Total Revenue from Dperations B28.14 2,785 61
|Sepmient Results Before Tax and Interest
Rail & 1CD {3,713.94) 270.20
Domastice Warehouse [976.61) (897.59]
Toral Segment Result (4,690.55} {627.39)
Less: Unallocated Expenses net of Income Q.75 151
Less: Finance Casts 15.7i8.41 i5,648.58
Less: Exceptional items {Net) E =
Loss before tax {20,409.71) {16,277.48)
Less: Tax Expenses - -
Loss after tax {20:,209.71) {16,277.48)
| Segment Assets
Rail & ICD 53,817.32 59,454.00 77,480.45
Domestlc Warshouse 37,292.2% 38.601.64 40,014.85
Unaligeated 267105 2,468.33 2,199.28
Total 93,750.66 100,563.96 115,704.39
Segment Uahilitles
Rail & ICD 4,594 .78 4,944.15 798662
Domestic Warehguse 129.13 108.44 97.16
Unaliocated 120,50%.64 106,557.16 106,388.60
Totat 125,233.55 111,609.75% 114,432,318
Other Disclosures
Capital Expenditure
Rail & ICD .44 4.59
Domeastlc Warshouse . .
Una[located 7 %
Total 0.24 4.59
Bepreciatlen and amprtisati F
Rail & ICD 2,655.08 3,395.28
Domestic Warehouse 1,387.81 1,388.93
Unallocated 3 3
Total 4,042.47 4,784.81
Non-tash Expenditure
Rail & ICD 720 =
Domestic Warehouse 5 =
Unallocatad - =
Tatal 7.20 -

Customers individuslly contributes to more than 10% of revenue -

Thera are 4 customers { March 31, 2021 - 2 customers and Mareh 31, 2020 - 4 customers) aggregating to Rupees 758.93 lakhs { March 31, 2021 Rupees
4,206.89 lakhs and March 31, 2020 Rupees 11,395.70 lakhs | constituting 91.50% { March 31, 2021- 54% and March 31, 2020- 78%) of Revenue,

[ TY—]
5 Meg:

41 Ta the extent,the company has received ion from the *

Act, 2006, the details are provided as under

Lol

ling their status under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

For the year
Makch 31, 2022

Fortheyear -
March 31, 2021

{Rupees in lakhs]
For the year -
April'1, 2020

1i} Principal amount remalning unpaid

233

6217

44.20

ii] Intarest due therson r tng unpaud

4.94

1.0

0.31

fiii} Interest pald by the Company In terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the suppller beyond the appointed day during the year.

{iv] interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which
have been paid but bayond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

(v} Interest accrued and remalning unpaid (net of tax deducted 3t source)}

4.94

1.10

031

{vi} Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small snterprisa.
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42 Financial ratios
5r. No. Particulars . 2021-22 202D-21 % Chang Reason for deylatis
1 Current Ratio 003 0.06 -53%{Due to interest accrue and loan of others
recalled & shifted to current liakility.
2 Debt- Equity Ratio {3.83) {9.65) -60% | Due to further decrease in Met worth and
ncrease In interest acorued.
3 Debt service coverage Ratio (0.01) 0.1% -104%| Due to loss increase and earning for interest
payment reduced.
[ Return on equity Ratio {%) 96% 559% 83%|Due to increase in toss and decline in net
worth
5 Trade receivable turnover Ratio 4.36 10.80 -60% | Due to reduction in revenue and reduction in
debtors
[ Trade payable turnover Ratio 0.06 883 -95% (Due to decrease in expense and trade
payable
7 Net Capital turnaver Ratio {0.m) [0.12) -94% | Due to reduction in revenue from aperations
8 Net profit {3} -2465% -200% 1079%| Due to increase in loss but reduction in
operations
9 Return an Capital Employed (%) -13% 1% 1051%; Due to further decrease in Net worth and
increase in loss..
10 inventory Turnover Ratio = - =
11 Return on {nvestment % 3 =
43.01 Formuls for computation of ratios-are as follows:
51 No. Ratios Numerator ‘Denominator
1 Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities
2 Debt- Equity Ratic Total Debts + interest accrued Total Equity
3 Return on equity Ratio (%] Profit after Tax Averape Total Equity
{{Opentng Equity Share capital +
Dpening Other eguity + Closing
Equity Share Capital + Closing Other
Equity}/2
4 Trade receivable turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Average trade receivable {Opening
balance + ciosing balance) /2
i Trade payable turnover Ratio Cost of Services & Other Average trade payables [Opening
Expenses balance + closing balance} f2
6 Net Capital turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Working Capital {Current assets -
Current liabilitias}
7 Net profit {%) Liss after tax Revenue from operations
] Return on Capital Emplayed {%| Earning before interest and taxes |Tatal Equity + Total Debts
9 Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for debt Finance cost & lease payment +
service [Met profit after tax principle repayment of long term
expense + depreciation & [borrowings during the year
amortization + Finance cost +
Non cash operating items + other
adjustment}
10 Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods sold Average lnventory (opening
balance+ closing balance)/2
11 Return on Investment Interast Income on fixed deposits [Non current investments + Fined

+ Income of investment

deposits with bank
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43  RELATED PARTY THANSALTIONS
i} List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures
5. No. |Name of Rﬂﬂ:d'?lrt\f Natwre of Relattonship % of equity Interest Country of Incorporation
Mr. Ajay 5. Mittal - Diractar
Mr, Navnit Choudhary - Director
Mr. Sarvothama Shetty - Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. June 27, 2020 Key Mansgerlal Personnal
1 Mr. Latan Thakur - Chief Financizl Officer {w.e.f. August 13, 2021} {KMPY
Mr. Rama Davadiga - Chief Financlal Officer {w.e.f. August 25, 2020 till February 11, 2021}
Mr. Abhijlt Mehta - Company Secretary {w.a f. June, 02, 2021}
Ms. Avani Dipaks Lekhan! - Company Secretary (till May 5, 2021)
a AMD Businass Support Services Private Limitad fw.e.f. 13th August, 2021) beldiary Company 100% Indiz
3 Arshlya Limited (Erstwhife Holding company)
Arshiya Northarn Frojects Private Eimited Enterprisa cwned or
X . sighificantly influenced by key
Arshiya Northarn FTWZ Limited F
managamant parsonnal or their
Arshiya Loglstics Services Limited relatives
Rudradav Properties Private Limited
4 Mrs. Archana A Mittal Ralatlva of Kay Managerial
My Anaoya A Mittal Fersonnel
W) The nature and amount of transactions with the above refated parties are as follows
{Rupees In lakhs)
| NanwiofthePyny Matire of Trangiiction | | March31,2008 |2, 2020
Loans taken [460.10] {398.52! {1,053.04)
Laan repay e 553.14 1,282.40 2,769.43
Allocation of cost #nd common #xpenses {122.49) 1145.59) (267.01}
Arshiya Limited by Holding Company
Financial Guaranteas |306.28) {363.27) (281,28}
Share appteation money recelved - - {1,950.00)
Share appfication money refund - - 1,950.00
Loans taken - [100.00 -
Rudradev Properties Frivate Limited |Loan cepayants z 35.65 =
Intarest {0-61) [4.80] 1
Interest paid - 4.35 -
Arshiya Limited Lease rent income 5.00 - -
Arshiya Northem Projects Private Limited loan re LLa) - {3.70} [1-30}
Arshiya Nerthern FTW2 Limtad R: sement of Exp {7.55} {4.65} -
Arshiya Northern FTW2 Limited Loan Given 2312 - -
Loan repay [9.82} # &
Arshiya Limited Assignment of Loan given ** 243209 - -
Arshiya Limited investment in subsidiary purchased from 1.00 - -
Ananya Mittal Safary Pald 24.50 24.30 27.06
* During the year, Arshiva Limitad {AL) hil v has all d certain ¢ cast and expanses Incurred by i, to the company aggregating to Rupaes 122.44 fakhs (315t

March, 2021 - Rupess 145.59 lakhs and 31st March, 2020 - Rupees 267.01 lakhs) based on AL's estimates of such cost and expenses attributable to the company. Hence, Employes henefit

wxpenses | Refer Note No. 33) and certain axpenses stated under other expenses {Refer Note No. 35) are pr

tosts and

of sush all

1 of certaln

** During tha year anded 31t March, 3022, lpan given to Arshiya Limlted is sssigned to AMD Business Support Services Private Limited which is 100% wholly awn subsidiary of the company

through assignment agresment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Closing Balances [Rupees in lakhs)
March 31 3022 Magch 31, 2021 Aprfl 1, 2020

Arshiya Northern Projecte Private Limited - - 370

Rudradev Propertles Private Limited 4.9% 444 -

Arshiya Limited - 2,861.49 1,597.50

AMED Busi Support Servlces Private Limited 2,432.08 - -

Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 5.75 - =

ictol: g R

Arshiya Limited 309.98 B15.26 5849

Périonol Ganrontse F B Saveially

Ajay 5 Mittal 23,471.00 93,471.00 26,471.00

Archana A Mittal 8347100 5347100 B6471.00

FErbe) il i e g
Arshiya Limited 75,436 69 753,436.69 78,435,569
50000 §50.00 550.00

Key Tad 1 comp :

Ms. Avan| Dipak) Lakhani - Company Secretary {till May 5, 2021} : {Rupess in lakhs}

Partleufury: i March 31, 2023 March 31, 2021 Apelt1, 2020

Short term employse benefits 0.77 593 643

Total | 0.77 5.93 543

Mr. Lzlan Thakur - Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f. August 13, 2021} [Rupees in takhs]

Particulars k i March 31, 2032 March 31, 2021° April 1, 2020

Short term employee benefits 8.56 - -

Total [ 4.56 E B
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ARSHIYA RAIL WNFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financial instruments by Category

{Rupees in lakhs]

Particutars Carrying Amaurit Fair Value
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Aprll 1, 2020 March 31, 2022 | Maich 31, 2021 Apri 1, 2020
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amortlsed cost
Trade Receivables 28.15 351.3% 1,077.74 28.15 351.33 1,077.74
Cash and Cash Eguivalents 1752 3390 V662 17.52 33.90 7662
Loans 2,663.21 2,461.49 1,905.47 2,663.21 2,451.49 1,905.47
Security Daposits 81.28 116.15 144.96 81.28 116.15 144.96
Other Bank Balances 163.37 311.78 286.19 103.37 311.78 296,19
Financial Guarantee 309.38 E16.26 993849 30958 616.26 998,49
Total 3,203.51 3,800.97 4,459.47 3,203.51 3,3590.97 4,498.47
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Amortised cost
Borrowings £8,218.05 68,694.53 74,185.61 £68,918.05 68,694.53 74,185.61
Trade Payables 678.21 962.56 1,465.29 678.21 964.56 1,485.29
Cther financial fiabilities 53,758.00 39,956.03 34,066.08 53,758.00 39,956.03 34,066.08
Lease Liahilities 14.04 168.56 618.57 14.04 168.56 E1B.57
Total 123,368.29 -'-1'09;?81.58 110,335.56 123,368.23 109,781.68 . 110,335.56

Fair Valuation technigues used to determine falr value
The Company maintzins procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most refevant data available. The fair values of the
financial assets and liabHities are included at the amount that would ba received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date,

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the falr vaiues:

The Company assessed that the fair value of cash and cash eguivaient, trade receivables, trade payables, ang other current financial assets and liabifities
approximate their carrying amounts fargely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values for security deposits and other financial liabilities were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are
classified as level 3 fair values in the Fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

The fair values of non current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current berrowing rate. They are classified a5 leve! 3 fair values in the falr
value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk,

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made In determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measure at fair
value. To provide 2n indication about the reliabllity of the inputs used in determing fair value, the company has classified its financial instrurments into three
levels prascribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes finangial instruments measured using quated prices.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over the countar derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. if all significant inputs
required to fair valug an instrument are abservable, the instrument is included in leve! 2.

Level 3 - If one or maere of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity shares, contingent censideration and indemnification assets included in level 3.
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Fi ial Risk Ma i

The Campany's principal financial fiabilities comprises of barrowings, trade and ather payabies and financial guarantees contracts. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to manage for the Company's operations. The Campany's financial assets comprises of trade and other
receivables, cash and deposits that arises directly from its operations.

The company's actlvities expose it to variety of financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's risks management
assessment, management and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company to set up appropriate risks limits
and controls and to menitor such risks and compliances with the same. Risks assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company's activittes.

Risk Expasure arising from jMeasurement’ Management
Credit risk Cash and cash Ageing analysis Reguiar review of
equivalents, trade credit limits

receivabies and
Financia! assets
measured at amortised

cost.
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other  |Rolling cash flow Availabiity of
fiabilitles forecasts financial support from
parent company
Market risk — interest rate Long-term barrowings |Sensitivity analysis Unhedged

at variable rates

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a corporate finance team under the policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management as well as policies cavering specific areas, such as credit risk, interest rate risk.

{A) Credit risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk, which is risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resuliing in a financial loss to the
Company. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposures to trade customers including cutstanding receivables,

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been
managed by the company through continuously monitering the creditwarthiness of custamers to which the company grants credit terms in the
normal course of business. Cutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any further services to major customers are approved
by the senior management. Cradst risk is high as only few customers’ atcount for majority of the revenue in the year presented. On account of
adoption of Ind AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain.

{8B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collatersl obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times; maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements.
The Company limits its liquidity risk by ensuring funds from trade receivables. The Company relies on operating cash flows and funding from
holding company to meet its needs for funds.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet to the contractual maturity date.
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Contractual maturities of financlal liabilities

[Rupees in fakhs)

Particalars Less than 1 year ::::e_en Lyearand s More than § year
March 31, 2022

Borrowings 67,938.12

OCRPS {Debt and Equity component) 1,200.00 -

Trade payables 678.21 - -
Other financial Kabilities 53,758.00 " -
Lease liability 14.04 -

Total Financial liabilities 123,588.36 - -
March 31, 2021

Borrowings 25,513.71 41,090.58 -
OCRPS {Debt and Equity component) - 1,200.00 -
Trade payables 962.56 - o
Other financial Habilities 39,960.30 - -
Lease liability 121.59 46.97

Total Financial liabilities 86,558.16 42,337.55 -
April 1, 2020

Borrowings 26,754.36 45,910.23 -
OCRPS {Debt and Equity component) - - 1,200.00
Trade payables 1,465.29 E -
Other financial liabilities 34,042.85 - =
Lease liability 363.94 254.64

Total Financial liabilities 62,6216.43 47,164.87 1,200.00

{C) Market risk

Market Risk is tha risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of volatility of prices in the financial
markets. Market risk can be further segregated as: 1) Foreign currency risk and 2) Interest rate risk

1} Forelgn currency risk

1) Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value ar future cash flow or an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
However, the Company does not have any foreign currency exposure.

2] Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings with variable rates, which expase the Company to cash flow interest
rate risk. Buring the 31st March, 2022 the Comgany's borrowings at the variable rate were mainly denominated in Rupees.

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interpst rate risk as defined in IND AS- 107,
since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as foliows:-

{Rup in lakhs)

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

April 1, 2020

Variable rate borrowings

4,215.28

4,219.28

£,910.60

interest sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrawings as a result of changes in intersst rates.

Impact on profit before tax
Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Interest sensitivity
50 bps increase the profit before tax by* (21.10} (21.10) (34.55)
50 bps decrease the profit before tax by* 21,10 21.10 34.55

* Holding all other variable constant
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the company's cbjective when managing capital is to safeguard the company's ability to continue going concern in order to
provide the return for shareholders and benefit to other stakeholders and to maintain an optional capital structure to reduge the
cost of capital. Capital includes issved equity capital and ali other equity reserves attributable to the equity helders of the company.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements
of the financial tovenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to
sharehaolders, return capital to shareholders or issua new shares. The company monitors eapital using a Debt aquity ratio,

{Rupees in lakhs}

Particulars March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
Borrowings 68,018.05 68,694.53 74,185.61
Other Financial Liabilities {interest accrued) 51,580.39 37,851.67 32,192.43
Total Debt 120,498.43 106,546.20 106,278.04
Equity 262276 2,622.76 2,622.76
Other equity [34,075.65) {12,668.53) 2,599.26
Total Equity {31,452.89) (11,045.77) 5,222.02
Total debt to equity ratic {Gearlng ratlo) {3.83}) {9.65) 20.37

Notes:-
{i} Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowings including current maturities and interest.
{ii} Total equity {as shown in balance sheet} includes issued capital and all other equity.

Debt Covenants
Under the terms of Restructuring Agreement, the company is required to comply with fotfowing financial covenants:-

Without prior approval of fender, the company shati not:

Loans, debenture & charge - Issue or subscribe to any debentures, shares, raise any loans, deposit from public, issue equity or
preference capital, change its capital structure or create any charge on its assets including its cash flow or give any guarantees.

Dividend on equity shares - deciare/pay dividend on equity shares unless otherwise approved by the Lender/Business Manttoring
Committee in accardance with the provisions of RA.

Investments by Borrower - make any investments by way of deposits, loans, share capital etc. in any concern or elsewhere without
prior approval of the Lender / Business Monitoring Committee.

Assignment - assign or transfer of any of its right and obligations to any third party.

Related Party Transactions - enter into any related party transactions for an amount exceeding Rs. 10 lakhs (Rupees Ten Lakhs only)
per month, subject to business structure as explained to and agreed by the Lender.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Capital Management, amongst other thing, aims to ensure that it meets Financial
covenants attached to the interest bearing Loans and borrowings that define Capital structure requirements, there have been
breaches in the Financial covenants of Interest bearing loans and borrowing in the Current period and previous period.

The Company has not proposed any dividend in last three years in view of Iosses incurred.

\\v‘—//’ 2
B




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

47 Taxation

il Tax Reconciliation

tR_upees in lakhs)

Particulars Asat. Asst

‘March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Reconciliation of tax expense
Loss befara tax {20,405.72) (16,277.48)
Enacted income tax rate {34} applicable to the Company # 28% 6%
Tax expenses calculated at enacted income tax rate {5,306.53) 14,232.14}
Related ta Property plant & equipment 415.71 504.00
Effect of Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 4,227.95 3,632.84
Effect of Incomes that are not allowabie in determining taxable profit [317.63) (500.70)
Tax Losses G80.49 596.01

# The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 26% at which the Campany is liable to pay tax on taxable income under the Indian Tax

Law.

ii) The Company has not recognised any deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses as it is not prabable that the Company will
have sufficient future taxable profit which can be available against the available tax losses.

#il] Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised

(Rupees in lakhs)

Avallable for yiisation €

| Assessrient'Yeat "Business Loss Assessmient Year "Unitisorbed Dapresiation
2012-2013 - 2,133.42
2013-2014 E 3,039.67
2014-2015 19,833.51 2022-2023 12,483.27
2015-2016 82831 2023-2024 10.794.45
2016-2017 2,689.48 2024-2025 8,100.32
2017-2018 23,529.43 2025-2026 7,866.82
2018-2019 - 2026-2027 6,894,823
2015-2020 - 2027-2028 5.865.90
2020-2021 29.82 2028-2029 5,319.96
2021-2022 1,397.32 202%-2030 2,846.35
2022-2023 462.10 2030-2031 2,443.98
Totai 48,769.97 67,788.97
e T #Avaliable for utilisation till
Assessment Year Long terin Capital Loss Assessment Yesr
2016-17 369.21 2024-2025
Total 369.21

Unused deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2022 Rupees (29,345.25) Lakhs (March 31, 2021 - Rupees (27,565.16) Lakhs, April 1, 2020 - Rupees {27,058.63)
Lakhs} has not been recognised, as there is no convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be svailable against which the unadjusted tax josses will
be utilised by the Company.

Details of Deferred tax assets are mentioned below:- {Ruf, in lakhs)
Paiticilars.. o -Asat: Asat - Asat-

March 31, 2022 March33, 2021 _April1, 2020
Property plant equipment 7,437.24 7.671.16 8,265.85
Uniabsorbed depreciation {18,858.89) {18.024.85) {18,814.72)
Expense allowable on payments under section 438 and 40{a}{ia} (4.216.84) (4,163.00) {3.385.57
Unabsorbed loss {13,649.98) (13,132.68) 113,521.43) |
Financizl Instrurments (56.78) 8421 357.23
Total Deferred Tax Assets {29,345.25) {27,565.16) {27 098.53)

L
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Preparation of financial statements on ¥ Golng Concern” basis

The company has incurred net loss of Rupees 20,409.72 Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2022 and as of that date, the company's current labilities
exceeded by its current assets by Rupees (1,20,622.14) lakhs. Some of its lenders have recalied their loans and the company is in the process of negotiating
the revised payment terms with the lenders,

Further Government focus on development of logistic infrastructure for future growth in economy and provided the ‘category of infrastructure’ sub-sectors to
“"Transport and Logistics" from the earlier sub-head of "Transport”. According to the govt notification, logistics infrastructure includes *Multimodal Logistics
Park comprising Inland Container Depot {ICD)” would come under logistics infrastructure,

The Company has strategically located at the confluence of Western & Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor (DFC). The DFC to Improve efficiency and carga
deliverables. Commissianing of DFC stretch could benefit customers by operation of langer, heavier and faster train services which will improve operational
efficiency. The commencement of work on the proposed Jewar Airport which is in close preximity to Khura will also boost the Company's business,

In view of the focussed emphasis of the Government on logistics infrastructure secter and considering the fact that the facilities are yet to achieve fuli
operational potential besides the strategic locations of the facillties, the management’s future outiook of its businesses is very promising.

The Company is also working with all its lenders on re-alignment of existing debt of the Company. The Company has discussion for Settlement of Debt from
major lenders to reduce debt at sustainable level. Hence the Company is optimistic that it will improve overall cash flows of the Company.

The management of the company is int the process of restructuring its business operations and steps are as under :

Forus an long term contracts with corporate clients for stable revenues.

Focus on reduction of empty haulage f return business in different sectors to increase in revenue and margins.

Increased focus on Khurja as a distribution hub post G5T implernentation

Government focus on Multi-medal logistic and transport services to increase the throughput of the infrastructure already created by the company;

Government focus on the revamping of the Railway Boards and increasing clarity on regulatory aspects to support resolution of the regulatory issues;

Two Dedicated Freight Corridor{s| {DFC) along the Western and Eastern part of india to support increase in the business valume.
Government anncuncement of Jewar Airport and Merut Highway connecting Jewar vis Khurja 2nd thereby connecting to Yamuna Expressway{ i.e. Delhi to

Agral.

The above steps shall enable the Company to improve Company’s Net worth and its ability to discharge its debts/liabilities in near future and accordingly the
financials have been prepared on going concern basis.

As per debt covenant, the Company are required to adhere to repayment schedule and any short payment gives Edelweiss Asset Recaonstruction Company
{EARC) the right to convert whole of the autstanding amount of restructured rupee loan and/for part of the default amount into fully paig up equity shares of
the Company. No such notice of conversion in writing has been given by EARC and the Company continues to disclose the amgunt as current in the Balance
Sheet.

{i} Upon signing of Restructuring Agreement with Edelweiss Assets Reconstruction Company Limited (EARC) on 31st March 2017, the Company is accruing
penal interest on restructured debt @ 8% p.a. based upon the balance confirmation provided by EARC till 30th September 2019 against the documented rate
of 18% per annum. It has resulted in the short prevision of penal interest for the year ended 31st March 2021 amounting to Rs. 2,069.29 Lakh and for the year
ended 31st March 2022 arnounting to Rs. 3,080.01 Lakh . In aggregate penal interest provisions are lower by Rs. 5,231.21 Lakh till 31st March 2022.

{ii} The Company had received Settlement of Debt letter dated 4th March, 2022 [Settlement) from Edelweiss Assets Reconstruction Company Limited {EARC)
with cut- off date as an 30th September, 2021, Since the Company is unable to comply with the conditions of the Settlement it has requested EARC to reviee
the structure of debt resolution and submitted various proposals to EARC. Pending evaluation and discussions on these proposals, EARC has revoked the
Settlernent. In light of the ongaing discussion with EARC the company continues to account the penal interest as earlier and no accounting effects of the said
settlement of debt letter is considered necessary by the Company for the year ended 315t March, 2022,

During the year ended 31st March 2021, certain movable assets {Rakes and Containers) of the Company has been sold for a net sale consideration of Rs
14,756.57 Lakhs through suction process and lenders have appropriated the said sate proceeds against their dues. Further the Company have sold few other
movable assets for a consideration of Rs 150.30 Lakhs and other non-usable assets has been discarded. Net gain of Rs 1,907,20 Lakhs an such sale and
discarding of movahle assets have been accounted as ather income,

The company had entered Into one-time settlement {OTS) with a lender and the effect was taken as an exceptional item during the financial year ended
March 31, 2019. However, the Company has defavited in payment as per the terms of the OTS. As a result, the Company needs to reverse the exceptional
gain recorded during the respective year and needs to recognise Interest on the entire liability as per the original terms. The Company is in giscussion with the
lender far additional time to repay.

The Company has not reversed the gain, nor provided for additional interest. Had the Company reversed the gain and provided for additional interest,
exceptional kem would have been lower by Rs. 6,604.55 Lakhs and finance cost would have been higher by Rs. 12,493.43 {akhs having consequential impact
on total comprehensive income for the year ended 315t March, 2022,

The Company has procured certain capital goods under EPCG schemne at concessional rate of duty. On non fulfiliment of certain cenditions, the company may
become liable to pay differential custom duty along with interest thereon such procurement. 5 EPCG license were clased with release of Corporate Guarantee
during the year March 2020.The management is hopeful of compteting the expected obligation within the stipulated time for balance 1 EPCG license.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

The Cormnpany has requested all its tenders for independent confirmation of their gutstanding as an 315t March 2022 with 2 request to confirm their balances
directly to the statutary auditors, The Company is confident that there will not be significant changes in its liabilitles.

During the course of prepacation of financial statements, e-mails have been sent to various parties, in respect of trade receivables and trade payabies, etc.
with a request to confirm their balances, out of which only few parties have responded, accordingly, the possible adjustment, if any, required in the financial
staternents wili be accounted as and when the same is determinable.

i) Corparation Bank has filed a suit with Debt Recovery Tribunal, New Delhi, towards recovery of loan against the Company and Arshiya Limited {AL) a5 a
Corperate Guaranter and two promoter directors of the AL as Guaranters. The same is pending before the DRT Delhi. The matter is sub-judice.

Further, Corporation Bank has filed petition against the company for recovery of dues at NCLT under Insotvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The matter is
pending for pre-admission stage, Next date is in this matter 16.09.2022

ii] Bank of India has filed a suit with Debt Recovery Tribunal Ii, Delhi, towards recovery of igan against the Company and Arshiya Limited as a Corperate
Guarentor and two promoter directors of the AL as Guarantors. The same is pending befare the DRT 1l Delhi. The matter is sub-judice. Matter to be listed on
{3.10.2022 for completion of evidence by both parties.

ili} Certain creditors have initiated for winding up petition against the Company. The Company is in process of negotiating and finalising the revised consent
terms and/ar making representations to the respactive forum.

i} As per Provisions of sub section 1 of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 {w.e.f. 15t April,2014) the company is required to appoint & Company Secretary.
However, the company is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate for this role.

ii} As per Provisions of sub section I of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 (w.e.f. 1st April, 2014) the company is required to appoint a Chief Financial Officer
[CFO). However, the company is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate for this role.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by type of products and services, geography and timing of revenue recognition,

Revenue disaggregation by type of goods and services is given note ng. 29

Revenue disaggregation by geography is as follows:

{Rupees in lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Geography " I " ye
31" March 2022 31" March 2021
In India 82813 7,785.61
Dutside India - -

Revenue disaggregation by timing of revenue recognition is as follows:

{Rupees in lakhs}

Geagraphy Far t’tle year ended For :he year ended

31" March 2022 317 March 2021
{Goods transferred at a point in time - -
Service transferred over time §28.12 7.785.61

{il Punjab Hatignal Bank {lead Bank], an behalf of Certain Consortium Banks, has initiated debt recovery action under Section 13(2) of Securitization &
Reconstruction of Financlal Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI) [ACT) vide notice dated 159th October, 2015 aggregating to
Rupees 58,657.51 lakhs {reduced to Rupees 29,369.94 lakhs after the Restructuring Agreement is signed with EARC on 31st March,2017). The bank has also
invoked the Corporate Guarantee Issued by Arshiya Limited and Personal Guarantees of Directors 1.2, Mr. Alay 5. Mittal and Mrs. Archana A, Mittal. Further
on 15th January 2016, the Company recelved a notice of Possession from the authorised officer of the bank under Fower Conferred on the bank ufs 13(4) of
the satd Act read with Rule 8 (i) of the Rules. The said loan has been assigned by Punjabk National Bank to EARC & further EARC has filed an applcation for
withdrawal for the same.

{I) Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Caompany [EARC), has initisted action under Section 13{2) of Securitization & Reconstruction of Finangial Assets and
Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 {SARFAESI) (ACT) against the borrower Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited inveked Corporate Guarantee provided
by Arshiya Limited and personal guarantee by Mr. Ajay Mittal and Mrs. Archana Mittal. The Company received a notice of Possession of the assets
mentioned in the SARFAESI Notice under power conferred from the banks mentioned in the Natice u/fs 13(4) of the said Act read with Rule 3 {i} of the Rules.
These notices contain higher demand of outstanding dues. Management believes that there will not be any further liabilities ta pay in excess of the amount
outstanding in the books of accounts.

The Company offers equity-based award plan to its employees through Arshiya Limited (AL}, erstwhile holding company. During the previous year, AL
intreduced an Arshiya Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2019 {"ESOP"), which is approved by the shareholders of AL to provide eguity settled incentive
to an employee of the Company. The ESOP scheme includes tenure based stock option awards. The specific Employees to whom the Options are granted and
their Ehgibility Criteria are determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of AL

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai by its order dated Gth December 2019 has approved Scheme of Arrangement for merger of
Arshiya Industrial and Distribution Hub Lirnited {AIDHL} and Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited [ATHL) into the Company. Pursuant to the order the
scheme has become effective on &th January 2020 and, AIDHL and ATHL stand amalgamated with the Company from the appointed date i.e. ist October
2015.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCEAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Business Combinations

During the year ended 315t March 2022, Hon'ble Natlonal Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (NCLT} has approved the Scheme of Arrangement (Scheme}
vide it's order dated 21st January 2022. The Schema became effective from 2nd February 2022. The Appainted date of the said scheme is 1st April 2019
Pursuant to Scheme:

Domestic Business of the erstwhile Parent Company ie. Arshiya Limited {"AL"} comprising of 43.23 acre of land situated at Khurjs and other assets and

Itabilities pertaining to domestic business has been demerged from AL into Resulting company i.e. the Company. All assets and liabilities of the demerged
undertakings have been recognised at their respective carrying values and the net differential amount of Rs. 7,561.85 lakh is shown under Capital Reserve.

{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at

1st April, 2019
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 7.4983.35
Trade Receivables 64.72
Total Assets (A) 7.564.07
Liabilities
Other Current Liabilitias 2.22
Totai Liabilities (B} 2.22
Net assets transferred [A-B=C) 7,561.85

Inter-company balances {borrowing} of Rs. 16,561.21 Lakh held by AL in the company stand cancelled and adjusted in Capital Reserve.
The Company ceased to be subsidiary of AL,

The Scheme has been accounted for as per the accounting treatment approved by the NCLT read with applicable accounting standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Accurnulated balances (losses) in retained earnings of Rs. 87,858.46 Lakh as on the appointed date are utilised sgainst the securities premium account of the
Company, resulting in retained earnings reduced to NIL as or the appointed date.

The authorised share capital is reclassified from Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each into corresponding number of Equity shares of Face value of Rs. 2
each.

Upen the scheme becaming efferttve and cancellation of the shares held by AL in the Company, The Company shall debit its equity share captal account , the
aggregate face value of existing equity shares held by AL, which stand cancelied hereof. in consideration of the demerger, for every 2 {two} fully paid-up
equity shares of AL, the Company shall issue and allot to each member of AL as on the record date i.e. 4th March 2022, 1 (one) fully patd-up equity share of
the Rs. 2/- each of the Company. These equity shares of the company are propesed to be listed, on the stock exchanges where the equity shares of the
erstwhile Parent Company are listed, on recelpt of regulatory approvals.

Retonciliation of securities Premtium and Retained Earnings as at 1st April, 2019:
{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Securities Premium Retained Earnings Capital Reserve
Account

Balance as on 31st March 2019 before restatement 87,898.46 {97,615.55) =
Add: Land transferred under demerger scheme - z 749935
Add: Other assets and liabilities of Domestics Warehousing Division - - 6250
Add: Written back of borrowings from Arshiya Limited - - 16,561.21
Add: Canceliation of investment by Arshiya Limited 3 - L.967.16
Add: Deemed Equity of Arshiva Limited E - 3471
Less: New Shares to be issued - - (2,622.76)
Less/Ad -. Adjustment as per Demerger Scheme {B7,8°.5.46) 87,808.46 -
Balanea 25 on 1st April 2019 after restatement - {9,717.09) 30,682.17

Post NCLT order dated 21st lanuary,2022, one of the lenders of AL has appealed against the said order at the Hen'ble National Company Law Appellate
Tribunal (NCLAT). Pursuant to on order dated 4th March 2022, NCLAT has ordered to maintain ‘status quo’ in the matter and henca the matter is now ‘sub -
judice’. AL has appealed for setting aside the szid order of 4th March 2022 and requested the NCLAT to allow AL to complete the formalities such as allotment
procedures of the demerger and listing of the shares of the Company. As the scheme is in the interest of stakeholders of both the companies, AL and the
company shall be pursuing the appeal. Based on iegal opinion obtained, the Company has prepared the financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2022 after piving accounting effects of scheme as per the NCLT grder.

The Company do not have any transactions and balances with struck off companies under Sectian 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section S60 of
Companies Act, 1956.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

The Company has made a detailed assessment and the recoverability angd carrying value of its assets, as at 31st March 2022, comprising investments and
trade receivables, Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amaunt of thess assets. The
Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes arising of future economic conditlons and impact an its business.

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company far erstwhite holding sny benami property unger the Banami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 {45 of 1988] and ruies made thereunder.

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company does not have any pending creation of charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies [ROC)
beyond the statutory period except In one of the case, the Company has signed the documents for loan facilities of Rs. 500.00 Lakhs from a NBFC but not
drawn said loan. The satisfaction of charges will be filed upon receipt of require dorurments from a NBFC.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persan or entity, including foreign entities {Intermediarles) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shali:

(a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Company {Uttimate
Beneficiaries); or

{b) provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities {Funding Party] with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise] that the Company shall :

(a) directly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Company {tHtimate
Beneficiaries); or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the

year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1951 {such as, search or survey or any other refevant provisions of tha Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or
consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defauliers issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restrictian on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017,

Utilisation of borrowed funds as on March 31, 2022, there Is no unutilised amounts in respect of any issue of securities and long term borrowings from banks
and financlal Institutions. The borrowed funds have been wtilised for the specific purpose for which the funds were raised.

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corparate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company.
The Parliament of Inda has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 {"the Code") which, inter alia, deals with employee benefits during employment and

post-employment. The effective date of the Code is yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are also yet to be issued. In view of
this, the impact of the change, if any, will be assessed and recognised post notification of the relevant provisions.

Frevious year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged / restated wheraver necessary to comply with requirement of Ind AS and Schedule () and in view of
the Scheme as detailed in note no. 52,

Notes to the financial staternents 1-76
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”} and its
subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™), which
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2022, and the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flows statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

it o Rl e

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
our report, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March, 2022, of consolidated loss, consolidated changes in equity and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. As mentioned in the Note No. 49 (i} to the consolidated financial statements, the
Holding Company has provided penal interest at 8% on borrowing from Edelweiss
Assets Reconstruction Company Limited (FARC) as against the documented rate of
18%. The interest provisions in earlier period / years till 30th September 2019 were
accounted based on the confirmations received from EARC at 8% penal interest
rate. It has resulted in the short provision of interest amounting to Rs. 3080.01
Lakh for the year ended 31st March 2022, which is not in compliance with Ind AS-
23 “Borrowing Cost” read with Ind AS-109 “Financial Instruments”. In aggregate
interest provisions are lower by Rs. 5,831.21 Lakh till 315t March 2022. Had interest
been recognised at its documented rate, finance cost for the year ended 315t March
2022 and earlier years would have been higher and net loss after tax for the year
and total comprehensive income would have been higher by equivalent amount,
having consequential impact on other equity.

As mentioned in Note No. 50 of the consolidated financial statements, the Holding
Company failed to make payment as prescribed as per one time settlement with
lender. As a result, event of default has occurred and the entire debt prior to date of
settlement become payable along with interest. The Holding Company has not
reversed the gain recorded in earlier year and not provided for additional interest
Rs. 3481.28 Lakh for the year ended 31st March, 2022. Had the Holding Company
reversed the gain recorded in earlier year and provided for additional interest,
exceptional item would have been lower by Rs. 6,604.55 Lakh and finance cost
would have been higher by Rs. 12,493.43 Lakh by equivalent amount as mentioned
above, having consequential impact on total comprehensive income and other

equity.

Head Office: 714-715, Tulsian! Chambers, 212, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021, India. Tel : +91 22 3021 8500 » Fax :+01 22 3021 8595
URL : www.cas.ind.in

Branch : Bengaluru
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i1, We draw attention to the Note no. 52 of the consolidated Jinancial statements,
during the course of preparation of consolidated Jinancial statements for the year
ended 31st March 2022, e-mails have been sent to lenders by the Holding Company
with a request to confirm their balances directly to us. As at 31st March 2022,
direct balance confirmations of total borrowings including interest accrued
(including current maturities and current borrowings), aggregating to Rs.
119422.01 Lakh have not been received. We are unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence about these borrowings (including interest) outsta nding
as at 31st March 2022. Consequently, we are unable to determine whether any
adjustment to these amounts are necessary and consequential impacts on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

w, For reasons mentioned in Note no. 74 (1) of the consolidated financial statements,
the Holding Company could not assess the impairment of carrying value of
property, plant and equipment in accordance with requirements of Indian
Accounting Standard 36 on “Impairment of Assets”. We are unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the recoverable amount of the same,
Consequently, we are unable to determine whether any adjustments to carrying
value of property, plant and equipment are necessary as at 31st March 2022 and
consequential impacts on the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities Jor the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAT’s Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to the Note no. 47 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Holding
Company incurring losses and it’s net worth as at 31 March, 2022 is negative, unable to pay
its dues to operational and financial creditors, the Holding Company has defaulted in
repayment of dues to lenders and started recovery proceeding under SARFAESI from EARC
by disposing off tangible and intangible assets, lenders have even called back their loans,
lenders have classified Holding Company's borrowing as NPA, current liabilities exceeded its
current assets of the Holding Company, creditors have applied before NCLT under
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Since it's sizable movable assets under rail
operations has been disposed off by lenders, the Holding Company is evaluating various
options to utilize optimally it's assets pertaining rail operations, ICD and domestic
warehousing. We have been informed by the management that Holding Company is also
under advanced stage of debt restructuring with EARC. These matters including others
matters as set out in the notes indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt about their ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements

the holding Company have been prepared on the going concern basis, The said

sumption of going concern is dependent upon above said factors and generation of cash

to meet its obligations. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Continuation sheet...
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Emphasis of Matters

(i)  We draw attention to Note no. 58.1 of the consolidated financial statements, regarding
accounting of the scheme from the appointed date being 1st April 2019 as approved by
the National Company Law Tribunal, though the Scheme has become effective on 2nd
February, 2022,

(i) We draw attention to Note no. 58.2 of the consolidated financial statements, one of the
lenders of the Arshiya Limited, had preferred an appeal in “Hon’able National
Company Law Appellate Tribunal” (“NCLAT"), against the order of Hon’able National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement between the
Holding Company and Arshiya Limited, NCLAT ordered to maintain the status quo
prevailing as on that date, vide it’s order dated 4th March 2022, According to the legal
opinjon obtained by the Arshiya Limited and in view of the Management, it can
prepare the financial statements as per sanctioned scheme of arrangement.

(ili) We draw attention to the note no. 53 of the consolidated financial statements,
regarding the balance confirmations of trade receivables and trade payables. During
the course of preparation of consolidated financial statements, e-mails/letters have
been sent to various parties by the holding Company with a request to confirm their
balances directly to us out of which only few parties have responded. The management
is confident and is of the view that there will not be any material variation in the said
balances.

(iv) As at 31t March, 2022, balance confirmation of capital advance amounting to Rs.
1,041.64 Lakh have not been received by the Holding Company.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of these
matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises in the Annual report (but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Continuation sheet...
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated Statement of changes in equity of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rules issued there under. The respective Board of Directors of the company included
in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
company included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the company included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Continuation sheet...
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. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation,

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Gontinuation sheet...
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Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements include the audited financial statements of one
subsidiary, whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of Rs.
3835.67 Lakh as at 31st March, 2022, total revenue of Rs, Nil and cash outflow (net) of Rs.
0.14 Lakh for the year ended 31st March, 2022, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements / financial information have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of
Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis Jor Qualified
Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the
reports of the other auditor;

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of accounts, maintained for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements; '

(d) Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis Jor Qualified
Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules there under;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on 31t March, 2022, taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditor of its
subsidiary, none of the directors of the Group companies are disqualified as on
315t March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act;

The matters described in paragraphs above under the Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Holding Company;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated finaneial statements of the Holding company and its subsidiary and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A; :

Continuaticn sheet...
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(h) The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above;

(i) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory
auditor of the subsidiary incorporated in India, no remuneration for the year
ended 31% March, 2022 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company and
its subsidiary incorporated in india to their directors hence the provisions of
section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements discloses the impact of pending
litigations as at 31%t March, 2022 on the consolidated financial position of
the Group - Refer Note no. 36 (ii) and 54 to the consolidated financial
statements.

.  The Group does not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts and hence there are no material foreseeable losses.

iil. There is no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and it’s
subsidiary.

tv.  (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which
is company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditor of
such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company or any of such subsidiary to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company or any of such subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries ;

(b} The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which
are company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditor of
such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company or any of such subsidiary
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiary shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries:
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and those
performed by the auditor of the subsidiary which are company
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused
us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under
paragraph (1) (j) (iv) (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India has not
declared or paid any dividend during the current year.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to
the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by
us and the auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable,
provided to us by the Management of the Holding Company, we report that there
following qualification or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO
report of the said companies included in the consolidated financial statements.

Holding Clause number of
the CARO report
Name CIN Company/ which is qualified or
subsidiary . -
Arshiya Rail vii (a), ix (a), xix
Infrastructure U93000MH2008PLC180907 Holding :
Limited
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 101720W/W100355

e

Vijay Napawaliya

Partner

Membership No. 109859
UDIN: 22109859AXIPXY1271

Place: Mumbai
Date: 315t August 2022
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of the
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31%t March 2022,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of consolidated financial statements of Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited (“the Holding Company”) as of 31t March, 2022 we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company and Subsidiary which are company incorporated in India

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiary which
incorporated in India is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the Internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements
criteria established by these Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's and subsidiary which
are incorporated in India, internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal finanecial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects. Qur audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgment, including the assessment of the
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
TOT.
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We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company and its subsidiary
incorporated in India, internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finanecial
reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial
control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
{(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on
the consolidated financial statements. '

Inherent Limitations of Intermal Financial Controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

Based on our audit and information & explanations provided by the management, the
material weaknesses have been identified in the Group’s internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements as at 31st March, 2022 with regard to i) with
regard to providing penal interest at 8% on borrowing from Edelweiss Assets Reconstruction
Company Limited (EARC) as against the documented rate of 18%, ii) Non reversal of gain
recorded in earlier year due to failure to make payment as prescribed as per one time
settlement with lender and iii) obtaining balance confirmations of borrowing (including
inferest) from lenders and iv) assessment of recoverable value of property, plant and
equipment and consequential impairment, if any.

Continuaticn sheet...




ARSHIYA RAN INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

{Rupees in kakhs)
) ) As at
Particulais . Nates March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a} Property, Plant and Equipment 7A 88,947.21
{b) Right of use assets 7B 10.598
{c} Goodwill an consolidation 197
(d} Intangibla Assets 8 66.52
(e} Other Non-Current Assets g 1,2594.43
90,321.11
Current assets
(a} Financial Assets
{i} Trade Receivables 10 28.15
(ii} Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 17.95
{tii} Loans 12 23112
{iv) Bank Balances Qther than {ii} above 13 103.37
{v] Other Financial Assets 14 391.26
{b} Other Current Assets 15 409223
4,863.08
TOTAL ASSETS 95,185.19
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equlty
{a) Equity Share capital 16 -
[b} Share suspense Account 16 2,622.76
{c) Other Equity 17 {34,126.29)
{31,503.53}
Liabilities
Non Current Liabillties
{a) Financial Liabifities
[i] Borrowings 18 2,475.76
{ii} Other Non Financial Liabilities i3 50.23
(b} Provisions 20 16.74
(£] Other Non-Currant Liabilities 23 62.74
2,605.47
Current Liabilities
{a} Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 22 67,846.62
{il] Trade Payables 23
{A] Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 7283
{B)Total outstanding dues af creditors Other than Micra and Smal! Enterprises 605.37
[ili} Lease Liabilities 24 14.04
{iv} Other Financial Liabilities 25 53,758.61
(b} Other Current Liabilities 26 1,780.99
{c) Provisions 27 4.79
1,24,083.25
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 95,185.19
Nates to the financial statements 1-71
As per our Report of even date
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Asrshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355
Ao\t "
Copal %\ \ MWkt oy
\v-\ —————
Vijay Napawaliya Ajay § Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership Number. 109859 DiN : 00226355 DIN : 60813576

Place : Mumbai
Oate: 31st August, 2022
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Rupees in lakhs)

- : Particulars  _ ~Year ended
' ' Notes March 31, 2022
INCOME

Revenue from operations 28 828.12

QOther income 25 417,37
Total Income (i) 1,245.4%
EXPENSES

Cost of operations 30 47.97

Employee benefits expenses 31 617.66

Finance costs a2 15,768.65

Depreciation and amortization expenses 33 4,042.86

Other expenses 34 1,228.71
Total Expenses (I} 21,705.85
Profit/{loss} before tax {20,460.36}
Tax expense;

Current tax 5

Deferred tax -
Profit/(loss) for the year {20,460.36)
QOTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCH
Item not to be reclassified to profit and loss :

Remeasurement of gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans 38 2.60
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR {20,457.76)
Earnings per Equlty shares (Face Value Rupees 10 each)

Basic/ Diluted earnings per share (In Rupees) 35 {15.59)

Notes to the financial statements

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration Number 101720W/W 100355

e

Vijay Napawallya
Partner
Membership Number, 109859

Place ;: Mumbai
Date: 31st August, 2022

For and on beh~' of S0>rd of Directors of
Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited

\f\f NW'AQU

Ajay S Mittal Navnlt Choudhary
Director Director
DN : 00226355 OIN : 00613576




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

A Egquity Share Capital (Refer Note 16)
(Rupees in {akhs})

-Particulars Amount
Equity Shares of Rupees 10 each issued, subscribed
and paid up
As at April 1, 2021
Equity Shares

Issue of equity share during the year s

As at March 31, 2022 -

B Share Capital Suspense Account (Refer Note 16)
{Rupees in lakhs)

.. Partitulars - -Amount
As at April 1, 2021 2,622.76
Share Suspense Account -
As at March 31, 2022 2,622.76

B Other Equity {Refer Note 17)

{Rupees in lakhs})

- Reaserve & Surplus e
M ‘Equity Component of
. Retained ° Convertible | " Total
. Esmings: Preferencg shares, | -
As at April 1, 2021 {44,869.77) 30,682.15 519.09 | (13,668.53)
Loss for the year {20,460.36) {20,460.36)
Other comprehensive income 2.60 2.60
Fotal comprehensive income for the year {20,457.76) {20,457.76)
As at March 31, 2022 {65,327.53) 30,682.15 519.09 {34,126.29)
Notes to the financial statements 1-71
As per our Report of even date
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355

\/ﬁ_‘f o . %m_\\ W Qunirtrous

Vijay Napawaliya Ajay 5 Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner . Director Director
Membership Number. 109859  _~“7¢Di 4 5;;‘\\ DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place : Mumbai
Date: 31st August, 2022




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

[Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Yearended
March 31,2022
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profitf {Loss) for the year before tax (20,460.36)
Adjustments for ;
Depreciation and amortization expenses 4,042 86
Interest Income {784}
Interest on loan to gthers (22.11)
Loss/{Gain} on sale/discarded Property, plant and equipment / intangible Assets 530.20
Gain on Lease modification 4.78)
Provision for Doubtful debes/ ECL ¥.20
Sundry Balances Written Back [net) [258.36}
Finance Expense 15,768.65
Interest on Income Tax refund [6.90)
Rent concession {4.28)
Excess provision write back (26.64)
Fair value of finrancial instruments {0.14}
Government grant - income (35.07)
OPERATING PROFIT / {LOS5S) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES {478.77)
Adjustments for
Trade & other payahies (136.29)
Trade & other receivables {3,230.98)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS {3,845.03)
Direct Tax [Paid}/ Refunds 65.40
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Total (&) {3,779.63)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.44)
{Increase)f decrease in other bank balances 199,15
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets 1,200.00
Leans given to other (Net) 2,230.37
Investment in subsidiary (208
Interest Income on Fixed Deposits 17.20
interest Income on loans to others 23.11
HET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Total {8) 3,668.39
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrawings - Non current 1,404 .33
Payment of Lease Liability {114.02}
Borrawing - current {Net} [0.00)
Interest paid on borrowings (1,195.00)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Total {C} 95.31
Ket Increasef{Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B4C) 115.93}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 33.90
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 17.97
Cash and cash equivatents at the end of the year 17.95
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year {Refer Note no, 11) 17.95
*Note:- Changes in tiabilities arising from financing activities :
Partlculars April 1, 2021 Cash flow INDAS impact Other non cash March 31, 2022
adjustment
Long term borrowing {Refer Note nc 18 & 22) 65,630.18 1,404.33 2953 - 67,318.04
Short term borrowing [Refer Note no. 22) 3,000.00 0.00 - - 3,000.00
Notes to the finandal statements
As per our Report of even date
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355
-
et M W N zasl  Nausicwozs
Vijay Napawaliya Ajay 5 Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership Number, 109859 DIN : 00226355 DIN : DD61357%6

Place ; Mumbai
Date: 31st August, 2022




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022

Larperate Infarmatlon

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited {hereinafter referred to "the Parent Company” or "the Company™) [CIN : US3000MH2008PLC180907) together with its
subsidiary {collectively referred to as "Group"} is a pubiic company domiciled in India and is incorporated on April 7, 2008 under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicabie in India. The registered office of the company is focated at 205 & 206, Level 2, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, £-Block, Dr. Annie
Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400 018.

Arshiva Rail Infrastructure limited {ARIL) offering unprecedented rail infrastructure, including Private Freight Terminal IPFT),warehousing including
temperature controlled storage and Inland Container Depot (ICD} . The company is engaged in PFT business, warehousing and ICE business for Exim Traffic.
ARIL's unique offering provide unparalieled efficiancies with capability of large scale evacuation of cargo from Ports, Domestic Distriparks, Free Trade and
Warehousing Zones , Inland Container Depot {ICD) and customer Sldings.

AMD Business Support Services Private Limited is a service and manufacturing unit in Free Trade Warehousing Zone [FTW2) of Arshiya timited at Sai,
Panvel, Maharashtra and Archiva Northern FTW2 Limited, at Khurja, Uttar Pradesh.

The Consalidated financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2022 were approved and adopted by board of directors in their meeting held on 31st
August, 2022. These statements comprises of Consclidated Financlal Statements {"CFS") of Arshiva Rail Infrastructure limited and its subsldiary for the year
ended 3ist March, 2022,

AMD Business Support Services Private Limited became the subsidiary of the Company from 14th August, 2021 hence, this is the first year in which
consolidation of financial statement is applicable and prepared. Hence no comparative figures are given.

Basls of preparation of consotidated financial statement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {"Ind AS") notified by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs ("MCA"] pursuant to the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015,
[as amended] and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at
fair value f amortized cost.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indlan Rupees (Rs.} which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency and all values are
rounded to the nearest lakb as per the requirement of schedule 14 of the Act, unless when otherwise indicated.

Basis for Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary as at 31st March, 2022, Contral is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to varlable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. Te support this presumption and when the Group has Iess than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an Investee, the Group considers all refevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including the contractual arrgngement with the other vote holders of the investee, rights arising from other contractual arrangements, the
Group’s voting rights and poatential voting rights and the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the haldings of the
other voting rights holders,

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of
the subsidiary. Assets, liabititles, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired during the year are included in the consaolidated financial statements from
the date the Group obtains control and assets, ltabilities, incorme and expenses of a subsidiary disposed off during the year are included in the consclidated
financial statements till the date the Group ceases to control the subsidlary.

The CFS includes the Financial Statements of the Parent Company and the subsidiary {as listed in the table below). Subsidiary are consolidated from the
date on which effective control is acquired and are excluded fram the date of transfer/disposal.

“31st March, 2022

{

AMD Business Support Services Private Limited [AMD) (w.e.f. 14th August, 2021} India 100%

(a}

(b}

{c)

tdi

Consolidation procedure:
Combine Jike items of assets, {iabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash fiows of the parent with those of its subsidiary. For this purpose, income and
expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and lfabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

Offset {eliminate} the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. The difference
between the cost of investm ant in the Subsidiary and the Parent’s share of net assets at the time of acquisition ¢ control in the Subsidiary is recognised in
the consolidated financial statement as goodwill. However, resultant gain [bargain purchase) is recognized in ather comprehensive income on the
acquisition date and accumulated te capital reserve in equity,

Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from Intra Group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consglidated financial statements,

Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss and each component of OCl are attributed to the equity helders of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the nen-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

for the acquisitions of additional interests in Subsidiary, where there is no change in the control, the Group recognises a reduction to the non-controlling
interest of the respective subsidiary with the difference between this figure and the cash paid, inclusive of transaction fees, being recagnised In equity. In
addition, upon dilution of controlling interests, the difference between the cash received from sale or listing of the subsidiary shares and the increase to
non-controiling interest is also recognised in equity. If the Group loses contral over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets {inciuding goodwill},
liabilities, non-controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and
loss. The results of Subsigiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss from the effective date
af acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using unifarm accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If an entity
of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar
drcumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to
ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

Consolidated financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date 35 that of the Parent Company,
h.e., year ended on 31st March. When the end of the reparting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, if any, the subsidlary prepares, for
consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the consolidated financial staternents of the parent to enable the parent to
consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, uniess it is impracticable to do so.

Slgnificant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accurnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes purchase price,
borrowing cost and any cost directly sttributable to the bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Depredatian on the property, plant and equipment is provided using straight line method over the useful life of assets as specified in schedule il ta the
Comgpanies Act, 2013. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease. Depreciation an property, plant and equipment which are added /
disposed off during the year, is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / detetion. Freehold Jand is not depreciated and under the
previous 5AAP land was revalued.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at sach financial year end and are adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under construction / installation / under development as at the balance sheet
date.

Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the period of lease.

Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from consolidated Anandial statement, either on disposal or when retired from active use. Profits / losses
aristng in the case of retirement { disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the year of
ocourrence,

The Group has opted to tontinue with the carrying values of all of its Property, Plant and Equipment as recognised in the Previous GAAP financial
statements as deemed cost at the transition date i.e. 1st April, 2016.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the intangibte assets.

tdentiflable intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future ecanamic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of
the asset can be reliably measured.

Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning {ERP) software Including expenditure on implementation Is to be amortized over a period of ten years based on
management’s estimate of usaful life over which economic benefits will be derived from its use.

Computer softwares are capitalized at the amounts palid to acquire the respective license for use and are amortized over the period of three to seven years.
The assets” useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the differance between the net dispasal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss whan the asset is derecognised.

The Group has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of its Intangible assets as recognised in the Previous GAAP financial statements as deemed
cost at the transaction date i.e. 1st April, 2016.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract canveys the
right to cantrol the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to contrel
the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of identified asset; lii} the Group has substantially all of the
economic benefits from the use of the asset through the periad of lease and {iii) the Group has right to direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use [ROU] asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (shert-term leases). For these short term leases, the Group recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The ROU assets are initialty recognized at cost, which cemprises the
initial amount of the lease liabllity adjusted for any fease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any Inittal direct costs Jess
any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. ROU assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use
asset is periodicatly reduced by impairment losses, If any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liabifity. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid st the commencement date, discounted using its incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Group changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a terminatlon option.

ROU assets and Lease liability have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet note 7, 24 respectively and lease payments have been classified as
finanging cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventaries comprises of cost of land and incidental cost thereto, cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and ather costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their respective present location and condition. Cost is computed on
the firstin first out basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three manths or
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and short-term depasits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as which are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management.

Impairment of assets

An assetis considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet, there are indlcations of impairment and the carrying amount of the asset, or where
applicable, the cash generating unit to which the asset helongs, exceeds its recoverable amount {i.2. the higher of the net asset selling price and value in
use).The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverzble amount and the reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss. The impairment {oss recagnized in the prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.
Postimpairment, depreciation is pravided on the revised carrying value of the impaired asset aver its remaining useful lfe.

Financial instruments ~ initial recognition, subsequent nent and impairment
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a finandal asset of one entity and a financial lisbility or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets -Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directiy attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets, which
are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Finandal assets are classified, at initial recognition, ag
financial assets measured at fair value or 3s financial assets measured at amortized cost.

Financial assets - Subseguent x

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categorles:-

Financhai assets at fair value

Financial assets at amortized cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are sither recognlsed entirely in the consolidated statement of profit and loss {i.e. fair value
through profit or loss), or recognised in other comprehensive incame {i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income).

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortized cost {net of any write down for impairment) unless the asset is
designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

Business model test: The objective of the Group's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flow.

Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the finandial asset give rise on specified dates ta cash flow that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the foilowing two conditions is measured at fair value through cther comprehensive income unless the asset is designated at
fair value through profit or loss under the fair value aption.

Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose cbjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash fiow and selling
financial assets.

Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset glve rise on specified dates to cash flow that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount autstanding.

Financlal assets - Derecognition

A financial assets {or, where applicable, a part of a finandial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets} is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed form
the Group's statement of financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash fiows from the asset have expired, or

The Group has transferred Its rights to recelve cash flow from the asset,

Financial liabilities - initial recognition and measw. rement:
The financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of directly sttributable transaction costs.

Effective interest methed

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of 3 financial instrument and of allocating Interest income or expenses aver the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discaunts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of financial
instruments, or where appropriste, 2 shorter period.

Financial liabllities - Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest methad. For trade and other payables maturing within one yaar
from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts are approximate st their falr value due to the shart maturity of these instruments.
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Financial Liabilities - Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are these contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised initially as a fiability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attrIbutable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the
liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allpwance determined and the amount recognised less curnulative amortization.

Financial Llabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the ohbligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another, from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantlally modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original {iabllity and the recognition of a new liabllity. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Compound Instruments

An issued financial instrument that comprises of both the liability and equity components are accounted as compound financial instruments. The fair value
of the liability component is separated from the vompound instrument and the residual value is recognised as equity companent of ather financial
instrument. The liability component is subsequently measured at amortised cost, whereas the equity component is not remeasured after initial recognition.
The transaction costs refated to compound instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in the proportion to the allocation of gross
proceeds. Transaction costs related to equity component is recognised directly in equity 2rd the cost related to fiability componernt is included in the
carrying amount of the Jiabllity compenent and amortised using effective interest method.

Provisions, Contingent Llabllities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {'egal or constructive) as a result of a past event. it is probable that an outfiow of
rescurces embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the abligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ohligation. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using equivatent period government securities interest rate, Unwinding of the
disgount is recognised in the cansofidated statement of profit and loss 35 2 finance cost. Provisions sre reviewed at each balance sheet date and asre
adjusted to reflect the corrent best estimate.

Contingent liabiifdes are disclosed when there is a possible cbligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
accurrence or non-gcourrence of one ar more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present ohligation that arises from
past events where it is elther not probabie that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be madea.
Infarmation on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when
the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, butitis recognised as an asset,

Divldend Distribution

Annua! dividend distribution to the sharehalders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any
interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors, Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognised
directly in other equity.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of goods or rendering of servites 1o customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Group
expects 1o receive in exchange for those goods or services.

Income from services is recognized upon completion of services as per the terms of contracts with the customers, Period based services are accrued and
recognized pro-ratz aver the contractual periad.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, price concessions and incentives, If any, as specified in the contract with
the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Amounts billed for senvices In accordance with contractual terms but where revenue is not recognized, have been dlassified a3 unearned revenue and
disclosed under current liabilities

Cantract assets are recognized when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivabies {only
act of inveicing is pending} when there is uncanditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per cantractual terms. Unearned
revenue (“contract liabifity™} is recognized when there is billing In excess of revenues.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct goods or services to
a custormer as specified In the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes and duties collected on behalf of the
government}. Consideraticn is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a receivable is recognized when it becomes unconditional.

Revenue from valued optimisation services and other activities is recognised when related services are perfermed as per the contractual terms.

Rall Transport Operations

Revenue fron sale of services e.g rall freight income recognised as per the terms of ¢ atracts with customers based on stage of completion when the
outcome of the transactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably, F. - Fixad-price cantract, revenue is recognised based on the actual
service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to pravided (Percentage of completion method)

Measement of revenue : Estimates of revenues, cost or extent of progress toward campletion are revised if civcumstances change Any resulting increases or
decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected In profit or loss in the periad in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known
by management.

Revenue from handling and other ancillary services is recognised at the time of rendering of service which is at the time of loading/unloading of
tontainer/cargo.

Intand Container Depot (JCD}

Revenue from Container handling, storage and Rail & Road transportation are recognised on proportionate completion of the movement and delivery of
goods to the party/ designated place,
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Revenue from Ground rent is recognised for the period the container is lying in the ICD ares.

Domestlc Warehousing
Revenue from allotment of warehousing space and open yard area for use is accounted on accrual basis as per agreed terms of contract,

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured refiably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principat outstanding and at the effective interast rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financisl asset 1o that asset’s net tarrying amount on indtial
recognition.

Bividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is establishad, which is generally when sharehoiders approve the payment of
dividend.

Contract balances
Trade Receivables
A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that s unconditional.

Contract liabifities

A contract fiability is the obligation to transfer of services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration {(or an amount of consideration is
dug) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers services to the customer, a contract lisbility 1s recognised when the
payment is made Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract,

Foreign currency reinstatermnent and translatlon:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Subseguently monetary items are
transiated at closing exchange rates as on balange sheet date and the resulting exchange difference recognised in the cansotidated statement of profit and
loss. DHferences arising on settlement of monetary items are also recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transaction. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated In foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in lIne with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item {i.e., translation differences on items whase fair value gain or loss is recognised in OC1
or profit or loss ere also recognised in OCl or profit ar loss, respectively).

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, within finance
costs. All other finance gains / losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit and {oss on a net basis.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are recognized as an axpense in the consolidated statement of profit and lass of the year in which the related services are
rendered.

Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Provident Fund, & defined contribution plan, is made in sccordance with the statute, and is recognised as an expense in the year in which
employees have rendered services.

Defined Benefit Plan

Leave encashment being a defined benefit plan is accounted for using the projected unit credit method, on the basis of actuariai valuations carried gut by
third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date, Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income In the year in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss,

The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plans, is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the hasis of actuarial valuations carried
out hy third party actuarles at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to ather comprehensive income In the period In which they arise. Other costs are accounted in the consoligated
statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan in respect of post employment and other tong term henefits are charged to the other comprehensive income in
the year in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit and |oss in subsequent perlods.

Taxes on Income

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax {including MAT and Income tax for earlier years] and deferred tax . Tax is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive [ncome, in such
cases the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other camprehensive income. Any subsequent change in direct tax on items initially recognlsed n
equity or other comprehensive income is alsa recognised in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax pravision is computed for Income calculated after considering allowances and exemptions under the provisions of the applicable Income Tax
Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and abilities in the Balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally rece gnised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances 1o the extent that it is prohable that future taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilized. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates. The carrying amount of defarred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs specifically relating ta the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use are capitaiized (net of income on temporarily deployment of funds) as part aof the cost of such assets, Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other casts that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset.

The tapitalization rate is the weighted average of the barrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the period,
other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of borrawing costs capitalized during a period does nat
exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other horrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur,

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit/ioss for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Oiluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit/loss for the vear attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average number of equity and
potentizl equity shares outstanding during the year incuding share options, convertible preference shares and debentures, except where the result would
be anti-difutive. Potential equity shares that are converted during the year are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the beginning
of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of conversian.

Current and non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financiat position based on current/non-current classification.

The Group has presented non-current assets and current assets, non-current iiablitties and current fiabilities in accordance with Schedule IIt, Division It of
Companies Act, 2013 notified by MCA.

An asset Js classifled as ¢urrent when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyde,

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent uniess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All ather assets are classified as non-current.

A liabllity is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

Held primartly for the purpose of trading,

Due to be settled within twetve months after the reporting period, or

There is no uncenditional right to defer the settfement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Al other fiabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabllities. The Group has identified twelve months as its normal operating cycle.

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each batance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 2 Eability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagecus market for the asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of 2 non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s abifity to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by seiling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the drcumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and fiabHities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the conselidated financial statements are categorized within the fair value hiecarchy.

Off-setting financizl Instrument

Financial assets and liabll ues are offset and the net amount Is reported in the balance sheet where ther - 15 a legally enforceable rights to offset the
recognised amounts and tiere Js an intention to settle on a nat hasis or realise the asset and settle the liabulity simultaneously. The legally enforceable
rights must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptey of the Group or counterparty.

Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur axpenses, whose
operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group's chief operating decision maker to make degisions for which discrete financial information is
avsilable. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision maker evaluates the Group's perfarmance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geagraphic segments.

Contributed Equity
Equity Shares are classified as equity, incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction, net of
tax from the proceeds.
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Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or accrusls of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from aperating, investing and financing activities of the Group are
segregated based on the available information.

Business combinatlons

Business Combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 102 ‘Business Combination’, Acquisitions of businesses are accountsd for using the acquisition
method unless the transaction is between entities under common control.

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Group are accounted for using the pooling of interests method as follows:

The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

No adjustments are made to reflect fair vaiues, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.

Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies.

The financtal information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business comhbination had occurred from the beginning
of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the business combination had
occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only from that date.

The halance of the Retained Earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the
financial statements of the transferee or is adjusted against General Reserve.

The identities of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of tha transfaree.
The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share rapital issued plus any addltional censideration in the form of cash or other assets and the
amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to Capital Reserve and is presented separately from Cther Capital Reserves,

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements reguires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptiors that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disdosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that reguire a materfai adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affectad in
future periods. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have z significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

The Group based on its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated finandial statements were prepared. However, existing
gircumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circurnstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they ocour.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible Assets

Martagement reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives snd residual values as per schedule I} of the Companies Act, 2013 or are based on the Group's bistorical
experience with similar assets and taking inte account anticipated technological changes, whichever is more appropriate.

Incorne Tax

The Group reviews at each batance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual ovtcome
which could tead to an adjustment to the amounts reported tn the financial statements. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates,
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.

Contingencies
Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting finandal year, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Group as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Impairment of financlal assets

The impairment provisfons for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash ioss. The Group uses Judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
loaking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Irmpairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impalred. If any Indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
or Cash Generating Units {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value In use. it is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent to those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or £GU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down tg its recoverable amount.

in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining falr vatue less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken inte account. f no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are carroborated by v .uation
multiptes or other available fair value indicators.

Defined benefits plans

The Cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities invalved in the valuation and its long-term nature, 3 defined benefit abligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Recoverabllity of trade receivable

ludgements are required In assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those receivables is
required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions
that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.
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Provisions

Provislons and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations
or events and the amount of cash cutflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of
|udgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the rash outflows can take place many years in the future, the
carrying amounts of provisians and fiabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial fiahilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active marksts,
their fair value is measured using valvation technigues including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF} model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements indude
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factars could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments.

Recent Accounting pronouncements
On March 23, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA)] has notified Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, This
notification has resulted into amendments in the following existing accounting standards which are applicable to company from April 01, 2022,

Ind AS 101 — First time adoption of Ind AS

ind AS 103 - Business Combination

Ind A% 106 - Financial Instrument

Ind AS 1€ - Property, Plant and Equipment

Ind AS 37 —Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Ind A5 41 - Agricultare

The Group does not expect the consequential amendments to have any significant impact in its consolidated financial statements.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Rupees in Iakhs}.

Particulars Right o use asset
Gross Carrying Value

As at April 01, 2021 542.14
Additions 5
Disposats {111.76)
As at March 31, 2022 430.38
Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2021 359.75
Depreciation for the year 95.19
Deductions {75.54)
As at March 31, 2022 415.40
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 10.98




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Particulars. ) Computer Software. Rail Licenses feas Total
Gross Carrying Value

As at April 1, 2021 713.31 3,208.33 3,921.64
Additions - - -
Disposals* . (3,208.33) {3,208.33)
As at March 31, 2022 713.31 0.00 713.31

Accumulated Amortisation

As at April 1, 2021 546.86 1,250.18 1,797.04
Amortisation for the year 59.93 22797 327.90
Deductions - {1,478.15) {1,478.15)
As at March 31, 2022 B546.79 &.00 646.79
Net Carrylng value as at March 31, 2022 66.52 - 66.52

* Note - Railway license (Category- |, CTO) is sold through SARFAESI Act by EARC e-auction sale in Rs. 1700 lakhs dated 28th Feb'22. Net book value as
on 28th Feb'2022 is Rs. 1730.20 Jakhs. Loss an sale of Licensa of Rs. 530.20 lakhs shown in other expensas note no. 34,
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a)

b)

ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAE STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS {Rupees in lakhs)
) Asat
RrrdcHir: March 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stoted
Capital Advances 1,041,648
- Other Advances - gratuity {Refer Note 38) 22.30
Gthers
- TDS Receivable 230.49
Total 1,294.43
CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES {Rupees in lakhs)
: - el Asat
: u March 31,2022
Current

Trade Receivables consldered good - Secured -
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 2815
Trade Receivable which have Significant increase in Credit Risk 1.50

Trade Receivable -credit impaired =
35.65
Less: Provision for expectad credit loss 7.50
71.50
Total 28.15

Notes:
Trade Receivable ageing schedule as at 31 March'22

Pardculars

Qurtstanding for following pariod from due date of payment

Not due

Lexs then &
months

& menths-1
yoar

1-Z years

2-3 yeurs

Mure than
3 years

Total

! I P a Trade B, I [}
Lonsiderad good

-Which have significant increase in credit risk
-Credit impaired

Hsputed Trade Recelvables

Considered good

-Which have significant increase in credit risk
-Credit Impaired

21,16

599

28.15
7.50

Totaf

21.16

7.50

33,65

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit ioss allowance)

{7.501

{7.50}

Total

21.16

6.99

28.15

Movement in the Doubtiul debts / Expectad Credit loss Allowance

As at
31 March'22

Balance as the heginning of the year
Mavement in expected credit loss allowarnce

26.94
(19.44)

Balance at the end of the year

7.50
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

[Rupees in lakhs}

CURRENT ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

- Asat
. varinars 3 March 31, 2022
Balances with hanks on current accaunts 17.94
Cash on hand 0.01
Total 17.95%

CURRENT ASSETS - LDANS

{Rupees in lakhs)

- Asat
Durtiaers March 31, 2022

Loan to others considered good - Unsecured 225.37

Loan to others which have Significant increase in Credit Risk -

Loan to others -credit Impaired :

Loan to Related Parties considered good - Unsecured HEFE:

Total 231.12

CURRENT ASSETS - OTHER BANK BALANCES {Rupees in lakhs)

: : s _Asat
: AR March 81, 2022

Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money 103.37

Total 103.37

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS [Rup=es in lakhs)

; o L Asat
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Security Deposits 81.28

Financial Guarantee 309.98

Total 391.26

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS [Rupees in lakhs)

- Advances to Suppliers 3,858.50

- Advances to Employees 3184

-Others 0.03

Others

-Other recetvabie 110.24

- Prepaid expenses 5.28

-interest Recelvable 20.7%

- Balange with Government Authgrity 1555

Total 4,092.23




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

As at

batisubr . - ' ) March 31, 2022
Equiity Shares
i} Auvthorlsed Share Capital
30,75,00,000 Equity shares of Rupees 2 each 6,150.00
35,50,000 Preference Shares of Rupees 10 each 355.00
Total 6,505.00
i} Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up -
Total E
[t} Share Capital Suspense Actount 2,622.76
(In consequence to Demerger of Arshiva Limited (AL} Domestic Business Undertaking, 13,11,37,958 Equity shares of Rs. 2
each fully paid up Is te be issued to shareholders of AL as consideration w.e.f. appointed date i.e. April 1st, 2019,
Pending issue and allotment of equity shares, the face value of shares to be allotied is shown against "Share Suspense|
Account”
Total 2.622.76
Iv) Reconciliation of Zero% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year
P ars: : in numbers AN
Particlars o x . {Ripees in lakhs}
Preference Share Capital
Zera Percent Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rupees 10 each
At April 1, 2621 1,20,000 12.00
Issued during the year . -
At March 31, 2022 1'20’000 12.00

Terms/rights attached to equlity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rupees 2 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of
the sharehalders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitfed to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferentiai amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Terms/rights attached to preference shares

The Company has issued & allotted 1,20,000 Zero % OCRPS of Rupees 10 each at a premium of Rupees 930 per OCRPS aggregating to Rupees
1,200.00 lakhs.

Tenure of OCRPS: 6 years,

Conversion option: The right of conversion shall be exercised at the last day of sixth year fram the date of allotment of the OCRPS, only in event
of failure on part of the Company to redeem the OCRPS or inability of the Promoters 1o buyback the OCRPS.

Redemption: The OCRPS Series 1 shall be redeemed in ane single installment of Rupees 1200 Jakk {including premium) at the end of 6th year
from the date of allotment of QCRPS - Series I.




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

iv. Details of shares te be alloted more than 5% equity shares in the company on Record date

Name of the shareholder

As at March 4, 2022

] Number of shares to he
alioted

% holding

Equity shares of Rupees 2 each fully paid

Promater
Mr. Ajay 5. Mittai 1,91,78,219 14.62%
Mrs. Archana A Mittal 3,75,98,639 28.67%
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (On behalf of
various trusts) 3,00,29,905 22.90%
v. Shareholding of promoters proposed to be alloted on Record date
As at 31st March 2022
: No. of shares to be
Category’ Promofter's name atloted at the el of the |% of total shares
L year
Promoter Mr. Ajay 5. Mittal 1,91,78,219 14.62%
Promoter Mrs. Archana A Mittal 3,75,98,639 28.67%

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% preference shares in the company

Namaﬁfmsharehqlder : As at March 31, 2022
s B RS RER Numbet ' % holding
Preference shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid
Bank of Barada 1,20,000 100.60

Note:- Erstwhile Arshiva Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited {AIDHL) which merged inta Company has allotted 1,20,000 Zero Percent
Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares {OCRPS) at Rs. 1,000/- to on 18.01.2018 aggregating to Rs. 12,00,00,000/- to Bank of
Baroda on preferential basis in fieu of and against conversion of loan amounting to Rs. 12,00,00,000/- pursuant to the OTS terms and conditions

dated 26th December, 2017,

However, by virtue of merger of AIDHE with ARIL pursuant to the Hon'ble NCLT Mumbai Bench order dated 6th Dacember, 2019 and as per
scheme, the Company is in process of necessary compliances related to OCRPS.




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
) upees in Iak

Particular Asat
- rarticuiars - March 31, 2022
Retained Earnings (65,327.53)
Capital Reserve 30,682.15
Equity Component of Zero% Optionally Convertible Preference shares {OCRPS) 519.09
Total {34,126.29)
{a) Retained Earnings {Rupees in lakhs)
R | Particula | As at
e March 31,.2022
Opening balance {44,869.77)
Add/(Less): -
Net Profit/{Loss} for the year {(20,460.36)
Other comprehensive income 2.60
Closing balance {65,327.53)
{b} Capital Reserve {Rupees in lakhs)
e | ' paiiiulats: ¢ Asat
. ranionans March 31, 2022
Opening balance 30,682.15
Add/{Less): Transaction during the year 2
Closing balance 30,682.15

{c} Nature & purpose of Reserves

Retained Earnings ;

Retained Earnings are the profits/iosses of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.

Capital Reserve
The surplus arising on recording of assets & liabilities and nullification of inter company balances as per scheme
of acquisition of Domestic undertaking over the shares cancelled and consideration recorded is transferred to
Capital Reserve.

Equity Component of Zero% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference shares (OCRPS)
The fair value of liability component is deducted from the fair value of instruments as a whole, with the
resulting residual amount being recogni : equity component.




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

[Rupees In lakhs)

18  NON CURRENT BORROWINGS

- Asat
. _ Perticdacs March 31, 2022
Unsecured
{a) Loans fram related party [Refer note 18.1 below and 41) 1,404.33
(b } Liability Compaonent of Compound Financial Instrurments 1,071.43
Total 2.475.76
18.1 Note:
1} Unsecured loan aviailed from Relatad Party.
2} Rate of Interest is @ 12% p.a.
3} Loan is repayable on 1st February, 2025
19  OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {Rupees in lakhs)
Particilars s
Non Current
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 50.23
Total 50.23
20 NONK CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS {Rupees in lakhs)
| Particuia i
Non Current
Provision for employee benefits
Leave encashment (Refer Nate 38) 16.74
Total 16.74
21 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES {Rupees in lakhs)
o bt B
Non Current
Government Grants (Refer 26.1) 62.74
Total —b2.74
22 CURRENT BORROWINGS [Rupees in lakhs:
2022
Secured
(&) Loan from other party (Refer note 22.1 below) 3,000.00
(b} Current maturities of long term borrowings
Term Loans from banks {Refer Note 22.2)* 4,219.28
Term Loans from others (Refer Note 22.3) 00,622.99
Unsecurad
{d} Loans from related party 435
Total £7,846.62

* intlude Loan aggregating 10 Rupees 4,219.28 lakhs recatled by banks.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
1D & Domestic Warehousing Divislon- Short term 1oan from ather party

Term loans of Aupees 3,000 lakhs are secured by

{2} Details of Security

i} First Ranking charges on all present and future cash flows, all assets and movable collateral availabile to the existing lenders of ICD & Domestic
Warehousing Division as per the Deeds of Hypothecation,

il) Personal Guarantee of both promoter directors of erstwhile Parent Company

iii} Corporate Guarantee of erstwhile Parent Company

(b} Rate of Interest: 18% p.a

[c ] Repayment: Bullet pay t after expiry of 3 months.

[d) Amount and period of default in repayment of borrowings: Default in repayment of principal of Rupees 3,000 lakhs since March 31, 2019, The
sarne has been recall by the lenders.

RAIL Division- Rupee term loan from Banks :-
- Rupee term loans of Rupees 4,219.28 lakhs are secured by
{1) Detalis of Security
i. First charge on all movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipment's) and immovahble properties of the Rail Division both present and
future an pari passu basis.
ii. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current 2ssets of the Rall Division on pari passu basis.
iil. Personal guarantees from Promoters of erstwhile Holding Company.
. Corporate Guarantee from erstwhile Holding Company/ Promoter.
v. Pledge of 100% equity shares of ARIL i.e. pre merger of AIDHL & ATHL with the company scheme shareholding held by Promaters.

{2) Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from Banks from 10.45% p.a - 16.25% p.a.

(3} Terms of repayment ;-

{Rupees in lakhs)

. Finanéia) Year _ Terin Loshs o Baks
2015-2016 2,385.28
2018-2019* 1,834.00

Total 4,219.28

* Refer note no. 50

[#) Amount and period of default in repayment of borrowings
{Rupees in fakhs)

Current meturity of Rupee Term lgans 2015-2016 2,385.28
2018-2019* 1.834.00
Total 4,219.28

RAIL Division- Rupee term loan from other parties :-

- Rupee term loans (including current maturity} of Rupees 34,024.82 lakhs are secured by

(1] Detalls of Security

1. First charge on all movable assets (Including rakes, containers, equipment’s) and immovahle properties of the Rail Division both present
ii. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets of the Rail Division on pari passu basis.

iii. Personal guarantees from Promoters of erstwhile Holding Company.

iv. Carporate Guarantee fram erstwhile Holding Company.
v. Pledge of 100% equity shares of ARIL Le. pre merger of AIDHL & ATHL with the company scheme shareholding held by Promoters.




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMFTED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{2] Terms of interest rate:
- on Term Loans from others 10% p.a. compounded monthly, payable half yearly,

(3] Terms of repayment :-

{Rupees in kakhs)
Financiil Year Amgynt
20132020 1,744.63
2020-2021 6,139.19
2021-2022 2,276.52
2022-2023 23,954.16
Total 34,114.50
{4} Amount and period of default In repayment of borrowings
{Rupees In lakhs)
o As ot March 31, 2022
Particulars ; . Period of
; i .. . Amourit: | Defaukt
Current maturity of Rupee Term toans -Cthers 1,744.63 2013-20
5,139.19 2020-21
2,276.52 2021-22
23,954.16 .
Total 34,114.50

* During the year, all the loans along with interest & other dues are recalied by the lenders.
{5) The amortised cost disclosed above is net off of incidental cost of barrowings aggregating to Rupees 74,21 lakhs for March 31, 2022,

224 ICD & Domestic Warehousing Division- Rupee term loan from other parties ;-
- Rupee term loans {Including current maturity) of Rupees 26,598.44 are secured by
(1] Details of Security
i. First charge en all movable assets and Immovable assets of the ICD & Demestic Warehousing Division hoth gresent and future on pari
passu basis,
ii. First charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets of the €0 & Domestic Warehousing Division an pari passu basis.
iv. Corporate Guarantee from erstwhile Holding Company.

{2} Terms of Interast rate:
- on Term Loans from others 10% p.a. compounded monthly, payable half yearly.

{3} Terms of repayment ;-

{Rupees in Jakhs)

AR - Flnancisl Year PEE 1  Aayiaing
2019-2020 1,885.69
2020-2021 4,034.74
2021-3023 2,209.30
2022-2023 18,470.27
Total 26,600.00

{4} Amount and period of defauit In repayment of b ings

As$t March 31, 2092
R ‘Parfod &t
Current maturity of Rupee Term loans -Others 1,885.69 01920
4,034.74 2020-21
2,202.30 2021-22
18,470.27 * |
Total 26,600.00 |
* During the year, all the loans alang with interest & other dues are recailed by the tenders.

{5) The amortised cost disclosed above is n 2t off of incidantal cost of borrowings aggregating to Rupees 1.56 lakhs for March 31, 2023,
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

CURRENT LIABILITIES- TRADE PAYABLES

[Rupees in lakhs)

. . Asat-
Foniairs -March 31, 2032
Total cutstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer note 40 & 53) 72.83
Tetal outstanding dues of crediters Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 605.37
{Refer note 40) :
Total G78.21
Trade Payabile ageing schedule as at 31 March'22
C Outstanding for following periots from due date of payment
Particulars. Mot dig ey than 1 -2y [2-3years L Total
Undisputed Trade Payable
-gues of micro and small enterprises 16.41 42.97 i3.45 = 7 72.83
-Others 101.42 5248 157.79 | 9874 | 12494 605.37
Disputed Trade Payable
-dues of micro and small enterprises - E!
Others y - # . ) :
Total 117.83 95.45 181.28 | 9B8.74 | 184.94 678.20
LEASE LIABILITIES {Rupees in lakhs)
T  Asat -
Current
Lease fiability (Refer note 37) 14.04
Total 12.04
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES [Rupees in {akhs)
R X A o ¥ _M:Il "
Current
Financial Liabilitles at amortised cost
Interest accruad and due on borrowlngs® 51,579.74
Interest payable on short term loan 064
Security Deposit 166.50
Others
Project Creditors {Refer note 53) 111173
Employee’s Dues ** 229.90
Payable for Expenses 670.10
Total 53,758.61

*Include Interest accrued and due on Term Loans aggregating to Rupees 51,579.74 lakhs recalled by banks and

"*Include Full and Final settlement of Rupees 105.55 lakhs.




ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

** Amount and pericd of default in payment of Interest on borrowings

{Rupees in lakhs)

March 31, 2022
- Particutars. : O Period of
; Banks Cthers
. i Default
Interest accrued & due on borrowing 965.05 - 2013-14
740.00 - 2014-15
1,035.94 - 2015-16
1,287.23 - 2016-17
151265 252981 | 2017-18
2,423.96 470096 | 2018-1%
2,180.26 13,694.06 ( 2019-20
259168 539396 | 2020-21
2,800.77 11,890.3) | 2021-22
Total 15,547.54 35032.19
26 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES {Rug lay lakhs)
' ——— As it
Particifes. ‘March 31, 2023
Current
Government Grants (Refer Note 26.1} 35.07
Others
Statutory Liabilities® 829.64
Interest on Delayed payment of Statutory dues 856.28
Total 1,780.99

* Statutory liablities include TDS,Goods & Service Tax, Service tax,PF,ESIC payable,Employee professional tax

26,1 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

{Rupees in lakhs)

Pastculars . MERH L, 2022
i i March 31,2022
Opening balgnce 132,89
Grants received during the year 5
Released to staternent of profit and loss {35.08)
Closing baiance 92.81
Current 35.07
Non Current £62.74

{Rupees in lakhs)

27 CURRENT I.IABILIT_IE§ - PROVISIONS

Current
Provision for employee benefits
Leave encashment {Refer Note 38)

Total

Asat
4.79
4.79

E-
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

{Rupees in lakhs)

. Year ended
s March"31; 2022
Handling Incame 30.20
Terminal Income 279.35
Other operating Income 46243
Rerit Income 50.15
Total 828.13
OTHER INCOME {Rug in lakhs)
L . Year snded
Particies March- 31, 2022
interest income on Financial assets carrled at amortised cost
Unwinding of interest on Security deposit 0.14
Other interest income
Interest on Bank fixed depaosits 7.54
Interest income on income tax refund 6.90
Interest on Loan to others 2311
Other income
Gavernment Grants 35.07
Gain on modification of Lease liability 4.73
sundry Balance/ Excess provision Written Back 258.36
Extess provisian Written Back-ECL 26.64
Rent cancession 438
Miscellsneous Income 50.05
Total 417.37
COST OF OFERATIONS (Rupees in lakhs}
5 e o Year ended
i particuhe Mareh 33,2022
Road Freight Expenses 0.41
Other operating expenses 47.56
Total 47,97
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
| Paiticutsiy’

Satarles, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident ana other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Total
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 231, 2022

FINANCE COST [Rupees in lakhs)
o ) Yearended
- | articytars ) Mareh 35, 2622
Interest expense on Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest expense on borrawings 15,205.3%
Intterest expense on Security Deposit 2.28
Interest expense others
Interest an Defayed Payment of Statutory Dues 126.12
Interest expenses on MSMED creditor 4.94
Other borrowing costs
Guarantee Commission Expense 306.28
Interest an Lease Lizhility 4.38
Finance cost on Amortisation of Liabifity Component 114.80
Bank charges 0.95
Total 15,768.64
{Rupees in lakhs}

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

B Year ended

S : : Particulars ‘March 31, 2022
Depreciation on tangible assets 3,619.78
Amortisation an intangible assets 327.89
Depreciation on assets to used 55.19
Total 4,042.86
OTHER EXPENSES {Rupees in lakhs}

. Farticiiais March 31,3022

Repairs and maintenance

- Building 568
- Others 68.36
Advertisement 4.69
Payments to Auditors [Refer note balow) 15.34
Electricity charges 51.65
Insurance 851
Legal and professional fees 108.62
Rates and taxes 197
Rent 10227
Printing and Stationary 6.0%
Cffice Expenses 9.44
Security charges 112.83
Telephone and internet exgenses 11.77
Travelling & conveyance expenses 2210
Vehicle Expenses 27.76
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 7.20
Miscellaneous expenses 122.24
Loss on safe of intangible assets 530.20
Total 1,228.72
(a) Details of Pay ts to auditors {Rupees in lakhs)

i 5 g . Yéarended _

;B 3 : Partioufers: March 31, 2022

As Statutory Auditor

Audit Fee 15.34
Tatal 15.34
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Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted)

As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
Frofit available to equity shareholders
Profit/{Loss) after tax (A) (Rupees in Lakhs) {20,450.36)
Add: interest adjustment on account of 0% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Frefarence Shares {OCRPS) 114 .80
Total Profit/ {Loss} for the year for diluted EPS (Rupees in Lakhs] {20,345.58)
Number of equity shares
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding {Basic) {(B)** 13,11,37,958
Add: Adjustment on acceunt of 0% Optionally Convertible Redesmable Preference Shares {OCRPS} 1,20,000
Tota! Weighted average number of equity shares /OCRPS (Diluted) (C) 13,12,57,958
Nominal Value of an equity share (Rupees) 10
Basic & Diluted earnings per share{A/8) (Rupees) 115.59]

* Diluted Earning per share when anti dilutive 1s restricted to Basic Earnings Per Share.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENT
{To the extent not provided for)

Capital Commitments

{Rupees in lakhs)

Paiticularg

Asat
Mair¢h 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for {net of advances

paid)

1,528.14

Cash outflow expected on execution on such capital contracts

Contingent Habilities:

{Rupees in lakhs}

W . Asat-

Particulars : . March 31, 2042
{7} Custodian cum Carrier Bond {Company has provided bond in favour of custom department for duty free movement 1,000.00
of goods from respective ports to 1C0 khurja)
{b) Bank Guarantee 100.00
{c) Clzims Against the Company not acknowledged as Debt 232.39
d} Collector of stamps 858.04

Mo Cash outflow is expected in near future

LEASES

Movement of carrying value of right of use of assets

{Rupees in jakhs)

Particulars.

As at

; March 31, 2002
Opening Balance 142.39
Additions recognised on implementation of Ind AS 116 (transition date) =
Modifications during the year {36.22)
Less: Depreciation charge for the year {595.19)
Closing Balance 10.98

Movment of Lease liabilities

{Rupees In lakhs)

Asat

B hhE N ‘March 31, 2022
Dpening Balance 168.56
Additions during the year =
Modifications during the year {36.22)
Add: Interest expenses on unwinding lease liabilities 4.88
Less; Gain on modification of lease liability {4.78)
Less: Rent concession {4.38)
Less: Payment of lease liabilities [114,02}]
Balance as at 31st March 2022 14.04
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fiii}  Maturity analysis of lease fiabilities on undiscounted basis and breakup of lease liabilities included in the Balance Sheet

As at
Particulars March 31, 2022
Future Non-Cancellable minimum lease commitments
Within one year 14.04
tviore than one year but not less than five years -
More than five years -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 14.04
Lease liabilitles included in the Balance sheet
Current Lease liabilities 14.04
Non-current Lease liabilities .
Toral 14.04

3B EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
38.1 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 19 - Employee Benefits

{a} Defined contribiution plans

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expenses for the years are as under:

{Rupees in lakhs)]

Particulars

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund
Employer's Contribution to Pension Scheme
Emptoyer's Contribution to ESIC

Asat
March 31, 202
399
5.07
0.08

{b) Brief descriptions of the glans

The Group defined contribution plans are Provident fund and Employees State Insurance where the group has no further chligation beyond
making the contributions. The Group defined benefit plans include gratuity. The emplovees are also entitled to leave encashment as pear the

Group's policy.

{c } Leave Dbligations

{Rug in lakhs}
: Particuldrs March 31, 2022
Provisions for Leave encashment
Current 4.79
Noa-Current 16.74
Total 21.53

id) Defined benefit plan — Gratuity:

The employes's Gratuity fund is managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of india. The present value of obiigation is determined hased on
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Methad, which recognised each period of services as glving rise to additional unit of employee

benefit entitlernent and measures each unit sapearately to build up to final obligation.

{Rupees in lakhs}

Partlculars

March 31, 2022

I. Actuarial assumptions
Mortality Table

Indian  Assured  lives
Miortality {2012-14} Uk

Discount rate 6.10%
Expected return on plan assets 5.60%
Salary Escalation Rate 5.00%:
Withdrawal Rate 20.00%|
Retirement Age 58 Years
11. Change in Present value of defined benefit obligations

Liability as at the beginning of the year %0.08
Interest cost 509
Current service cost 7.27
Benefits paid {37.60)
Actuarlal {gain}/loss on obligations {2.60)
Acquisition adjustment E
Liability as at the end of the year 62.24
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NI. Change in Fair value of plan assets

Falr value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 80.02
Expected return on plan assets 4.52
Actual Enterprise’s Contributions
Benefits paid

Actuarial gain/{loss) on plan assets B
Fair value of pian assets as at the end of the year 8454

V. Actual return on plan assets

Expected return on plan assets 4.52
Actuarial gainf{loss) on plan assets
Actual return on plan assets 452

V. Liahility recognised in the Balance Sheet

Liability as at the end of the year 62.24
Falr value of plan assets as at the end of the year £4.54
Liability/ {Asset} recognised in the Balance Sheet (22,30}

V1. Percentage of each category of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets
insurer managed funds 100%

ViI. Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost 7.27
Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets 0.57
Net actuarial {gain)/ioss to be on obligation

Expense/ (Income) recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 7.84

Vill. Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive income (01}

Due to Change in firancial assumptions {1.27)
Due to Change in demographic assumption 0.07
Due to Change in experience assumption (1.40)

Expected return on plan assets
Change in Asset Ceiling "
Total remasurement recognised in OC1 {2.60)

IX, Balance Sheet reconciliation

Opening net liability 10.06
Expenses recognised in Profit & Loss 7.84
Actual Employer Contribution (37.60)
Total Rermeasurement recognised in OCI (2.60)
Acquisition adjustment -
Closing net liability {22.30}

Salary escalation assumption has been set in discussions with the enterprise based on their estimates of overall long-term salary growth rates
after taking Into consideration expected earnings infiation as wel! as performance and seniarity related increases.

Sensitivity analysis:
= Effect on Gratuity
Particulars a:::;sp::‘::s obligation {Rupees in
lakhs)
For the year ended 315t March, 2022
Salary growth rate +0.50% 63.60
-0.50% 60.92
Discount rate +0.50% 60.94
-0.50% 63.59

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In pratice, this is urdikely to
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. In presenting the above sensitivity anaysis, the present vaiue of defined
benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of reporting periad, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined obligation lability recognised in the balance sheet,

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: longevity risk and satary risk.

Interest risk - A decrease In the discount rate will increase the plan liabitity.

Longevity risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calcuiated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants. As such, an increase the plan's
liability. :
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Salary risk - The present vailue of the defined plan Hability is calculated by reference to the future saiaries of plan participants. &s such, as increase

in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Liquidity risk - This is the risk that the Company is not able able to meet the short - term gratuity payouts. This may rise dug to non availability of

enough cash / cash equivelant to meet the Kabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is 4 years.

in lakhs)
1st Year
2nd Year 1146
3rd Year .67
4th Year 8.29
Sth Year 7.01
& to 10 year 2273

Disclosure pursuant to Indain Accounting Standard 108 - Operating Segment

Primary Segment Information

The Group operates in three primary reportable business segments, i.e. “Rail & Inland Container Depot® and "Domestic Warehousing Zone" and ”
Free Trade Warehousing Zone (FTWZ) and one geographical segment i.e. India as per accounting standard 108 - * Segment Reporting"”.

L tR , results, and liabilities

Reventie and results have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment.

Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and fiabilities in respective segments. Segment assets include ali operating assets used by
the operating segment and mainly includes trade receivable and ather receivables. Segment liabilities primarily include trade payables and other
liabilities. Assets and labllities which cannot be allocated to any of the segments are shown as a part of unallocable assets and liabilities.

The chief operationai decision maker monitors the operating results of its Business Segments separately for the purpose of making decisians
about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently

with profit or loss in the financial statements. Operating segment have been identified on the basis of the nature of services.

39.4 segmental Information as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022 is as follows:-

{Ruf in lakhs)

Particuldts: Year Ended
S5egment Revenue

Rail & ICD 312.13
Comestic Warehouse 516.01
FTW?Z -
Less: Inter Segment -
Total Revenue from Operations 82B.14
Segment Results Before Tax and Intarest

Rail & ICD [3,713.94)
Domestice Warehouse (976.61)
FTW?Z {0.46)
Total Segment Result [4,691.01}
Less: Unailocated Expenses net of Income 0.75
Less: Finance C vsts 15,768.64
Less: Exceptional [temns {Net] -
Loss hefore tax {20,460.40)
Less: Tax Expenses -
Loss after tax {20,460.40)
Segment Assets

Rail & ICD £3,817.32
Domestic Warehouse 37,292.29
FTwWZ 3,835.67
Unallocatad 2,671.05
Total 97,616.33
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Segment Liahilities

Rail & KD 4,594.78
Domestic Warghouse 129.13
FTWZ 3,886.31
Unallocated 1,20,509.64
Total 1,29,115.86
Other Disclosures

Capital Expenditure

Rall & 1CD 0.44
Comestic Warehouse

FTWZ H
Unallpcated —
Total 0.44
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Rail & ICD 2,655.06
Domestic Warehause 1.387.81
FTWZ 5
Unallocated i
Tatal 4,042.87
Non-cash Expenditure

Rail & ICD 7.20
Domestic Warehouse i
FTWZ 3
Unallocated _
Total 7.20

Customers individually contributes to more than 10% of revenue -

There are 4 customers aggregating to Rupees 758.93 |akhs of Revenue.

To the extent,the group has received intimation fram the "suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006, the details are provided as under

{Rupaes in lakhs)

Particulars

For the ysar
March 31, 2022

{i) Principal amount remaining unpaid

7283

(i) interest due thereon remaining unpaid

494

{iti} Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year.

{iv} Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyand the
appainted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2005,

{v] Interest accrued and reraining unpaid {net of tax deducted at source)

494

{vi} Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above

are actually pald to the small enterprize.
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41  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
{fl  Ustofrelated parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Pasty Disclosures
'S¢, Ng. [Name of Rslated Party Nature of Relationship % of equityjCountry of
) : - : Interest (lncorporation
Mr._ Ajay 5, Mittal - Director
Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director
Mr. Sarvothama Shetty - Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. luna 27, 2020)
Mr, Lalan Thakur - Chnef.FIna_ncuaI COfficer {w.e.f. August 13, 2021 4l f‘\ugust 30, 2022) Key Managerial Personnel
1 Mr. Rama Devadiga - Chief Financial Officer fw.e.f August 25, 2020 till February 11, 2021) (KMP)
Mr. Vinod Parekh - Director (till May 31, 2021)
Mr_Ashutosh Sharma - Director
Mr_ Abhijit Mehta - Company Secretary (w.e f. June, 02, 2021)
Ms. Avant Dipakkumar Lakhani - Company Secretary (till May 5, 2021}
2 Arshiya Limited
Arshiya Northern Projects Private Limited
] i Controlled or jointly controiled )
Arshiya Northern FTWYZ Limited P India
Arshiya Logistics Servicas Limited
Rudradey Properties Private Limited
3 Mrs. Archana A Mittal Relative of Key Managerial
Mr. Ananya A Mittal Personnel
{ii}  The nature and amount of transactions with the above related partios are as follows
[Rupees In lakhs)
P — T 2022
Loans taken 1,795.77
Loan reg ts** {571.14}
Arshiya timited Allocation of cost and common expenses 123 44
by Holding Company™*
Financial Guarantees {306.28)
Rudradey Properties Private Limited Interest exp 10.61]
Arshiya Limited Lease rent income 500
Arshiya Uimited Interest axpense un borrowings 50,23
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited Reimk t of Exp (7.55)
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited Loan Given 23.12
Loan repayments [9.82)
Arshiya Limited A 55i t of Loan given** 243209
Arshiya Limited I payable 50.23
[Ananya Mittal Salary Paid 24.50
* During the year, the erstwhile Holding Company has allocated certain cost and axp incurred by it, t¢ the company aggregating to Rupess 122,44 lakhs
based on erstwhile Holding Company’s esti of such cost and expenses attributable to the company. Hence, Employee benefit expanses [ Refer Note No. 31) and

certain expenses stated under other axpenses (Refer Note No. 34) are presented as inclusive of such aliocation of certain cormmon costs and expenses.

** During the year ended 31st March, 2022, loan given bo Arshiva Limited is assigned to AMD Business Support Services Private Limited which is 100% wholly awn
subsidiary of the parent pany through assig agreement.
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{fiiit  Closing Batances [Rupees in fakhs)
MName March 31, 2022
i3 Jroum Felited porties

Arshiya Limited 1,404.33
Rudradev Properties Private Limited 4.69
Todn
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 575
Arshiya Limited 309.98
e e — ) ke
Ajay § Mittal 93.471.00
Archana & Mittal 93,471.00
Corporote Guorantestuksn: = .
Arshiya Limited 75,436.65
Arshiya Limited 500.00

(v} Key gertial personnel ¢
Ms. Avani Dipakkumar Lakhani - Company Secretary (£l
May 5, 2021} {Rupees in lakhs}
{Farticutars March 31,2023
Short term employee benefits 0.77
Total 0.77

Mr. Lalan Thakur - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. August 13,

{Ruy in lakhs)

2021 I August 30th, 2022))

March'31, 2033

Short term employes benefits

5.56

Total

9.56
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financial Instruments by Category {Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars : Carrying Amount Fair Va_lue_ g

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amortised cost

Trade Receivables 23.15 28.15%
Cash and Cash Equivalents 17.95 17.95
Loans 231.12 231.12
Security Deposits 81.28 81.28
Other Bank Balances 103.37 103.37
Financial Guarantee 30998 305.98

Total 771.85 771.85

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amortised cost
Borrowings 70,322.38 70,322.38
Trade Payables 678.21 678.21
Other financial liabilities 53,808.84 53,808.84
Lease Liabilities 14.04 14.04

Total 1,24,823.47 1,24,823.47

Fair Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

The Group maintains procedures to value financial assets ar financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available. The fair
values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that woulg be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The Group assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financiai assets and
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values for security depesits and other financial liabilities were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending
rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the Fair valug hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty
credit risk.

The fair values of non current bosrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current barrawing rate. They are classified as level 3
fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unchservable inputs, including own credit risk.

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised
and measure at fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determing fair value, the group has classified
its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard,

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, traded bonds, over the counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2,

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in fevel 3. This is the
case for unlisted equity shares, contingent consideration and indemnification assets included in level 3.
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Financial Risk Management

The Group's principal financiat lizbilities comprises of borrowings, trade and other payables and financial guarantees contracts. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to manage for the Group's operations. The Group's financial assets comprisas of trade and other receivables, cash
and deposits that arises directly from its operations.

The Group's activitles expose it to variety of financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Group's risks management
assessrnent, management and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the group to set up appropriate risks firnits and
controls and to monitor such risks and compliantes with the same. Risks assessment and managerment policies and processes are reviewsd
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the group's activities.

Risk Exposure arising from |Megsurement Management
Credlt risk Cash and cash Ageing analysis Regular review of
equivatents, trade credit imits

receivables and
Financial assets
measured at

amortised cost.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other |Rolling cash flow Availability of
liabilitias foracasts financial support from
: erstwhile parent
campany
Market risk ~ interest rate Long-term borrowings |Sensitivity analysis Unhedged

at variable rates

The Group's risk management is carried out by a corporate finance team under the policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board
provides written principles for overail risk management as weil as policies covering specific areas, such as credit risk, interest rate risk.

[A] Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk, which 1s risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resulting in a financial loss to the
group. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposures to trade customers including outstanding receivables.

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned fram customers lorated in India. Credit risk has always been
managed by the group through continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the group grants credit terms in the narmal
course of business. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any further services to major customers are approved by the
senicr management. Credit risk is bigh as only few customers’ account for majority of the revenue in the year presented. On account of adoption
of Ind AS 109, the Group uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment lass or gain.

{B} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable |osses. The Group's objective 1s to, at all times; maintain optimum levels of liguidity to meet its cash and collsteral requirements.
The Group timits its liguidity risk by ensuring funds from trade recelvables. The Group relles on cperating cash flows and funding from holding
company to meet its needs for funds.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards financial iiabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the
balance sheat to the contractual maturity date.
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Contractual maturities of financial liahilities

{Rupees in lakhs)

Between 1 year and 5

Particulars Less than 1 year it More than 5 year
March 31, 2022

Borrowings 67,938.12 -

OCRPS (Dabt and Equity component) 1,200.00 5

Trade payables 678.21 =

Other financial liagilities 53,758.61 -

Lease liability 14.04

Total Financial liabilities 1,23,588.98 -

{C) Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the falr value of future cash flow of z financial instruments will fluctuate because of volatility of prices in the financial
markets. Market risk can be further segregated as: 1) Foreign currency risk and 2} Interest rate risk

1) Foreign currency risk

1} Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow or an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. However, the group does not have any foreign currency exposure.

2} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's main interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. During the 31st March, 2022 the Group's borrowings at the variable rate were mainly denomtnated in Rupeas.

The Group's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in IND AS- 107,
since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of 2 change in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Group's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:-

{Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2022
Variable rate borrawings 4.35

Interest senshtivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interast rates.

Impact on profit
Particulars before tax
March 31, 2022
Interest senshtivity
50 bps increase the profit before tax by* {0.02)
50 bps decrease the profit before tax by* 0.02

* Holding all other variable constant
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
For the group's cbjective when managing capital is to safeguard the group's ability te continue going concern in order 1o provide the

return for shareholders and benefit to other stakeholders and to maintain an optional capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
Capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the group.

The group manages its capitat structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The group monitors capital using a Debt equity ratin.

{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2022
Barrowings 70,322.38
Other Financial Liabifities (interest accrued) 51,630.62
Total Debt 1,21,953.00
Equity 2,622.76
Other equity {34,126.29}
Total Equity {31,503.53}
Total debt to equity ratio (Gearing ratio} {3.87)

Notes:-
(i) Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowings including current maturities and interest,
{ii} Total equity (as shown in balance sheet} includes issued capital and all other equity.

Debt Covenants
Under the terms of Restructuring Agreement, the group is required to comply with following financial covenants:-

Without prior approval of lender, the group shall not:

Loans, debenture & charge - Issue or subscribe to any debentures, shares, raise any loans, depesit from public, issue equity or
preference capital, change its capital structure or create any charge on its assets including its cash flow or give any guarantees.

Dividend on equity shares - declare/pay dividend on equity shares unless otherwise approved by the Lender/Business Moenitoring
Committee in accordance with the provisions of RA.

Investments by Borrower - make any investments by way of deposits, loans, share capital etc. in any concern or elsewhere without
prior approval of the Lender / Business Monitoring Committee,

Assignment - assign or transfer of any of its right and obligations to any third party.

Related Party Transactions - enter into any related party transactions for an amount exceeding Rs. 10 lakhs {Rupees Ten Lakhs only)
per month, subject to business structure as explained to and agreed by the Lender.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Capital Management, amongst other thing, aims to ensure that it meets Financial
covenants attached to the interest bearing Loans and borrowings that define Capital structure reguirements, there have been
breaches in the Financial covenants of Interest bearing loans and borrowing in the Current period and previous period.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

46  Taxation

i} Tax Reconciliation

{Rupees in lakhs}

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022

Reconciliation of tax expense
Loss before tax {20,450.38)
Enacted income tax rate {%) applicable to the group # 26%
Tax expenses calculated at enacted income tax rate {5,319.69)
Related to Property plant & equipment 415.71
Effect of Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 4,241.01
Effect of Incomes that are not allowable in determining taxable profit [317.63}
Tax Losses 980.60

# The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 26% at which the group is liable to pay tax on taxable Incoma under the indian Tax Law,

ii} The group has not recognised any deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses as It is not probabie that the group will have
sufficient future taxable profit which can be available agalnst the available tax losses.
iii} Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised
{Rupees in lakhs}

o i # 5 . o Available for utilisation till B —
Assessment Year. - + BusingssLoss " Assessment Year. Unabsorbad Deprestation
2012-2013 . 2,133.42
2013-2014 ; 3,035.67
2014-2015 19,833.51 2072-2023 12,483.27
2015-2016 828.31 2023-2024 10,794.45
2016-2017 2,689.48 20242075 8,100.32
2017-2018 23,529.43 2025-2026 7,866.82
2018-2019 2 2026-2027 6,894.83
2019-2020 . 2027-2028 5,865.90
20202021 29.82 2028-2029 5,315.96
2021-2022 1,397.32 2026-2030 2,846.35
2022-2023 462.50 2030-2031 2,443.98
Total 48,770.37 67,788.97
Aongterm Capitaross | ARpe forutilestion sl
ne : eayr
2016-17 369.21 2024-2025
Total T 369.21

Unused deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2022 Rupees {29,360.76) lakhs has not been recognised, as there is no convincing evidence that sufficient taxable
profits will be available against which the unadjusted tax losses will be utilised by the group.

Details of Deferred tax assets are mentionad below:- {Rupees in lakhs)
Property plant equipment 7.437.24
Unabsorbed depreciation {18,858.39)
Expense allowable on payments under section 438 and 40{a)(ia} {4,232.14}
Unabsorbed loss {13.650.09)
Finzncial Instruments {56.88)
Total Deferred Tax Assets {29,360.76)
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Preparation of financial statements on * Going Concern” basis

The Parent Company has incurred net loss of Rupees {20,405.72} Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2022 and as of that date, the parent company's
current liabilities exceeded by its current assets by Rupees {1,20,622.14) lakhs. Some of its lenders have recalied their loans and the parent company is in the
process of negotiating the revised payment terms with the lenders.

Further Gavernment focus on development of logistic infrastructure for future growth in economy and provided the ‘category of Infrastructure’ sub-sectors to
"Transport and Logistics" from the earlier sub-head of "Transport”. According to the govt notification, logistics infrastructure includes "Multimodal Loglstics
Park comprising Inland Container Depot (ICD)” would came under logistics infrastructure.

The parent company has strategically located at the confiuence of Western & Eastern Dedicated freight Corridor {DFC). The DFC to improve efficiency and
cargo delfverables. Commissioning of DFC stretch could benefit customers by operation of tonger, heavier and faster train services which will improve
operatianal efficiency. The commencement of work on the proposed Jewar Airport which is in close proximity to Khurja will also boost the parent company's
business.

In view of the focussed emphasis of the Government on logistics infrastructure sector and considering the fact that the facilities are yet to achieve full
operational potential besides the strategic locations of the facilities, the management’s future outlogk of its businesses is very promising.

The parent company is also working with all its lenders on re-alignment of existing debt of the parent company. The parent company has received letters for
Settlernent of Debt from major lenders to reduce debt at sustainable level, Hence the parent company is optimistic that the proposed re-alignment of debt with
tenders will improve overall cash flows of the parent company.

The management of the parent company is in the process of restructuring its business operations and steps are as under :

Focus on long term contracts with corporate clients for stable revenues.

Focus on reduction of empty haulage / return business in different sectors to increase in revenue and margins.

Increased focus on Khurja as a distribution hub post G5T implemantation

Government focus on Muiti-modal logistic and transport services ta increase the throughput of the infrastructure already created by the parent company;

Government focus on the revamging of the Railway Boards and increasing clarity on regulatory aspects to support resolution of the regulatory issues;

Twa Dedicated Freight Corridor{s) (DFC} along the Western and Eastern part of Indla ta support increase in the business volume.
Govarnment announcement of Jewar Atrport and Merut Highway cannecting Jewar via Khurja and thereby connecting to Yamuna Expressway( i.e. Delhi to
Agra).

The above steps shall enable the parent company to improve parent company’s Net worth and its ability to discharge its debts/fiabilities in near future and
accordingly the financiais have been prepared on going concern basis,

As per debt covenant, the Parent company are required to adhere to repayment schedule and any short payment gives Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction
Company {EARC) the right to convert whole of the outstanding amount of restructured rupee loan andfor part of the default amount into fully paid up equity
shares of the parent company. No such notice of conversion in writing has been given by EARC and the parent company continues to disclose the amount as
current in the Balance Sheet,

{i) Upon signing of Restructuring Agreement with Edelwelss Assets Reconstruction Company Limited (EARC) on 31st March 2017, the Parent Company is
accruing penal interest on restructured debt @ 8% p.a. based upon the balance confirmation provided by EARC til} 30th September 2019 against the
documented rate of 18% per annum. it has resuited in the short provision of penal interest for the year ended 31st March 2021 amounting to Rs. 2,069.29 Lakh
and for tha year ended 31st March 2022 amounting to Rs. 3,080.01 Lakh . In aggregate penal interest provisions are lower by Rs. §,831.21 Lakh till 315t March
2022,

(i} The Parent Company had received Settlemant of Debt letter dated ath March, 2022 {Settdamant} from Edelwelss Assets Reconstruction Company Limlted
{EARC] with cut- off date as on 30th September, 2021, Since the parent company is unable to comply with the conditicns of the Settlement it has requested
EARC to revise the structure of debt resolution and submitted various proposals to EARC. Pending evaluation and discussions on these proposals, EARC has
revoked the Settlerment. In light of the ongoing discussion with EARC the parent company continues to account the penal interest as earfier and no accounting
effects of the satd settlement of debt letter is considered necessary by the parent company for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

The Parent Company had entered into one-time settlerent {OTS) with a lender and the effect was taken as an exceptional itern during the financial year ended
March 31, 2019. However, the parent company has defaulted in payment as per the terms of the OTS. As a result, the parent company needs to revarse the
exceptional gain recorded during the respective year and needs to recognise Interest on the entire liability as per the original terms. Tha parent company s in
discusston with the lender for additional time ta repay.

The parent company has not reversed the gain, nor provided for additional interest. Had the parent company reversed the gain and provided for additional
interest, exceptional ftem wauld have been lower by Rs. 6,604.55 Lakhs and finance cost would have been higher by Rs. 12,493.43 Lakhs having consequential
impact an total comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

The parent company has procured certain capital goods under EPCG scheme at concessional rate of duty. On nen fulfillment of certain conditions, the parent
company may become liable to pay differential custom duty along with interest thereon such procurement. 5 EPCG license were closed with release of
Corporate Guarantee during the year March 2020.The management is hopeful of completing the expected obligation within the stipulated time for balance 1
EPCG license.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

The parent company has requested alt its lenders for independent confirmation of their outstanding as on 31st March 2022 with a request to confirm their
balances directly ta the statutory auditors. The parent company is confldent that there will not be significant changes in [ts liabilities.

During the course of preparation of financial statements, e-mails have been sent to various parties, in respect of trade receivabies and trade payables, etc. with
a request to confirm their balances, out of which only few parties have responded, accordingly, the possible adjustment, if any, required in the financial
statements will be accounted as and when the same is determinahle.

i} Corporation Bank has filed a sult with Debt Recovery Tribunal, New Delhi, towards recovery of lcan against the parent company and Arshiya Limited as a
Corporate Guarantor and twa promoter directars of the erstwhile holding company as Guarantors. The same is pending before the DRT Delhi. The matter is sub-
judice.

Further, Corporation Bank has filed petition against the parent company for recovery of dues at NCLT under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, The matter
is pending for pre-admission stage. Next date is in this matter 16.09.2022

ii} Bank cf india has filed a suit with Debt Recavery Tribunal I, Delhi, towards recovery of loan against the Parent Company and Arshiya Limited as a Corparate
Guaranter and two pramoter directors of the AL as Guarantors. The same is pending before the DRT i Delhi. The matter is sub-judice. Matter to be listed on
03.10.2022 for compietion of evidence by both parties.

ifi} Certain creditors have initiated for winding up petition against the parent company. The parent company Is In process of negatiating and finalising the
revised consent terms and/ar making representations to the respective forum,

il As per Provisions of sub section 1 of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 {w.e.f. 1st April,2014) the parent company is required to appoint a Company
Secretary. However, the parent company is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate for this role.

ii] As per Provistons of sub section 1 of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 {w.2 f. 15t April, 2014} the parent company is required to appoint a Chief financial
Officer (CFO). However, the parent company is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate for this roke.

The group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by type of products and services, geography and timing of revenue recognition.
Revenue disaggregation by type of goods and services is given note no. 28

Revenue disaggregation by geography is as follows:

Rupees in lakhs

Geograph For the year ended

I

T 31" March 2022

In India 828.13
Outside India B

Revenue disaggregation by timing of revenue recognition is as follows:

[Rupees in lakhs)

dacgraghy For t:e year ended

31" March 2022
Goods transferred at a point in time -
Service transferred over time B2B.13

[} Punjab National Bank (lead 8ank), on behalf of Certain Consortium Banks, has initiated debt recovery action under Section 13(2) of Securitization &
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI) (ACT) vide notice dated 19th October, 2015 aggregating to
Rupees 58,657.51 lakhs (reduced to Rupees 29,369.94 lakhs after the Restructuring Agreement is signed with EARC on 31st March,2017). The bank has also
Invoked the Corporate Guarantee issued by Arshiya Limited and Personal Guarantees of Directors i.e. Mr. Ajay 5. Mittal and Mrs. Archana A. Mittal. Further on
18th January 2016, the parent company received a notice of Possession from the autharised officer of the bank under Power Conferred on the bank ufs 13{4)
of the said Act read with Rule 8 {i} of the Rules. The said loan has been assigned by Punjab National Bank to EARC & further EARC has filed an application for
withdrawal for the same.

(ii} Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company (EARC), has Initiated action under Section 13{2) of Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets and
Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 [SARFAESI) {ACT) against the borrower Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited invoked Corporate Guarantee provided by
Arshiya Limited and personal guarantee by Mr. Ajay Mittal and Mrs. Archana Mittal. The parent company received a notice of Possession of the assets
mentioned in the SARFAESI Notice under power conferred from the banks mentioned in the Notice u/s 13{4) of the said Act read with fule 8 {i} of the Rules,
These natices - sntain higher demand of outstanding dues. Management believes that there will not be any further liabilities to pay in excess of the amount
outstanding in the books of accounts.

Business Combinations

During the year ended 31st March 2022, Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai 8ench (NCLT) has approved the Scheme of Arrangement (Scheme)
vide it's order dated 21st January 2022. The Scheme became effective from 2nd February 2022. The Appointed date of the said scheme 1s 1st April 2019,
Pursuant ta Scheme:
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Domestic Business of the erstwhile Parent Company i.e. Arshiya Limited ("AL") comprising of 43.23 acre of land situated at Khurja and other assets and
liabilities pertaining to domestic business has been demerged from AL into Resulting company ie. the Parent Company. All assets and liahilities of the
demerged undertakings have been recogntsed at their respective carrying values and the net differential amount of Rs. 7,561.85 lakh is shown under Capital
Reserve.

{Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at

1st April, 2019
Assots
Property, Plant and Equipment 7,499.35
Trade Receivabies 64.72
Total Assets [A) 7,564.07
Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities 2.22
Total Liabilities (B} 2.2
Net assets transferred (A-B=C) 7,561.85

Inter-group balances (borrowing) of Rs. 16,561.21 Lakh held by AL in the parent company stand cancelled and adjusted in Capital Reserve,
The parent company is ceased to be subszidiary of AL.

The Scheme has been accounted for as per the accounting treatment appraved by the NCLT read with agplicable accounting standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Accumulated balances {losses) in retained earnings of Rs. 87,898.46 Lakh as on the appointed date are utilised against the securities premium account of the
parent company, resulting in retained earnings reduced to NIL as on the appointed date.

The authorised share capital is reclassified from Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each into corresponding number of Equity shares of Face value of Rs. 2
each.

Upon the scheme becoming effective and cancellation of the shares held by AL in the parent company, The parent company shall debit its eguity share capital
account , the aggregate face value of existing equity shares held by AL, which stand cancalled hereof. In consideration of the demerger, for every 2 {two) fully
paid-up equity shares of AL, the parent company shall issue and allot to each member of AL a5 on the record date i.e. 4th March 2022, 1 (one] fully paid-up
eqguity share of the Rs, 2/- each of the parent company. These equity shares of the parent company are proposed to be listed, on the stock exchanges where
the equity shares of the erstwhila parent campany are listed, on receipt of regulatory approvals.

ReconcHlation of securities Premium and Retained Earmings as at 1st April, 2019:

{Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars Securities Retained Capltal Reserve
Balance as on 315t March 2019 befare restatement 27,898.46 [97,615.55} -
Add: Land transferred under demerger scheme - - 7.499,.35
Add: Gther assets and liabilities ¢! Domestics Warehousing Division - - 62.50
{net}
Add. Written back of borrowings - _.n Arshiya Limited - . 16,561.21
Add: Cancellation of investment by Arshiya Limited . - 5,967.16
Add: Deemed Equity of Arshiya Limited - - 3,214.71
Less: New Shares to be issusd - - (2,622.76}
Less/Add: Adjustment as per Demerger Scheme {87,808 46) B7,B08 46 -
Balance as on 1st April 2019 after restaternent - {9,717.05) 30,682.17

Post NCLT order dated 21st January,2022, one of the lenders of Al has appealed against the said order at tha Hon'ble National Campany Law Appellate Tribunal
[NCLAT). Pursuant to on order dated 4th March 2022, NCLAT has ordered to maintain ‘status quo’ in the matter and hence the matter is now ‘sub - judice’. AL
has appeated for setting aside the sald arder of 4th March 2022 and requested the NCLAT to a:1ow AL to complete the formalities such as allotment procedures
of the demerger and listing of the shares of the parent company. As the scheme is In the interest of stakeholders of both the companies, AL and the parent
company shall be pursuing the appeal. Based on tegal opinion obtained, the parent company has prepared the financiat statements for the year ended 31st
March 2022 after giving accounting effects of scheme as par the NCLT order.

The group do not have any transactions and balances with struck off companies under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 ar Section 560 of Companias
Act, 1556.

The Group has made a detalled assessment and the recoverability and carrying value of its assets, as at 31st March 2022, comprising investments and trade
réceivables. Based on current indicatars of future economic conditions, the group expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The group will
continue to closely monitar any material changes arlsing of future economic conditions and impact on its business.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition} Act, 1988 {45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

The group have not traded or invested In Crypto currency or Virtuad Currency during the financial year.
The group does not have any pending creation of tharges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the

statutory period except in one of the case, the group has signed the documents for loan facilities of Rs. 600.00 takhs from a NBFC but not drawn said lvan. The
satisfaction of charges wilf be filed upon receipt of require documents from a NBFC,

The group has not advanced or foaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shali;

(2] directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group {Ultimate Beneficiaries): or
{b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The group has not received any fund from any person or entity, including fareign entities {Funding Party] with the understanding (whether recarded in writing
or otherwise} that the group shall ;

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entities Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group (Uitimate Beneficiaries); or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the Iike to or on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

The group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the baoks of accounts that has been surrandered or disclosed as income during the year

In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961].

The Parent Company and Subsidiary company has naot been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender [as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, In accordance with the guidelines on witful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Parent Company and Subsidiary Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
{Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Utilisation of borrowed funds as on March 31, 2022, there is no unutilised amounts in respect of any issue of securities and lang term borrowings from banks
and financial Institutions. The borrowed funds have been utilised for the specific purpose for which the funds were raised.

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are net applicable.
The Parliament of India has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 {"the Code"} which, inter alia, deals with employee benefits during employment and

post-employment. The effective date of the Code is yet to be notified and the rulas for quantifying the financial impact are also yet to be issued. in view of this,
the impact of the change, if any, will be assessed and recognised post notification of the retevant provisions.
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